
Hogan Preparatory Academy

Hogan Preparatory Academy

Date and Time
Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM CDT

Location
Notice is hereby given that the Hogan Preparatory Academy Board will conduct a Board
Meeting at 5:30 PM on Monday, September 27, 2021 at Hogan Preparatory Academy
District Office, at 6409 Agnes Avenue. Due to COVID-19 safety protocols, the meeting
can be attended remotely by the Zoom link or the conference call telephone number
below:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84305822994?
pwd=aTZQMXREcEF5NzZ5N1VqNHd2akFtZz09
Meeting ID: 843 0582 2994
Passcode: 0J25GP.

Agenda
Purpose Presenter Time

I. Opening Items 5:30 PM

Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order Dr. Mary
Viveros

1 m

B. Record Attendance and Guests Dr. Mary
Viveros

1 m

Quorum Established

C. Adoption of Agenda Vote Dr. Mary
Viveros

1 m

D. Comments from Public Dr. Mary
Viveros

5 m

E. Comments from the Board President Dr. Mary
Viveros

5 m

F. Comments from the Superintendent Dr. Jayson
Strickland

10 m

HPA High School Internship-Valorie Montgomery & Yvonne Hayes

II. HPA Board Dashboard 5:53 PM

1 of 3Powered by BoardOnTrack 1 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84305822994%3Fpwd%3DaTZQMXREcEF5NzZ5N1VqNHd2akFtZz09&sa=D&ust=1632332697613000&usg=AOvVaw38j3uvkUclD-vIGoxoEfLo


Purpose Presenter Time
A. HPA BOD September Dashboard Discuss Dr. Mary

Viveros
5 m

III. Consent Agenda 5:58 PM

A. Approval of August 23, 2021 Minutes Approve
Minutes

Dr. Mary
Viveros

1 m

B. Approval of Closed Session Minutes Vote Dr. Jayson
Strickland

1 m

C. HPA HR Report Vote Dr. Tanya
Shippy

1 m

D. HPA BOD Bylaws Revisions Vote Jamie
Berry

1 m

E. Prep KC MOU Vote Dr. Jayson
Strickland

1 m

F. Designation of McKinney-Vento and Foster Care
Coordinator

Vote Jamie
Berry

1 m

G. KLS Contract Update Vote Jamie
Berry

1 m

IV. Hogan Preparatory Academy Board of Director Committees

V. Finance Committee 6:05 PM

Finance

A. Finance Committee Report Discuss Jamie
Berry &
David
Collier

5 m

B. Approve August Expenses Vote Jamie
Berry &
David
Collier &
Paul
Greenwood

1 m

C. KCPS MOU Vote Jamie
Berry

5 m

D. HPA High School Student Run Store Checking
Account

Vote Jamie
Berry

5 m

VI. Academics 6:21 PM

A. Academic Committee Report Discuss Dr. Tamara
Burns & Dr.
Mary
Viveros

5 m

VII. Governance and Board Development 6:26 PM

A. Governance & Board Development Committee Discuss Matt
Samson &
Dr. Tanya
Shippy

10 m

2 of 3Powered by BoardOnTrack 2 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Purpose Presenter Time
Charter School White Paper Training

B. Charter School Board Member Draft Vote Dr. Tanya
Shippy &
Matt
Samson

5 m

VIII. New Business 6:41 PM

A. HPA Policy Update Vote Jamie
Berry

5 m

B. HPA Conflict of Interest Policy Annual Review Discuss Jamie
Berry

5 m

IX. Old Business

X. Calendar 6:51 PM

A. Upcoming Dates Discuss Dr. Jayson
Strickland

1 m

• September 29th Early Release
• October 13th Early Release
• October 22nd HPA Staff PD - Schools Closed
• October 25th HPA BOD Meeting, 5:30pm
• October 25th 2nd Quarter Begins
• October 27th-28th Parent Teacher Conferences - Early Release & Schools Closed
• October 29th Schools Closed

XI. Closing Items 6:52 PM

A. Motion to go into Closed Session Discuss Dr. Mary
Viveros

10 m

RSMo § 610.021. Closed meetings and closed records authorized when, exceptions, sunset
dates for certain exceptions (1) Legal actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public
governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications between a public
governmental body or its representatives and its attorneys.... 3) Hiring, firing, disciplining or
promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when personal information
about the employee is discussed or recorded.....(13) Individually identifiable personnel records,
performance ratings or records pertaining to employees or applicants for employment...

B. Adjourn Meeting Vote Dr. Mary
Viveros

1 m

3 of 3Powered by BoardOnTrack 3 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

HPA BOD September Dashboard

Section: II. HPA Board Dashboard
Item: A. HPA BOD September Dashboard
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material: Board Dashboard - September 2021 (1).pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 4 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA FY21-22 Performance Dashboard

Cash Reserves

Target:  $3,000,000 
FY20-21:  
Projection:  $3,916,970

Strengthen Board Oversight

Target:  80% attendance at 
80% of meetings
FY20-21:  Met 80% attendance 
at 80% of meetings
YTD: 93%

Leadership Performance
Target:  Proficient in Hogan 5 categories. 
Goal:   100% of District and School Leaders 
Proficient (3)

Teacher Performance (Hogan 5) 
85% of Teachers are Proficient (6) in 
each category   
 

Retain High Quality Teachers

Target:  60% in Core Content by 
FY23-24
FY20-21:  
FY21-22:

Hogan 5 Baseline April 
2021- NEE

Current

1c 4.74 4

2c 5.42 4.52

2d 5.40 5.2

3c 4.52 3.85

3d 4.24 3.71

Hogan 5 HPA ES HPA MS HPA HS Average

1c 2.0 2.0 3.0 2.33

2c 2.0 2.0 3.0 2.33

2d 2.5 2.0 3.0 2.5

3c 2.0 2.0 3.0 2.33

3d 2.5 1.5 3.0 2.33

Overall Score 2.5 1.9 3.0 5 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA FY21-22 Performance Dashboard

Graduates w/MVA

FY 22-23 Target:  20% w/at 
least 1 MVA
YTD:  
Projection:  

Graduation Rate

Target:  83.9%
FY20-21 Rate:  91% 
(52 out of 57)
Projection:  

 

Attendance

Target:  
YTD:  
Projection:  

Freshman on Track

Target:  
YTD:
Projection:  

Seniors on Track

Target:  
YTD:  
Projection:

6 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA FY21-22 Performance Dashboard

MAP Below Basic* MAP Performance Index*

SGP Growth

Current 
FY18-19 

FY21-22
Target

ELA 30.8% 28.3%

Math 58.7% 54.2%

Science 51.0% 47.0%

Current 
FY 18-19

FY21-22
Target

ELA 258.1 267.1

Math 194.3 208.4

Science 205.2 218.7

Moderate
(50 SGP)

Moderately Ambitious 
(65 SGP)

Ambitious
(75 SGP)

% Above 
Moderate

FY21-22 100% 20% 3% 23%

*Interim assessment data uses Evaluate, which is a predictive model for MAP 7 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Approval of August 23, 2021 Minutes

Section: III. Consent Agenda
Item: A. Approval of August 23, 2021 Minutes
Purpose: Approve Minutes
Submitted by:
Related Material: Minutes for Hogan Preparatory Academy on August 23, 2021

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 8 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Hogan Preparatory Academy

Minutes

Hogan Preparatory Academy

Date and Time
Monday August 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM

Location
Notice is hereby given that the Hogan Preparatory Academy Board will conduct a Board
Meeting at 5:30 PM on Monday, August 23, 2021 at Hogan Preparatory Academy District
Office, at 6409 Agnes Avenue. Due to COVID-19 safety protocols, the meeting can be
attended remotely by the Zoom link or the conference call telephone number below:
Zoom Meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83526021446?
pwd=MmVPTzRvWG5hbTY3SXVIaUlqQkxnQT09
Meeting ID: 835 2602 1446
Passcode: 0VMhgP
One tap mobile
+13126266799,,83526021446#,,,,*400704# US (Chicago)
+19292056099,,83526021446#,,,,*400704# US (New York)
Dial by your location
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
Meeting ID: 835 2602 1446
Passcode: 400704

Directors Present
Albert Ray (remote), Danielle Binion (remote), David Collier (remote), Mary Viveros
(remote), Matt Samson, Robin Carlson (remote)

Directors Absent
Lynne Beaver

Guests Present
Beth Radke (remote), Dana Cutler (remote), Dana Cutler (remote), Edwin Wright
(remote), Jamie Berry (remote), Jayson Strickland, Jazmine Salach (remote), Tamara
Burns (remote), Tanya Shippy (remote)

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

1 of 6Powered by BoardOnTrackLast update: 8/26/2021 10:49:31 AM CDT 9 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83526021446%3Fpwd%3DMmVPTzRvWG5hbTY3SXVIaUlqQkxnQT09&sa=D&ust=1629567462547000&usg=AOvVaw0-pUgL0cFwZeAS7uwYzrmL


Mary Viveros called a meeting of the board of directors of Hogan Preparatory
Academy to order on Monday Aug 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM.

B. Record Attendance and Guests

C. Adoption of Agenda
Albert Ray made a motion to Adopt the agenda.
Danielle Binion seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Mary Viveros Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Robin Carlson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
David Collier Aye
Albert Ray Aye

D. Comments from Public

E. Comments from the Board President

F. Comments from the Superintendent

II. Consent Agenda

A. Approval of July 26, 2021 Minutes
Matt Samson made a motion to approve the minutes from Hogan Preparatory
Academy on 07-26-21.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Lynne Beaver Absent
Danielle BinionAye
Matt Samson Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
David Collier Aye
Robin Carlson Aye
Albert Ray Aye

B. Approval of Closed Session Minutes
Matt Samson made a motion to Approve Closed session minutes.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

David Collier Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Robin Carlson Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
Lynne Beaver Absent

C. HPA HR Report

2 of 6Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM

Last update: 8/26/2021 10:49:31 AM CDT 10 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Matt Samson made a motion to Approve HPA HR report.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Albert Ray Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
Robin Carlson Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
David Collier Aye
Lynne Beaver Absent

D. HPA Employee Handbook update
Matt Samson made a motion to Approve the update to the HPA Employee
Handbook.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Lynne Beaver Absent
Danielle BinionAye
Matt Samson Aye
Robin Carlson Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
David Collier Aye

E. First Student Contract Extension
Matt Samson made a motion to Approve the First Student Contract Extension.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Mary Viveros Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Matt Samson Aye
David Collier Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Robin Carlson Aye

F. HPA Student Handbook
Matt Samson made a motion to Approve the HPA Student Handbook.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Lynne Beaver Absent
Robin Carlson Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
David Collier Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
Albert Ray Aye

III. Finance Committee

A. Finance Committee Report

3 of 6Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM

Last update: 8/26/2021 10:49:31 AM CDT 11 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



B. Approve July Expenses
Albert Ray made a motion to Approve July expenses.
Danielle Binion seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

David Collier Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Danielle BinionAye
Robin Carlson Aye
Mary Viveros Aye

IV. Academics

A. Academic Committee Report
Robin Carlson made a motion to Approve Academic Committee Report.
Albert Ray seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Albert Ray Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Matt Samson Aye
Robin Carlson Aye
David Collier Aye

V. Governance and Board Development

A. Governance & Board Development Committee
Robin Carlson made a motion to Approve the Governance Report.
Albert Ray seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

David Collier Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Robin Carlson Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Mary Viveros Aye

VI. New Business

A. Ignition Lab-Operation Breakthrough MOU
Mary Viveros made a motion to Approve Ignition Lab-Operation Breakthrough
MOU.
Matt Samson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

David Collier Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Albert Ray Aye

4 of 6Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM

Last update: 8/26/2021 10:49:31 AM CDT 12 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Roll Call
Lynne Beaver Absent
Robin Carlson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Mary Viveros Aye

B. Special Education Plan
Robin Carlson made a motion to Approve the Special Education Plan.
Albert Ray seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Robin Carlson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Albert Ray Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
Matt Samson Aye
David Collier Aye

C. Social Emotional Development Report

VII. Closing Items

A. Motion to go into Closed Session
Danielle Binion made a motion to Go into Closed session pursuant to RSMo §
610.021. Closed meetings and closed records authorized when, exceptions,
sunset dates for certain exceptions (3) Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of
particular employees by a public governmental body when personal information
about the employee is discussed or recorded and (13) Individually identifiable
personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining to employees or
applicants for employment.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Lynne Beaver Absent
Matt Samson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
David Collier Aye
Robin Carlson Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Mary Viveros Aye

B. Motion to Return to General Session
Mary Viveros made a motion to Return to General Session with no action to be
taken by the Board.
Danielle Binion seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Robin Carlson Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
Albert Ray Aye
Matt Samson Aye
Danielle BinionAye
Lynne Beaver Absent
David Collier Aye

5 of 6Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM

Last update: 8/26/2021 10:49:31 AM CDT 13 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



C. Adjourn Meeting
Albert Ray made a motion to Adjourn the meeting.
Robin Carlson seconded the motion.
The board VOTED to approve the motion.
Roll Call

Albert Ray Aye
David Collier Aye
Robin Carlson Aye
Lynne Beaver Absent
Danielle BinionAye
Matt Samson Aye
Mary Viveros Aye
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:00 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Mary Viveros

6 of 6Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 5:30 PM

Last update: 8/26/2021 10:49:31 AM CDT 14 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

HPA HR Report

Section: III. Consent Agenda
Item: C. HPA HR Report
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: 2021 September Board - HR Report.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 15 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



First Name Last Name Position Effective
Date

Location

Tracy Kapperman Floating Substitute Teacher 09/13/2021 Elementary School

Brandon Collins Behavior Interventionist 09/27/2021 Elementary School

Yvonne Boyd Substitute Pool Teacher 09/20/2021 Central Office

Knikkia Townsend Teacher, Kindergarten 10/04/2021 Elementary School

Russell Friend Floating Substitute Teacher 10/05/2021 Elementary School

Sharita Taylor Front Office Secretary 10/04/2021 Elementary School

Samantha Blair Substitute Pool Teacher 9/20/2021 Central Office

Robin Urton Substitute Pool Teacher 9/20/2021 Central Office

16 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

HPA BOD Bylaws Revisions

Section: III. Consent Agenda
Item: D. HPA BOD Bylaws Revisions
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: HPA Second Amended Bylaws_9.27.21.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 17 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



18 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



19 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



20 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



21 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



22 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



23 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



24 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



25 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



26 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



27 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



28 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



29 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



30 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



31 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



32 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



33 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



34 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Prep KC MOU

Section: III. Consent Agenda
Item: E. Prep KC MOU
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: Hogan Prep PREP-KC MOU FY22 rev 8.25.21.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 35 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 
 

PREP-KC and Hogan Preparatory Academy  
 

Annual Memorandum of Understanding 
  

July 1, 2021 
  
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), executed August 25, 2021, by and between 
PREP-KC and the Hogan Preparatory Academy (Hogan Prep), covers a one-year (July 1, 
2021– June 30, 2022) period.  
  
PREP-KC and Hogan Prep are jointly committed to implementing a set of strategies collectively 
to better prepare students for success in postsecondary education and careers. The set of 
strategies described herein are designed to achieve the following outcomes during the 2021-
2022 school year: 
 
1. Provide upstream College and Career Experiences for students. 

 
2. Prepare students for postsecondary success. 
 
 
 
Section A:  Resource Agreement 
  
PREP-KC will dedicate its resources (funds and technical assistance) to the following: 
  

 
1. Increase College & Career Experiences for Hogan Prep Academy. 

• PREP-KC will design and implement Career Jumping activities for students at Hogan 
Prep middle and high schools. 

• PREP-KC will provide ongoing access to industry professionals and virtual College 
and Career Experiences for Hogan Prep middle and high school students through 
the Connector online platform. 

• PREP-KC will provide up to 10 hours of technical assistance to build college and 
career exploration capacity for staff in grades 6-8 

 
2. Increase postsecondary readiness 

• PREP-KC will provide up to 70 hours of technical assistance focused on developing 
student programming that leads to all students having the opportunity to earn a 
Market Value Asset (MVA).  Specific supports will include technical assistance 
targeting: 

i. individualized student plans 
ii. student advisory 
iii. industry-specific MVAs 

 
 
 
 
 
 

36 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 
 
Cost Summary 
 
The total cost of the services included in this Agreement is $20,700. PREP-KC is providing a 
total of $10,350 to support the implementation of these services.  The remaining costs are to be 
paid by Hogan Prep and total $10,350. The following table summarizes these costs. 
 

Item 
Total # of 

Day/Events Cost 

District 
Cost Share 

Rate 
Total 
Cost 

PREP-KC 
Cost 

District 
Cost 

Career Jumping 2 $1,600 50% $3,200  $1,600  $1,600  

MVA Development 40 $125 50% $5,000  $2,500  $2,500  
HS Technical Assistance (Capacity 
Building, Partnership Development, 
Scheduling Support) 70 $125 50% $8,750  $4,375  $4,375  
K-8 Technical Assistance (Capacity 
Building and Partnership 
Development) 10 $125 50% $1,250  $625  $625  

Connector Licenses 1 $2,500 50% $2,500  $1,250  $1,250  

Total   50% $20,700  $10,350  $10,350  
 
Hogan Prep and PREP-KC enter into this working Agreement and agree to the allocation of 
contracted days per the MOU at the designated rate. Additional support from the PREP-KC 
team may occur. It could include occasional requests for periodic one-on-one coaching support, 
informal and occasional building walk-throughs conducted by the PREP-KC team, as well as 
participation in planning sessions specific to the implementation of this scope of services.  
These activities will occur at no additional cost, and the frequency of activities will be based on 
the availability of PREP-KC staff time and resources.   
 
Additional student activities or technical assistance days requested by the school or district and 
which fall outside of the scope of services included in this Agreement may be conducted at an 
additional cost to Hogan Prep and based on availability of PREP-KC staff time and resources.  
In such cases, PREP-KC will amend the MOU. 
 
In addition to the costs outlined above, Hogan Prep will provide student transportation for all off-
campus college and career readiness experiences designed and facilitated by the PREP-KC team. 
 
COVID-19 Related Program Changes 
 
In the event of a COVID-19 pandemic-related “Stay-At-Home” orders or similar physical 
distancing measures, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to reschedule services outlined in 
this Agreement or modify these services to be offered virtually. Costs for modified or 
rescheduled activities will not exceed the amounts included in this Agreement.  PREP-KC will 
not charge Hogan Prep for any activities impacted by COVID-19 related conditions if 
arrangements to reschedule or modify cannot be mutually agreed upon by both parties. 
 

37 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 
 
Section B:  Data Collection and Analysis Agreement (Measuring Results) 
The Hogan Prep/PREP-KC partnership will measure progress in achieving district and school 
goals using a variety of student and teacher data. Data will be tracked and monitored via the 
PREP-KC Data Dashboard.  Any personally identifiable information (hereinafter “PII”) gathered 
and utilized by PREP-KC as a part of this enterprise shall be used only to meet the purpose of 
the project as stated in this document and shall not be used for any other purpose falling outside 
the purpose or scope of this project.  Data collection and analysis will include the items listed 
below: 

• State Assessment data – including elementary, middle, and high school scores in 
communication arts and Math. 

• Formative assessment data in math and ELA (e.g., the STAR assessment if currently 
administered). 

• Student, teacher, and parent survey data as related to PREP-KC’s strategies 
• ACT data. 
• College-ready data – the percentage of graduating seniors who are college-ready (as 

measured by completion of college courses and ACT/ACCUPLACER/COMPASS scores). 
• Career-ready data – the percentage of graduating seniors who are career-ready (as 

measured by work-based learning experiences and/or career-readiness certificates) 
• Academy student data – data collection will include the following student-level data: 

assessment scores (EOC exams, ACT series, and Community College Placement exams), 
demographic data, college courses/credits completed, career-readiness certificates, student 
attendance, student GPA, confirmed postsecondary enrollment, a pre/post student survey, 
and anecdotal/observational teacher data. 

• Market Value Assets and Real-World Learning Data, including data on client projects and 
internships, college coursework, and industry-recognized credentials.  

• Graduate Data—Postsecondary Enrollment data pulled from Missouri’s Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Education and the National Student Clearinghouse. The number 
of college applications submitted and FAFSA applications as measured by Hogan Prep. 

 
Occasionally, PREP-KC may find it necessary to request additional student data related to a 
specific implementation goal or to answer questions from funders or business partners 
supporting the work in Hogan Prep. In these cases, Hogan Prep agrees to respond to data 
requests in a timely and accurate matter.  In disclosing data and PII, Hogan Prep is in no way 
assigning ownership of the PII or data to PREP-KC.   
 
See Appendix A for a detailed data-sharing agreement. 
 
Occasionally, PREP-KC may find it necessary to request additional student data related to a 
specific implementation goal or to answer questions from funders or business partners 
supporting the work in Hogan Prep.  In these cases, Hogan Prep agrees to respond to data 
requests in a timely and accurate matter.  
 
Section C:  Partnership Commitments 
 
The Hogan Prep/PREP-KC partnership includes shared commitments regarding: 

○ Resources (funds, technical assistance, and expertise) provided to support key 
strategies. PREP-KC will continue to actively fund-raise on behalf of our partnership with 
Hogan Prep and will continue to direct funds, as available, to our mutual priorities for 

38 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



student outcomes. Hogan Prep will continue to direct funds to these same strategies 
outlined in Section A, and to the extent possible, will advocate for funds from other 
sources to be directed to these same strategies.  

○ Collaboration and alignment. The PREP-KC and Hogan Prep district teams will meet 
three times a year to share information and problem-solve to strengthen implementation.  

○ Communications regarding the Hogan Prep/PREP-KC partnership (including a joint 
commitment to highlighting this partnership on each organization’s website). 

○ Data collection and analysis to assess progress and drive continued improvement – data 
will be collected and analyzed on a set of outcome indicators and a set of “leading 
indicators” or “interim measures” designed to measure progress during the school year. 

  
The partnership framework described above is designed to create a strong foundation for a 
systems partnership between PREP-KC and Hogan Prep. This framework may be expanded 
over time to include additional strategic opportunities that advance the shared goal of college 
and career preparation for the Hogan Prep’s students. 

 
Hogan Preparatory Academy   PREP-KC 
 
Signed: _________________________  Signed: _____________________  
 
Date: __________________________ _ Date: _______________________  
 
Name:        Name:      
 
Title:        Title: _______________________  

39 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 
Appendix A 

Data Dashboard Addendum 
 

This Data Dashboard Addendum (the “Addendum”) is made and entered into as of the Effective 
Date by and between PREP-KC and Hogan Prep School District (the “District”).  PREP-KC and 
Hogan Prep are referred to herein collectively as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party.” 
 
Whereas, PREP-KC and Hogan Prep have executed contemporaneously herewith a 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) for the 2021-2022 academic year; 
 
Whereas, the MOU expresses the Parties’ joint intention to implement a set of strategies to 
better prepare students for success in postsecondary education and careers; 
 
Whereas, the MOU articulates certain resources and services that PREP-KC will provide to 
Hogan Prep and its students; 
 
Whereas, in addition to those resources and services specified in the MOU, the Parties desire 
that PREP-KC will provide a suite of data tools (the “Data Dashboard”), which facilitate the 
collection and analysis of key data relevant to student success and preparation for 
postsecondary education and careers;  
 
Whereas, the Data Dashboard includes enhanced and real-time analytics, customizable 
reporting, and continually updated data;  
 
Whereas, implementation of the enhanced Data Dashboard will require the Parties’ 
collaboration with respect to data sharing, management, and storage in compliance with the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and other applicable federal, state, and 
local laws;  
 
Whereas, the Parties wish to enter into this Addendum to define the scope of their Agreement 
concerning the Data Dashboard and related data sharing; and 
 
Whereas, the Parties intend this Addendum will be incorporated as part of the MOU with the 
same force and effect as though fully set forth therein.  In the event of conflicting provisions in 
the MOU and this Addendum, the provision contained in the MOU shall control; 
 
Now, therefore, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations contained 
herein and, in the MOU, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Term 

The term of this Addendum shall be the same as the MOU.  The term may be extended or 
renewed only by a separate, written agreement between the Parties. 

Purpose and Goals 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the effective collection, analysis, and use of student 
and program-level data are important tools in improving student success and preparing students 
for postsecondary education and careers.  The Parties agree that PREP-KC’s Data Dashboard 
has historically been a helpful tool to Hogan Prep in analyzing de-identified student data and 

40 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



program-level data on student performance and outcomes.  Hogan Prep has identified a need, 
however, for an enhanced data tool utilizing identified student-level data on outcomes and 
college and career profiles so as to better enhance the likely success of particular students and 
meet the goals and outcomes specified in the MOU.   

The Parties agree that, rather than developing a similar analytical tool internally, it is more 
advantageous and efficient for Hogan Prep to enter into this Addendum with PREP-KC to 
provide an enhanced Data Dashboard as a contractor for Hogan Prep.  The Parties agree that, 
but for Hogan Prep’s decision to contract with PREP-KC, Hogan Prep would otherwise use its 
own employees and internal resources to develop and deploy a tool to address the data needs 
met by the enhanced Data Dashboard.   

Through this Addendum, incorporated into the MOU, the Parties intend to secure Hogan Prep’s 
access to the enhanced Data Dashboard, subject to the terms and conditions stated herein and 
provide a rigorous protocol for Hogan Prep to share student level and program-level data with 
PREP-KC, as contractor for Hogan Prep, for purposes of providing the enhanced Data 
Dashboard.  It is the Parties’ express intention that, through the terms of this Addendum, PREP-
KC be deemed a “school official” for purposes of FERPA under the direct control of Hogan Prep 
with respect to the use and maintenance of personally identifiable student records protected by 
FERPA. 

Relationship to the MOU 

The MOU sets forth the Parties’ joint commitment to implement a series of strategies to better 
prepare students for success in postsecondary education and careers and specifies the Parties’ 
Agreement to share the cost of those strategies as specified in the MOU.  In light of Hogan 
Prep’s desire to acquire an enhanced Data Dashboard that analyzes identified student-level 
data, this Addendum is intended to provide the particular parameters and Agreement of the 
Parties concerning the enhanced Data Dashboard and the sharing of data with PREP-KC for 
purposes of furnishing and maintaining the enhanced Data Dashboard.  This Addendum is 
incorporated into the MOU with the same force and effect as though fully set forth therein; 
together, the MOU and Addendum form the entirety of the Parties’ Agreement with respect to 
the services PREP-KC will provide Hogan Prep for the term. 

Compensation 

PREP-KC provides Hogan Prep access to the Data Dashboard in consideration of the promises 
contained herein and the expenditures Hogan Prep has committed to elsewhere in the MOU.  
PREP-KC will not charge a separate fee for access to the enhanced Data Dashboard during the 
term.   

Dashboard Access/Service 

For the term, PREP-KC agrees to provide Hogan Prep with access to its enhanced Data 
Dashboard.  The enhanced Data Dashboard will integrate student outcome data, program 
participation data, and the student's college and career profiles to provide real-time analytics 
and reporting at the student, school, and District level.  PREP-KC will provide login credentials 
for up to 5 District administrators/employees to access the enhanced Data Dashboard.  A 
description of the components and capabilities of the enhanced Data Dashboard is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 

41 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Scope of Data Sharing 

To facilitate the use and implementation of the Data Dashboard, the Parties agree that Hogan 
Prep will share specified identifiable student data, de-identified data, and aggregate data 
(collectively “Student Data”) with PREP-KC.  The classes of Student Data to be shared by 
Hogan Prep with PREP-KC are set forth in the attached Exhibit B, which may be amended from 
time to time as agreed to by the Parties in writing and as necessary for PREP-KC to provide the 
services specified in this Addendum.  The Parties agree that representatives of PREP-KC will 
coordinate with information technology representatives of Hogan Prep to implement an 
automated data transfer system that will minimize or eliminate the need for individual data 
requests made to District staff.  The automated data transfer system will include industry-
standard security features, including commercially reasonable encryption and authentication 
technologies.  Under no circumstance will Student Data subject to FERPA be transferred by 
email.   

The Parties agree that their respective contacts for implementation of this Addendum and 
related data sharing are: 

For PREP-KC 

Douglas Elmer 
Vice-President 
PREP-KC 
2300 Main Street, Suite 340 
Kansas City, MO 64112 
 

For Hogan Prep 
 
Superintendent 
Hogan Preoperatory Academy  
5809 Michigan Ave 
Kansas City, MO 64130 

 
Confidentiality and Privacy of Student Data 

Under this Addendum, the Parties contemplate that Hogan Prep will share with PREP-KC 
Student Data that may include such personally identifiable elements such as student names, 
student addresses, student identification numbers, and social security numbers.  The Parties 
agree that personally identifiable Student Data is subject to the provisions of FERPA, 20 U.S.C. 
§ 1232g and may be subject to other applicable federal, state, and local laws.  It is the Parties’ 
intention that, to the extent it receives Student Data, PREP-KC shall be acting as a school 
official as specified in 34 C.F.R. § 99.31(1)(i)(B) (2018) and will act in compliance with other 
federal, state, and local laws.  To that end, the Parties agree: 

a. To the extent the Student Data is subject to FERPA, Hogan Prep designates PREP-KC 
as a District official with a legitimate educational interest in the Student Data for 
purposes of performing the services and functions specified in this Addendum of which 
Hogan Prep would otherwise use its own employees. 

b. PREP-KC acknowledges that its use and maintenance of all Student Data shared under 
this Addendum, irrespective of whether the Student Data is subject to FERPA, is subject 
to the direct control of Hogan Prep. 

c. PREP-KC acknowledges that the improper disclosure or re-disclosure of personally 
identifiable information from Student Data is prohibited by this Addendum and FERPA. 

42 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



d. PREP-KC agrees that it will hold the Student Data in strict confidence and not disclose 
the Student Data to any third party except (i) as required by law; (ii) as authorized by 
Hogan Prep in writing, or (iii) as permitted or required by this Addendum.   

e. PREP-KC agrees that it will implement commercially reasonable administrative, 
physical, and technical standards to safeguard the security of the Student Data and to 
prevent unauthorized disclosure of Student Data, including unauthorized malicious 
access.  Such measures will include but are not limited to: 

i. Physical copies of Student Data and/or electronic media (such as flash drives, 
CD-ROMs, and hard drives containing Student Data) shall be stored in an area 
that is safe from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours as well as 
non-duty hours. 

ii. PREP-KC will not store Student Data on cell phones or personal devices. 

iii. Any computer containing Student Data or with the ability to access Student Data 
will be subject to commercially reasonable login authentication, and access to 
Student Data files will have separate, commercially reasonable encryption.  Data 
portals are secured through the use of verified digital certificates. PREP-KC 
agrees to allow Hogan Prep to run a script approved by PREP-KC on these 
portals if Hogan Prep deems necessary. 

iv. PREP-KC will provide to Hogan Prep a certificate of insurance, including Cyber 
Security Insurance coverages. 

v. PREP-KC will have a written incident response plan to include prompt notification 
of Hogan Prep in the event of a security or privacy breach, as well as best 
practices for responding to a breach of student information. Such a plan will 
include appropriate provisions for satisfying applicable federal, state, and local 
law governing data breach, including but not limited to FERPA and Mo. Rev. 
Stat. § 407.1500 et seq. PREP-KC agrees to share its incident response plan 
upon request. 

vi. PREP-KC will provide annual training to its employees on the confidentiality/non-
disclosure provisions of this Addendum, as well as best practices for data 
security.  PREP-KC agrees to conduct commercially reasonable background 
checks on all PREP-KC employees, contractors, or agents prior to granting 
access to PII. 

vii. The Parties recognize that certain PREP-KC employees, contractors, or agents 
may visit Hogan Prep’s property in order to obtain the necessary information for 
the provision of PREP-KC’s services. In the event that a PREP-KC employee 
must be unsupervised on District’s property, the Parties agree that before any 
such visits to Hogan Prep occur, all visiting PREP-KC employees, contractors, or 
agents must clear both criminal and child abuse & neglect background checks. 
PREP-KC further warrants and agrees that its employees, contractors, or agents 
who visit Hogan Prep will not have contact or interact with Hogan Prep’s 
students. PREP-KC will indemnify, defend, and hold Hogan Prep, its board 
members, administrators, employees, and agents harmless from and against 
liability for any and all claims, actions, proceedings, demands, costs (including 

43 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



reasonable attorneys’ fees), damages, and liabilities resulting directly from the 
acts or omissions of PREP-KC or its employees, contractors, agents, or 
subcontractors in connection with visits to Hogan Prep’s property as described 
herein. 

viii. The Parties agree that all data collected or held by PREP-KC (including but not 
limited to District’s students’ names and other information) shall be stored within 
the United States of America. The Parties further agree that PREP-KC shall 
maintain all data in a secure manner using appropriate technical, physical, and 
administrative safeguards to protect said data. No data may be backed up 
outside of the continental United States. 

f. PREP-KC agrees to periodically monitor its operations and take commercially 
reasonable administrative, physical and technical measures to continue to assure that 
Student Data is safeguarded and maintained in confidence in accordance with FERPA 
and other applicable federal, state, and local laws. 

g. PREP-KC agrees that it will internally limit access to Student Data to those PREP-KC 
employees who have a legitimate interest in accessing the Student Data in order to 
provide the services specified in this Addendum.  PREP-KC will require any PREP-KC 
employee with access to the Student Data to sign a separate confidentiality/non-
disclosure agreement securing their personal obligation to the non-disclosure and 
confidentiality provisions stated herein.  PREP-KC will, promptly upon request, outline 
for District the steps and processes that PREP-KC takes to prevent post-employment 
data breaches by PREP-KC employees after their employment with PREP-KC has 
ended.   

h. In the event PREP-KC believes it is necessary to disclose Student Data to software sub-
contractors for purposes of designing and testing the enhanced Data Dashboard and/or 
the data sharing transfer system contemplated by Section 6, PREP-KC shall require 
such subcontractor to sign a separate confidentiality/non-disclosure agreement securing 
the subcontractor’s obligation to the non-disclosure and confidentiality provisions stated 
herein.  To the extent that PREP-KC is permitted, under the applicable terms of the 
Agreement, to subcontract or otherwise delegate its duties and obligations under the 
Agreement, PREP-KC is likewise permitted to subcontract or delegate the performance 
of corresponding duties and obligations contained in this Section, provided however that 
PREP-KC will remain ultimately responsible for such duties and obligations.   

i. PREP-KC understands and acknowledges that records generated from a student’s Free 
Application for Federal Student Aid (“FAFSA”) are subject to special protections and 
limited uses under the Higher Education Act.  For this reason, PREP-KC further 
acknowledges and agrees that this subset of Student Data will only be used consistent 
with lawful purposes related to Hogan Prep’s administration of federal, state, or 
institutional aid, including for audits and program evaluations that Hogan Prep deems 
necessary for the efficient and effective administration of those aid programs. 

Compelled Disclosures 

In the event PREP-KC is subject to service of a subpoena, court order, administrative order, or 
other lawful process directing it to disclose Student Data, PREP-KC agrees to promptly notify 
Hogan Prep of the same and, if reasonably possible and permitted by law, delay production of 

44 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



the Student Data unless and until Hogan Prep has an opportunity to object to the production 
with the issuing entity. 

Data Security Breach 

a. For purposes of this Agreement, “Security Incident” shall be defined as “the unlawful 
access to, acquisition of, disclosure of, loss, or use of PII.” 

b. In the event that PREP-KC has reason to believe a Security Incident has occurred, 
PREP-KC shall (i) investigate the Security Incident, identify the impact of the Security 
Incident and take commercially reasonable actions to mitigate the effects of any such 
Security Incident, (ii) timely provide any notifications to District or and, in coordination 
with District but at PREP-KC’REP-KC  in coordination with ident, identify the impact of 
the SecurityPREP-KC or District is required by law to provide, subject to applicable 
confidentiality obligations and to the extent allowed and/or required by and not prohibited 
by Applicable Laws or law enforcement. 

c. Except to the extent prohibited by Applicable Laws or law enforcement, PREP-KC shall 
provide Hogan Prep with a written description of the Security Incident and the type of 
data that was the subject of the Security Incident. 

d. PREP-KC will use reasonable efforts to cooperate with Hogan Prep’s investigation of the 
Security Incident.   

Return of Records 

PREP-KC will destroy or return all Student Data (whether in electronic or hard copy form) to 
Hogan Prep within 30 days of the termination of this Addendum (whether by expiration of the 
term or pursuant to Section 10) unless the Parties agree to the contrary in writing.  If requested, 
PREP-KC shall provide Hogan Prep with a declaration confirming the destruction and/or return 
of Student Data as the case may be.  Notwithstanding the foregoing language in this Section 9, 
PREP-KC is permitted to retain, despite termination of this Addendum, any aggregate level data 
that has been published by Hogan Prep (such as graduate rates, aggregate test scores, and the 
like), or that is otherwise subject to public access under the Missouri Sunshine Law, irrespective 
of whether PREP-KC obtained the data through a public source. 

Termination 

Either Party may terminate this Addendum prior to the expiration of the term with or without 
cause upon 30 days’ prior written notice to the other Party.  In the event either Party terminates 
this Addendum, the remaining provisions of the MOU shall remain in full force and effect unless 
separately terminated by the Parties as permitted by the MOU. 

Intellectual Property 

Ownership of Intellectual Property 

The Parties agrees that the Data Dashboard, its underlying source code, its imagery, its marks, 
any improvements thereto, and any goodwill derived therefrom (collectively “Intellectual 
Property”) is the sole intellectual property of PREP-KC.  Hogan Prep does not acquire any 
ownership rights in or to the Intellectual Property as a result of this Addendum and any use of 

45 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



the Intellectual Property is subject to the limited license granted hereunder.  The Parties 
acknowledge and agree that all course and curriculum materials of Hogan Prep are the sole 
intellectual property of Hogan Prep. PREP-KC acquires no ownership rights to such curriculum 
materials through this Addendum.  The Parties further agree that Student Data is the exclusive 
property of Hogan Prep. PREP-KC acquires no ownership rights in Student Data that is shared 
pursuant to this Addendum. 

Licenses 

During the term of this Addendum, PREP-KC grants Hogan Prep a limited, non-exclusive, non-
transferable, and revocable upon termination of this Addendum license to use the Intellectual 
Property solely in connection with using the Data Dashboard to improve student performance 
and better prepare students for their postsecondary education and careers.  For its part, Hogan 
Prep grants PREP-KC a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, and revocable upon 
termination of this Addendum license to use the Student Data solely in connection with 
providing the services contemplated by this Addendum and as specifically contemplated by 
Section 13. 

No Implied Rights 

No rights to PREP-KC’s Intellectual Property or Hogan Prep’s Student Data are granted except 
for the express and specific rights and licenses granted hereunder for the term of this 
Addendum.  Each Party retains all rights, title, and interest in and to their respective intellectual 
properties, including any improvements thereto, whether created individually or jointly. 

Protection of Respective Intellectual Property 

In the event of any actual, suspected, or threatened third-party infringement of intellectual 
property licensed by the Parties under this Addendum, each Party shall have exclusive control 
over all claims, defense of claims, and proceedings, shall bear all costs of any proceedings, and 
shall be entitled to retain all sums recovered in any action with respect to that Party’s intellectual 
property. 

Insurance 

PREP-KC will carry insurance coverage for damages arising from a failure of data security or 
wrongful release of Student Data, including expenses for notification as may be required by 
federal, state, or local law with limits of liability of at least $1,000,000.  The policy will be a 
claims-made policy with any prior acts exclusion predating the Effective Date of this Addendum.   

Publicity 

The Parties contemplate that they either may issue public statements, news releases, or grant 
press interviews regarding Hogan Prep’s de-identified Student Data and to publicize the 
success of the Parties’ joint efforts to improve student outcomes.  To the extent reasonably 
possible, the Parties agree to provide prior notice to the other before issuing any such statement 
or news release or before granting any press interview; the Parties further agree to collaborate 
in good faith to address any concerns the other Party may have concerning the content of the 
statement, release, or interview, as the case may be.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, either 
Party may, without prior notification to the other, utilize de-identified Student Data in scholarly 
presentations and articles.  In no case will PREP-KC divulge the identity of any student, or 

46 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



student's family members, regardless of the method of publication, unless such action is 
permitted by FERPA and other applicable laws and upon prior written authorization of Hogan 
Prep’s chief executive officer.  

Right to Audit 

Hogan Prep shall have the right to reasonably audit PREP-KC’s compliance with the 
confidentiality and data security provisions of this Addendum.  Hogan Prep shall provide at least 
14 days’ notice of its intent to audit PREP-KC’s compliance unless such audit is the result of 
Hogan Prep learning of an actual breach of the confidentiality and/or data security provisions, in 
which case Hogan Prep may audit PREP-KC’s compliance on 24 hours’ notice.  PREP-KC will 
reasonably cooperate with such audit, including, but not limited to, by making its facilities 
available for inspection and relevant personnel available for interviews. 

Miscellaneous 

Notices 

All notices under this Addendum shall be in writing and shall be deemed effective upon delivery 
in person or five days after deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid, for 
delivery as registered or certified mail, addressed to the respective Party at the address set forth 
below or to such other address as may be designated by like notice.  Unless otherwise notified 
as set forth above, notification shall be sent to each Party at: 

To PREP-KC: 

President & CEO 
PREP-KC 
2300 Main Street, Suite 340 
Kansas City, MO 64108 
 

To District: 
 
Superintendent 
Hogan Prep School District 
8701 Holmes Road 
Kansas City, MO 64131 

 
Entire Agreement 

Together, the MOU and this Addendum set forth the entire Agreement and understanding of the 
Parties as to the services PREP-KC will provide Hogan Prep for the term.  The MOU and 
Addendum supersede and cancel all prior written and oral agreements and understandings with 
respect to the subject matter thereof.   

Amendment 

This Addendum may be amended or modified only by a written agreement signed by the 
Parties. 

Relationship of the Parties 

Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create a joint venture or partnership between 
the Parties or an employer/employee relationship.  Neither Party shall have any express or 
implied right or authority to assume or create any obligations on behalf of or in the name of the 
other Party or to bind the other Party to any contract, Agreement, or undertaking with any third 
party. 

47 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Successors 

This Addendum shall be binding upon and shall ensure to the benefit of the Parties and their 
respective successors.  Neither this Addendum, nor any of the rights or obligations of either 
Party under this Addendum, may be assigned, delegated, or otherwise transferred without the 
other Party’s written consent. 

Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

The MOU and this Addendum shall be subject to and governed by the laws of the State of 
Missouri, without regard to conflicts of law rules.  The Parties agree that any lawsuit arising from 
or relating to the MOU and/or this Addendum shall be filed solely in a state or federal court 
located in Kansas City, Missouri.  The Parties agree that, prior to filing any lawsuit, they will 
make reasonable efforts to resolving their differences by Agreement. 

Third-Party Beneficiaries Excluded 

Neither the MOU nor this Addendum is intended to confer rights or remedies upon any person 
(whether human, corporate, or governmental) other than the Parties.  No person (whether 
human, corporate, or governmental) other than the Parties is entitled to bring any action to 
enforce any provision of the MOU or this Addendum against any Party. 

Headings 

The descriptive headings used in this Addendum are inserted solely for convenience of 
reference and are not intended to be part of or to affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Addendum. 

Severability 

All of the provisions of this Addendum are severable.  In the event that any provision of this 
Addendum is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or illegal, the 
remaining provisions of this Addendum, and the MOU, shall be valid unless the court finds that 
the valid provisions, standing alone, are incapable of being performed in accordance with the 
intentions of the Parties. 

Effective Date 

The “Effective Date” of this Addendum shall be the date on which the last of the Parties 
executes the MOU and this Addendum. 

Signature Authority 

Each signatory below warrants and covenants that she has the capacity and authority to 
execute the Addendum on behalf of the Party for whom she signs. 

Counterparts 

This Addendum may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original and all of which taken together shall constitute one Addendum.  Facsimile or other 

48 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



electronic images of signatures shall be deemed to constitute original signatures, but original 
signatures shall be promptly exchanged. 

Agreed to by the parties: 
 
PREP-KC 
 
By: ______________________________  
       Doug Elmer 
      
Vice President 
 
Date:     
 

DISTRICT 
 
By:____________________    
      Dr. Jayson Strickland 
 
Superintendent 
 
Date:     

49 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Appendix B 
Dashboard Description 

 
Since we first launched our partnership with Kansas City’s urban school districts in 2006, PREP-
KC has operated on the principle that our work must be measurable and demonstrate 
quantifiable impacts on the postsecondary outcomes of the students we serve.  Based on this 
principle, PREP-KC has developed data tools over the past eleven years that make the key data 
needed for strategic and operational decision-making easily accessible, understandable, and 
actionable.  While the current iteration of PREP-KC’s dashboard 2013 has served our partners 
and us well, our collective analytical and data management needs have evolved and have led 
PREP-KC to design the next version of data management and analytics tools. PREP-KC’s 
redesigned dashboard will provide PREP-KC’s school and district partners with the latest 
generation of a dashboard that is focused on ensuring every student is prepared for success in 
college and careers.  
 
Through our ongoing dialogue and shared work with school district partners, we understand that 
teachers, instructional coaches, and building leaders need operational data that ensures that 
the right students receive the right college and career supports at the right time.  We also know  
school and district leaders need powerful analytic tools to assist them with identifying 
opportunities for school- and system-wide growth.  PREP-KC’s dashboard provides both 
features by integrating student outcome data, program participation data, and students’ College 
& Career Profiles to provide real-time analytics and reporting at the student, school, and district 
levels.   

 

50 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PREP-KC’s updated dashboard factors in additional feedback from school district partners and 
experts in the educational analytics field by making the following additional improvements to 
PREP-KC’s data management and analysis work: 

• Automated data transfers with districts’ Student Information Systems that minimize 
time-consuming manual data requests to district evaluation staff.  This will replace our 
current system of numerous data requests to district staff throughout the year with an 
automated data transfer that will require minimal maintenance after the initial setup.  

• Continuously updated College & Career Readiness data that empowers schools to 
provide students with ongoing guidance and support to students as they complete 
College & Career Benchmarks.   Imagine teachers having immediate access to all their 
students eligible for a specific job shadowing opportunity based on their interests, 
qualifications, and progress towards completion of the College & Career Benchmarks—
all with just a few keystrokes! 

• Real-time analytics that gives school and districts the opportunity to adjust 
implementation plans and shift resources to areas of highest need throughout the school 
year.  For example, schools will be able to check the number of middle school students 
participating in IGNITE and Career Jumping events in real time and adjust the number or 
size of events based on this data.  

• Customizable reporting to help districts communicate on College and Career 
Readiness activities with a variety of stakeholders. Users will be able to generate reports 
that look at student progress by any combination of school, grade level, and career 
pathway theme. Want to know how many boys are engaging in mentoring with 
healthcare professionals?  Need to find out how many of your social studies teachers 
have attended a worksite-based professional development?  The updated dashboard 
can answer these questions in a matter of minutes. 

 
PREP-KC launched the revamped dashboard in August of 2019 and will offer free access to this 
powerful suite of tools to all partner school districts.  PREP-KC is designing all elements of the 
dashboard—including data collection, storage, management, and reporting, to be compliant with 
the Federal Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) guidelines and will be updating our Data 
Security Protocols to ensure that students’ data remains secure. In the coming weeks, PREP-
KC will provide updated data-sharing agreements that ensure this compliance.  After updated 
data sharing agreements are signed, PREP-KC will work with district data, evaluation, and 
information technology staff to take the steps needed to maintain the redesigned platform for the 
2021-2022 school year. PREP-KC will also provide training and ongoing technical assistance to 
district staff, principals, and teachers planning on using the system next year.  
 
PREP-KC hopes this powerful, dynamic dashboard provides each of our district and school 
partners with a tool that they can customize to effectively accelerate and strengthen College & 
Career Readiness programming for every student.  

51 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Appendix C 
Data Collected by PREP-KC 

 
Data Class Description & 

Purpose 
Timeline for 
Collection 

Student Demographics and 
Characteristics 

• Number of Students  
• Grade Level 
• Cohort Year 
• Race/Ethnicity Breakdown for 

District per US Department of 
Education Race/Ethnicity 
Categories  

• Gender 
• Free/Reduced Lunch Rate 
• IEP Status (Flag Y/N) 
• English Proficiency 

 

PREP-KC uses this 
data to better 
understand the 
students we support 
and serve and analyze 
who accesses and 
participates in PREP-
KC services. 

September 15 -
November 1 
 

Student Attendance Data (High 
School Only)  

PREP-KC uses this 
data to determine if 
students are eligible 
for certain 
opportunities that have 
attendance 
requirements and to 
gauge improvement in 
students’ attendance 
over time. 

Periodic, but at least 
quarterly.  

Academic Proficiency 
• Course Grades 
• Cumulative GPA 
• Current Semester GPA 
• Cumulative Credits Earned 
• Current Semester Credits 

Earned 
• Dual Enrollment/Completion 

Data 
• CTE Participation Data  
• AP Course/Exam Participation 

Data 

PREP-KC uses this 
data to analyze 
students’ academic 
readiness for 
postsecondary 
opportunities and to 
connect students with 
scholarship, internship, 
and other opportunities 
with GPA 
requirements.  

Ongoing, but at least 
quarterly.  

52 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Data Class Description & 
Purpose 

Timeline for 
Collection 

Progress towards graduation 
• On-Time/On-Track Rates for 

9th graders 
• Graduation Rates (Adjusted 

Cohort Graduation Rate) 

PREP-KC uses this 
data to gauge the 
progress of students 
towards earning their 
high school diplomas 
in a timely manner. 

July-August (after 
completion of the 
school year and final 
calculation of 
graduation/on-track 
rates). 

Assessment of Data 
• State Assessment Data 

(MAP/EOC) 
• College Placement Tests 

(ACT/ACT/Accuplacer) 
• Diagnostic Tests (i.e., STAR, 

NWEA, Terra Nova) 
• Benchmarking data 

PREP-KC uses this 
data to gauge student 
progress in the 
mastery of academic 
skill and knowledge. 

Multiple times a year 
based on Hogan 
Prep’s assessment 
calendar. 

Program Participation Data 
• Academy/Pathway selection 
• PREP-KC Program Selection 

o BFI 
o HealthStart 
o Pathways to 

Technology 
o TechStart 
o Bioscience 

• Individual 
activity/experience 
participation 

o PREP-KC Events 
o Field Trips 
o Worksite Visits 
o Internships 
o Job Shadows 
o Virtual/Connector 

Sessions 
o Guest Speaker/Teacher 

Events 
• Teacher participation in 

professional development 
events 

PREP-KC uses this 
data to determine 
program participation 
and allocate resources 
and space for various 
programs.  

Periodic, but at least 
once per semester.   

53 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Data Class Description & 
Purpose 

Timeline for 
Collection 

Postsecondary Enrollment Data 
• College Application Data 
• FAFSA Completion Data 
• Postsecondary Enrollment data 

pulled from Missouri’s 
Department of Elementary and 
Secondary Education  

 

PREP-KC uses this 
data to determine the 
successful transition of 
each graduate to 
postsecondary 
education or 
employment.  

College application 
data and FAFSA data 
updated periodically 
but at least quarterly. 
 
Postsecondary 
enrollment data 
collected in February-
March of the following 
year.  Example: 
Postsecondary 
enrollment data for the 
class of 2021 will be 
collected beginning 
February 2022.  

Survey and Qualitative Data 
Collection 

PREP-KC uses survey 
data to determine 
student interest, 
analyze feedback on 
programming, and 
forecast future 
programming needs. 

Ongoing.  

 
PREP-KC will work with district personnel to determine the appropriate format for data 
collection for the above items.  
 
 
  
 

54 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Designation of McKinney-Vento and Foster Care
Coordinator

Section: III. Consent Agenda
Item: F. Designation of McKinney-Vento and Foster Care Coordinator
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: BOD_Appointments_FY21-22.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 55 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - APPOINTMENTS 

 
 

Board policy requires the annual appointment of the following: 
 
 

Homeless & Unaccompanied Youth Liaison 
 

The Homeless & Unaccompanied Youth Liaison serves as the primary point of contact for the District's   
homeless & unaccompanied youth. S/he is responsible for the execution of all policies and procedures 
related to identification and support of the District's homeless and unaccompanied youth. This position also 
fulfills the same responsibilities for any identified migrant students. The following appointment is 
recommended for Homeless & Unaccompanied Youth Liaison: 

Name: Jazmine Salach, Director of Student Services 
Location: Hogan Preparatory Academy District Office, P O Box 140133, KC MO 64114 
Phone: 816-444-3484 

 
 
 

Foster Care Liaison 
 
The Foster Care Liaison serves as the primary point of contact for the District students who are 
in foster care. S/he is responsible for the execution of all policies and procedures related to 
identification and support of the District's students who are in foster care.  The following appointment is 
recommended for Foster Care Liaison: 
 

Name: Jazmine Salach, Director of Student Services 
Location: Hogan Preparatory Academy District Office, P O Box 140133, KC MO 64114 
Phone: 816-444-3484 

 
 
 
 
 
 

56 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

KLS Contract Update

Section: III. Consent Agenda
Item: G. KLS Contract Update
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: KLS Phase II Contracts_9.27.21.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 57 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



58 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



59 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



60 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



61 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



62 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



63 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



64 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



65 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



66 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



67 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



68 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



69 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



70 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



71 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



72 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



73 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



74 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



75 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



76 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



77 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



78 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



79 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



80 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



81 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



82 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



83 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



84 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



85 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



86 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



87 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



88 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



89 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



90 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



91 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Finance Committee Report

Section: V. Finance Committee
Item: A. Finance Committee Report
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material: HP - Monthly Presentation - August 2021 .pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 92 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



August 2021 Financials
PREPARED  SEPTEMBER 
2021 BY

93 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 2

Contents

▪ Executive Summary

▪ Cash Forecast

▪ Key Performance Indicators

▪ Forecast Overview

▪ Key Forecast Changes This Month

▪ Financials

▪ Monthly Projections

▪ Balance Sheet

94 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 3

Executive Summary

▪ The WADA decrease of 149’s impact on Basic Formula was partially 
mitigated by an increase of $74 to the per-WADA payment amount.

▪ The forecasted net change from State Aid Budget is $1.14M

▪ KCPS MOU was not initially forecasted or budgeted. Hogan is expecting to 
receive $686K.

▪ Despite the revenue decreases, salaries/benefits decreases, and 
transportation increases annual net OPERATING income has only changed 
by 7.5K (an increase).

▪ Building improvement installments expenses were not in the original 
budget and have a significant impact on net income.

95 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 4

Cash Forecast

$k

 $1.0m

 $2.0m

 $3.0m

 $4.0m

 $5.0m

 $6.0m

 $7.0m

 $8.0m

 $9.0m

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Budget Cash Forecast Cash

$1m 
Loss

157 Days of Cash
at year’s end
We forecast the school’s year ending 
cash balance as $6.61m, 
$1m below budget.

WADA decrease of 149 had a substantial 
impact on State revenue. Along with a 
significant change to building 
improvements and transportation. The 
KCPS MOU has a positive swing of $686K 
to revenue.

Actuals Forecast

$6.61m

96 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 5

Key Performance Indicators

Days of Cash
Cash balance at year-end divided 
by average daily expenses

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

157 DAYS OF CASH AT YEAR'S END

The school will end the year with 
157 days of cash. This is above the 
recommended 60 days

Gross Margin
Revenue less expenses, divided by 
revenue

4.1%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

4.1% GROSS MARGIN

The forecasted net income is 
$660k, which is $1.1m below the 
budget. It yields a 4.1% gross margin.

Fund Balance %
Forecasted Ending Fund Balance 
/ Total Expenses

44%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

43.62% AT YEAR'S END

The school is projected to end the 
year with a fund balance of 
$6,684,366. Last year's fund 
balance was $6,024,239.

97 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 6

Forecast Overview

Forecast Budget Variance Variance Graphic Comments

Revenue $16m $16.4m -$417k State Revenue decrease  on WADA. KCPS 
MOU added to forecast ($686K).

Expenses $15.3m $14.6m -$701k $586K Wage and benefits decrease. Facility 
improvement increase.

Net Income $660k $1.8m -$1.1m

Cash Flow 
Adjustments

-0 0 -0

Change in 
Cash

$660k $1.8m -$1.1m

0

-417k

-701k

-1.1m

-0k

-1.1m

98 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 7

Key Forecast Changes This Month
The August forecast decreased the year-end cash expectation by $1.5m. Key changes:

Annual Change Category Impact On Cash

1,141,826
less cash

State Revenue
Decrease of WADA of 149 is partially 
offset by an increase in per WADA of 
$74. 

843,750
less cash

Facility Improvements
KLS quarterly installments added to forecast.

686,720
more cash

Earned Fees
KCPS MOU 

216,000
less cash

Transportation
Changed Taxi service. Will see some revenue to help 
offset a portion of the expense.

31,000
less cash

Student Expense, Direct
Uniform expenses have associated miscellaneous 
revenue for a net change to the annual forecast of $0

$1.1m

$844k

$687k

$216k

$31k

0
99 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 8

A
n

n
o

ta
te

d
 F

in
an

ci
al

s
Year-To-Date Annual Forecast

Actual Budget Variance Forecast Budget Variance Remaining

Revenue

Local Revenue 181,145 223,637 (42,492) 1,264,556 1,264,091 465 1,083,411 

State Revenue 1,148,806 1,427,472 (278,666) 8,939,446 10,081,271 (1,141,825) 7,790,639 

Federal Revenue 88,673 504,290 (415,617) 4,021,270 4,025,639 (4,369) 3,932,597 

Private Grants and Donations 152,250 - 152,250 1,030,000 1,030,000 - 877,750 

Earned Fees 42,338 - 42,338 729,058 - 729,058 686,720 

Total Revenue 1,613,213 2,155,399 (542,187) 15,984,330 16,401,001 (416,671) 14,371,117 

Expenses

Salaries 1,156,593 1,221,696 65,103 6,820,375 7,330,177 509,802 5,663,781 

Benefits and Taxes 343,936 345,877 1,940 1,911,859 2,075,259 163,400 1,567,923 

Staff-Related Costs 2,420 46,317 43,896 277,900 277,900 0 275,480 

Rent 45,161 33,333 (11,828) 200,000 200,000 (0) 154,839 

Occupancy Service 136,506 175,323 38,817 1,053,811 1,051,937 (1,874) 917,305 

Student Expense, Direct 236,769 188,038 (48,731) 1,159,229 1,128,229 (31,000) 922,459 

Student Expense, Food 12,695 128,825 116,130 772,950 772,950 (0) 760,255 

Office & Business Expense 360,061 151,551 (208,510) 909,375 909,305 (70) 549,314 

Transportation 51,798 131,894 80,096 1,007,363 791,363 (216,000) 955,565 

Total Ordinary Expenses 2,345,940 2,422,853 76,913 14,112,861 14,537,119 424,258 11,766,921 

Net Operating Income (732,727) (267,454) (465,274) 1,871,469 1,863,882 7,587 2,604,196 

Extraordinary Expenses

Interest 14,039 14,390 351 86,342 86,342 0 72,303 

Facility Improvements 281,250 - (281,250) 1,125,000 - (1,125,000) 843,750 

Total Extraordinary Expenses 295,289 14,390 (280,899) 1,211,342 86,342 (1,125,000) 916,053 

Total Expenses 2,641,229 2,437,244 (203,985) 15,324,203 14,623,462 (700,742) 12,682,974 

Net Income (1,028,016) (281,844) (746,172) 660,126 1,777,539 (1,117,413) 1,688,143 

Cash Flow Adjustments 48,365 - 48,365 (0) - (0) (48,365)

Change in Cash (979,651) (281,844) (697,807) 660,126 1,777,539 (1,117,413) 1,639,778 100 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 9

M
o

n
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

s
Actual Forecast

Income Statement Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun TOTAL

Revenue

Local Revenue 137,437 43,709 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 108,341 1,264,556

State Revenue 569,812 578,995 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 779,064 8,939,446

Federal Revenue 60,724 27,949 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 393,260 4,021,270

Private Grants and Donations 0 152,250 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 87,775 1,030,000

Earned Fees 14,977 27,361 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 68,672 729,058

Total Revenue 782,950 830,263 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 1,437,112 15,984,330

Expenses

Salaries 592,180 564,413 562,972 564,957 564,957 564,957 564,957 564,957 564,957 564,957 564,957 581,157 6,820,375

Benefits and Taxes 141,912 202,024 154,339 154,714 154,714 154,714 157,841 157,841 157,841 157,841 157,841 160,235 1,911,859

Staff-Related Costs 1,451 969 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 27,548 277,900

Rent 28,495 16,667 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 15,484 200,000

Occupancy Service 68,843 67,663 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 91,730 1,053,811

Student Expense, Direct 162,185 74,585 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 92,246 1,159,229

Student Expense, Food2 12,695 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,695

Office & Business Expense 251,774 108,287 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 54,931 909,375

Transportation 44,396 7,402 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 95,557 1,007,363

Total Ordinary Expenses 1,303,930 1,042,010 1,094,808 1,097,167 1,097,167 1,097,167 1,100,294 1,100,294 1,100,294 1,100,294 1,100,294 1,118,888 13,352,606

Operating Income -520,981 -211,747 342,304 339,945 339,945 339,945 336,818 336,818 336,818 336,818 336,818 318,224 2,631,724

Extraordinary Expenses

Interest 7,019 7,019 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 7,230 86,342

Facility Improvements 0 281,250 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 84,375 1,125,000

Total Extraordinary Expenses 7,019 288,269 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 91,605 1,211,342

Total Expenses 1,310,950 1,330,279 1,186,413 1,188,772 1,188,772 1,188,772 1,191,899 1,191,899 1,191,899 1,191,899 1,191,899 1,210,493 14,563,948

Net Income -528,000 -500,016 250,699 248,339 248,339 248,339 245,212 245,212 245,212 245,212 245,212 226,619 1,420,381

Cash Flow Adjustments 56,573 -8,208 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 -4,837 0

Change in Cash -471,427 -508,224 245,862 243,503 243,503 243,503 240,376 240,376 240,376 240,376 240,376 221,782 1,420,381101 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



PAGE 10

B
al

an
ce

 S
h

e
e

t
Previous Year End Current

6/30/2021 8/31/2021

Assets

Current Assets

Cash 5,945,002 4,965,351

Total Current Assets 5,945,002 4,965,351

Total Assets 5,945,002 4,965,351

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities -79,237 -30,872

Total Current Liabilities -79,237 -30,872

Total Long-Term Liabilities 0 0

Total Liabilities -79,237 -30,872

Equity

Unrestricted Net Assets 6,024,239 6,024,239

Net Income 0 -1,028,016

Total Equity 6,024,239 4,996,223

102 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Approve August Expenses

Section: V. Finance Committee
Item: B. Approve August Expenses
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: HPA 2021 08 CheckRegisterbyType.pdf

HPA 2021 08 Accounts Payable.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 103 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Accounts Payable
8/31/2021 Hogan Preparatory Academy

 ALL

 ALL

PAYEE:

GL CODE:

9/21/2021 4:15:47 PM ETREPORT DATE:-- All --STATUS:

As of 

Status
Invoice 

DateIncur Date Check Date
Check or 
Trans. #Invoice # Amount Memo AmountGL codePayee/Account

$834.009/10/2021Paid2/26/20218/1/202129728 $834.00 INV 2972812|2542|6332|3945
|3|00000|000

7657942
4

STANGER HOGAN 
PREP ACADEMY

$11,197.8
6

9/10/2021Paid5/10/20218/1/2021INV25830
1

$11,197.86 INV 25830110|2114|6412|0100
|3|00000|000

7657941
8

PowerSchool Group 
LLC 10002163

$1,083.019/10/2021Paid7/25/20218/1/202120210725-
1083.01

$336.22 Alarm Services 
Jul 21

13|2546|6391|6910
|3|00000|000

$654.39 Alarm Services 
Jul 21

12|2546|6391|3945
|3|00000|000

$92.40 Alarm Services 
Jul 21

11|2546|6391|1935
|3|00000|000

7657942
2

ADT COMMERCIAL 
13008172

$323.189/10/2021Paid7/29/20218/1/2021103638 $323.18 Cup Sleeves13|2411|6411|6910
|4|40001|114

7657942
0

PUT-IN-CUPS Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$60.86On Hold7/29/20218/1/202120210729-
60.86

$60.86 60.86--SPLIT--KANSAS CITY WATER 
SERVICES 
000177512 0164342 
6

$2,970.009/10/2021Paid7/30/20218/1/202117212 $2,970.00 INV 1721210|2331|6316|0100
|3|00000|000

7657988
1

K12ITC, INC. Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$100.009/1/2021Paid8/1/20218/1/20214954 $100.00 Quarterly 
Monitoring 
Services

10|2329|6319|0100
|3|00000|000

7656178
7

Unemployment 
Insurance Services, 
Inc Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$0.00On Hold8/5/20218/5/202198855868
90

$0.00 0.00--SPLIT--VERIZON WIRELESS 
242405645-00001

$756.009/1/2021Paid8/11/20218/11/202120210811-
756.00

$756.00 8/11/2111|2542|6361|1935
|3|00000|000

7656210
3

PURCHASE POWER 
8000-9000-0823-
4845

$344.199/1/2021Paid8/12/20218/12/2021901426 $344.19 INV 90142610|2164|0000|0000
|0|00000|000

7656178
8

Aflac T9934

104 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



$168.009/10/2021Paid8/12/20218/12/2021JK201916
8

$168.00 INV 
JK2019168

13|2542|6319|6910
|3|00000|000

7657942
3

Junk King Kansas 
City Hogan Prep 
Academy

$750.009/1/2021Paid8/13/20218/13/202117331 $750.00 CAT6 Network 
Drop

10|2331|6316|0100
|3|00000|000

7656210
1

K12ITC, INC. Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$97.859/1/2021Paid8/13/20218/13/202120210813-
97.85

$97.85 Statement 
8/13/21

13|2542|6482|6910
|3|00000|000

7656178
9

Spire 0763868655

($1,189.0
4)

On Hold8/14/20218/14/202156847444
6

($1,189.04
)

10|2156|0000|0000
|0|00000|000

HUMANA INSURANCE 
CO. 833675-002

$748.299/10/2021Paid8/18/20218/18/202120210818-
748.29

$748.29 September 
2021

10|2157|0000|0000
|0|00000|000

7657988
5

Guardian Group ID: 
00 559210

$13,200.0
0

9/10/2021Paid8/19/20218/19/202121-12407 $4,400.00 Virtual License13|1111|6412|6910
|4|42300|000

$4,400.00 Virtual License12|1131|6412|3945
|4|42300|000

$4,400.00 Virtual License11|1151|6412|1935
|4|42300|000

7657942
7

Education 
Technology Partners, 
Inc. Hogan Prep 
Academy

$33.909/10/2021Paid8/20/20218/20/202120210820-
33.90

$33.90 August 202110|2166|0000|0000
|0|00000|000

7657988
2

LEGAL SHIELD 
0037042

$115.009/10/2021Paid8/23/20218/23/202120210823-
115.00

$115.00 Ice Machine 
Rental - Sept 
2021

11|2542|6411|1935
|3|00000|000

7657988
3

ALL BEVERAGE 
CONTROL, INC. 
Hogan Preparatory 
Academy

$526.759/10/2021Paid8/23/20218/23/202120210823-
526.75

$250.38 816 921-9301 
412 &amp; 
816 942-6394 
034 is for ES

13|2542|6361|6910
|3|00000|000

$205.29 816 444-4497 
940 is for MS

12|2542|6361|3945
|3|00000|000

$71.08 816 444-3647 
940 is for HS

11|2542|6361|1935
|3|00000|000

7657941
9

AT&amp;T 816 A68-
0701 502 4

$3,151.269/1/2021Paid8/25/20218/25/202120210825-
3151.26

$3,151.2610|2162|0000|0000
|0|00000|000

7656210
0

DELTA DENTAL OF 
MO LOCKBOX Group: 
0118-3701

$3,377.089/1/2021Paid8/25/20218/25/202120210825-
3377.08

$3,377.0810|2159|0000|0000
|0|00000|000

7656210
2

MUTUAL OF OMAHA 
Hogan Preparatory 
Academy

GL code AmountMemoAmountInvoice # Payee/Account
Check or 
Trans. #Check DateStatus

Invoice 
DateIncur Date

105 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



$1,062.909/1/2021Paid8/25/20218/25/2021271136 $1,062.90 INV 27113611|2542|6411|1935
|3|00000|000

7656229
5

WIN PRO 
SOLUTIONS Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$975.799/1/2021Paid8/25/20218/25/2021271137 $975.79 INV 27113713|2542|6411|6910
|3|00000|000

7656229
5

WIN PRO 
SOLUTIONS Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$1,233.859/1/2021Paid8/25/20218/25/2021271138 $1,233.85 INV 27113812|2542|6411|3945
|3|00000|000

7656229
5

WIN PRO 
SOLUTIONS Hogan 
Preparatory Academy

$486.739/10/2021Paid8/26/20218/26/202111554554 $175.14 Gas12|2542|6482|3945
|3|00000|000

$311.59 Gas11|2542|6482|1935
|3|00000|000

7657942
1

Symmetry Energy 
Solutions, LLC 61733

$179.649/10/2021Paid8/26/20218/26/202133141180
96

$179.64 Postage Lease 
Inv

10|2321|6334|0100
|3|00000|000

7657973
3

PITNEY BOWES 
GLOBAL FINANCIAL 
0017318476

$100.009/10/2021Paid8/27/20218/27/202198401 $100.0010|2542|6339|0100
|3|00000|000

7657942
6

SOS Pest Control 
Hogan Preparatory 
Academy

$100.009/10/2021Paid8/27/20218/27/202198404 $100.00 Pest Control10|2542|6339|0100
|3|00000|000

7657942
5

SOS Pest Control 
Hogan Preparatory 
Academy

$1,200.009/10/2021Paid8/27/20218/27/2021INV0001R
R

$0.00 Security13|2546|6319|6910
|3|00000|000

$0.00 Security12|2546|6319|3945
|3|00000|000

$1,200.00 Security11|2546|6319|1935
|3|00000|000

7658024
4

Elite Protection 
Services LLC Hogan 
Prep

$1,222.609/10/2021Paid8/27/20218/27/2021INV0002R $0.00 Security13|2546|6319|6910
|3|00000|000

$1,222.60 Security12|2546|6319|3945
|3|00000|000

7658024
4

Elite Protection 
Services LLC Hogan 
Prep

$982.609/10/2021Paid8/27/20218/27/2021INV0003R $982.60 Security13|2546|6319|6910
|3|00000|000

$0.00 Security12|2546|6319|3945
|3|00000|000

7658024
4

Elite Protection 
Services LLC Hogan 
Prep

GL code AmountMemoAmountInvoice # Payee/Account
Check or 
Trans. #Check DateStatus

Invoice 
DateIncur Date

106 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



$698.559/10/2021Paid8/31/20218/31/2021SUM-
021838

$0.00 Elementary 
School

10|2511|6411|6910
|3|00000|901

$0.00 District Office10|2511|6411|0100
|3|00000|000

$223.27 Middle School10|2511|6411|3945
|3|00000|901

$475.28 High School10|2511|6411|1935
|3|00000|901

7657988
4

OFFICE ESSENTIALS 
INC 444346

$46,890.85

GL Code Summary
10|2114|6412|0100|3|00000|000 $11,197.86

10|2156|0000|0000|0|00000|000 ($1,189.04)

10|2157|0000|0000|0|00000|000 $748.29

10|2159|0000|0000|0|00000|000 $3,377.08

10|2162|0000|0000|0|00000|000 $3,151.26

10|2164|0000|0000|0|00000|000 $344.19

10|2166|0000|0000|0|00000|000 $33.90

10|2321|6334|0100|3|00000|000 $179.64

10|2329|6319|0100|3|00000|000 $100.00

10|2331|6316|0100|3|00000|000 $3,720.00

10|2511|6411|0100|3|00000|000 $0.00

10|2511|6411|1935|3|00000|901 $475.28

10|2511|6411|3945|3|00000|901 $223.27

10|2511|6411|6910|3|00000|901 $0.00

10|2542|6339|0100|3|00000|000 $200.00

11|1151|6412|1935|4|42300|000 $4,400.00

11|2542|6361|1935|3|00000|000 $827.08

11|2542|6411|1935|3|00000|000 $1,177.90

11|2542|6482|1935|3|00000|000 $311.59

11|2546|6319|1935|3|00000|000 $1,200.00

11|2546|6391|1935|3|00000|000 $92.40

12|1131|6412|3945|4|42300|000 $4,400.00

12|2542|6332|3945|3|00000|000 $834.00

Total:

GL code AmountMemoAmountInvoice # Payee/Account
Check or 
Trans. #Check DateStatus

Invoice 
DateIncur Date

107 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



12|2542|6361|3945|3|00000|000 $205.29

12|2542|6411|3945|3|00000|000 $1,233.85

12|2542|6482|3945|3|00000|000 $175.14

12|2546|6319|3945|3|00000|000 $1,222.60

12|2546|6391|3945|3|00000|000 $654.39

13|1111|6412|6910|4|42300|000 $4,400.00

13|2411|6411|6910|4|40001|114 $323.18

13|2542|6319|6910|3|00000|000 $168.00

13|2542|6361|6910|3|00000|000 $250.38

13|2542|6411|6910|3|00000|000 $975.79

13|2542|6482|6910|3|00000|000 $97.85

13|2546|6319|6910|3|00000|000 $982.60

13|2546|6391|6910|3|00000|000 $336.22

--SPLIT-- $60.86

$46,890.85

GL code AmountMemoAmountInvoice # Payee/Account
Check or 
Trans. #Check DateStatus

Invoice 
DateIncur Date

108 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



1Vendor Automatic PaymentCheck Type:Payee Type:

Entity IDVoid DateCheck Number Void Check AmountEntity NameCheck Date Cleared

Checking Account ID:

08/20/2021 790.53KCWATERSERX KANSAS CITY WATER SERVICES12520290

08/20/2021 290.00GOOGLEX GOOGLE12520291

08/16/2021 3,649.35VISACARDSEX VISA CARDSERVICES12520303

08/31/2021 2,500.00EDFUELX EDFUEL12520310

08/31/2021 1,964.40BLOOMERANGX BLOOMERANG LLC12520311

9,194.281 0.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Checking Account ID:

9,194.28Automatic Payment 0.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Check Type Total:

1Vendor CheckCheck Type:Payee Type:

Entity IDVoid DateCheck Number Void Check AmountEntity NameCheck Date Cleared

Checking Account ID:

08/03/2021 62.75UNIFIRSTCOX UNIFIRST CORPORATION76410065

08/03/2021 75.50UNIFIRSTCOX UNIFIRST CORPORATION76410066

08/03/2021 73.50UNIFIRSTCOX UNIFIRST CORPORATION76410067

08/05/2021 76.00HOWIESX HOWIES HOCKEY INC.76413568

08/05/2021 467.45SYMMETRYX SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC (EIN
72-1309319)

76413569

08/05/2021 100.00SOSPESTX SOS PEST CONTROL76413570

08/05/2021 100.00SOSPESTX SOS PEST CONTROL76413571

08/05/2021 3,345.44DELTADENTAX DELTA DENTAL OF MO LOCKBOX76413751

08/05/2021 115.00LLOYDSABCX ALL BEVERAGE CONTROL, INC.76413752

08/05/2021 3,495.00PROJECTLEAX PROJECT LEAD THE WAY, INC.76413753

08/05/2021 1,344.00CHAMPIONTEX CHAMPION TEAMWEAR76413754

08/05/2021 281,250.00KLSLEASINGX KLS LEASING ll, LLC76413971

08/09/2021 777.76QUESTARX QUESTAR ASSESSMENT INC76418831

08/09/2021 392.40MIDAMLX MID AMERICA LOCKSMITHS, LLC76418832

08/09/2021 140.00LEXINGTONPX LEXINGTON PLUMBING AND HEATING
COMPANY

76418833

08/11/2021 448.00JUNKKINGX REEVES KC, LLC76426670

08/11/2021 7,442.58MCREALTYX MC REALTY GROUP, LLC76426671

08/11/2021 3,187.08MCREALTYX MC REALTY GROUP, LLC76426672

08/11/2021 799.00PROWORLDX PRO WORLD76426673

08/11/2021 450.00SUMNERONEX SUMNERONE, INC.76426674

08/11/2021 1,500.00NAVIGATEX NAVIGATE 360, LLC76426675

08/11/2021 250.00NAVIGATEX NAVIGATE 360, LLC76426676

08/11/2021 1,590.80POWERSX POWERSCHOOL GROUP LLC76426677

08/11/2021 51,098.91HUMANAX HUMANA INSURANCE CO76426678

08/11/2021 40.00MIDWESTSHRX MIDWEST SHREDDING SERVICE LLC76426679

08/11/2021 96.00MIDWESTSHRX MIDWEST SHREDDING SERVICE LLC76426680

08/11/2021 99.00ICEMASTERSX ICE MASTERS76426911

08/11/2021 3,401.72MUTUALOFOMX MUTUAL OF OMAHA76426912

08/11/2021 3,868.50PROJECTLEAX PROJECT LEAD THE WAY, INC.76426913

08/11/2021 441.64SOLAROCEANX SOLAR OCEAN 2, LLC76426914

08/11/2021 474.60PAYPOOLX PAYPOOL LLC76427117

08/11/2021 3,500.00SIMPSONLAWX SIMPSON LAWN AND LANDSCAPING76427118

08/11/2021 7,402.00FIRSTSTUDEX FIRST STUDENT INC.76427119

08/11/2021 14,000.00EDOPSX ED OPS76427120

08/11/2021 4,400.00JAMESWTIPPX JAMES W. TIPPIN & ASSOCIATES76427121

08/11/2021 41,491.50TICOPRODX TICO PRODUCTIONS LLC76427122

08/19/2021 291.93STAPLESADVX STAPLES ADVANTAGE76506911

08/19/2021 1,239.63SUMNERONEX SUMNERONE, INC.76510300

08/19/2021 10,070.00MOCHARTERPX MO CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ASSOCIATION76510430

08/19/2021 150.00NUESYNERGYX NUESYNERGY, INC76510431

08/19/2021 1,200.00UTILITX UTILITY COST CONTROL76510432

08/25/2021 93.78STAPLESADVX STAPLES ADVANTAGE76540119

08/25/2021 170.10MIDAMLX MID AMERICA LOCKSMITHS, LLC76540120

08/25/2021 350.00LEXINGTONPX LEXINGTON PLUMBING AND HEATING
COMPANY

76540121

08/25/2021 38.95SCHOLASTI1X SCHOLASTIC, INC.76540122

08/25/2021 59.00SCHOLASTI1X SCHOLASTIC, INC.76540123

Hogan Preparatory Academy Page: 1

09/22/2021 2:00 PM

Check Register by Type

Posted; Journal Code CD; Processing Month 08/2021 User ID: NULLT

109 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



1Vendor CheckCheck Type:Payee Type:

Entity IDVoid DateCheck Number Void Check AmountEntity NameCheck Date Cleared

Checking Account ID:

08/26/2021 27.79CHILDSBRIAX Brian Childs76545069

08/26/2021 24,691.47HIGENESX Hi-Gene's Janitorial Services76545070

08/26/2021 4,300.00CITYWIDEX CITY WIDE MAINTENANCE COMPANY, INC76545071

08/26/2021 39.00TECHCYCLEX TECHCYCLE SOLUTIONS76545072

08/26/2021 49.99TECHCYCLEX TECHCYCLE SOLUTIONS76545073

08/26/2021 408.00JUNKKINGX REEVES KC, LLC76545074

08/26/2021 800.00MARKONEX MARK ONE MANUFACTURING, LTD76545075

08/26/2021 800.00MARKONEX MARK ONE MANUFACTURING, LTD76545076

08/26/2021 320.00MARKONEX MARK ONE MANUFACTURING, LTD76545077

08/26/2021 800.00MARKONEX MARK ONE MANUFACTURING, LTD76545078

08/26/2021 350.00SOSPESTX SOS PEST CONTROL76545079

08/26/2021 100.00SOSPESTX SOS PEST CONTROL76545080

08/26/2021 100.00SOSPESTX SOS PEST CONTROL76545081

08/26/2021 880.00SEESAWX SEESAW LEARNING, INC76545082

08/26/2021 2,240.00VANOSDOLPCX VAN OSDOL, P.C.76545083

08/26/2021 409.09KCWATERSERX KANSAS CITY WATER SERVICES76545084

08/26/2021 16,666.67SCHOOLSMARX SSKC EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT INC76545085

08/26/2021 1,206.25VANOSDOLPCX VAN OSDOL, P.C.76545086

08/26/2021 51.86KCWATERSERX KANSAS CITY WATER SERVICES76545087

08/26/2021 9,737.48MCREALTYX MC REALTY GROUP, LLC76545088

08/26/2021 601.78SAVVASX GATEWAY EDUCATION HOLDINGS LLC,
SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC

76545090

08/26/2021 344.19AFLACX AFLAC76545091

08/26/2021 112.33KCWATERSERX KANSAS CITY WATER SERVICES76545092

08/26/2021 18,900.00DISCOVERYX Discovery Education, Myster Science, Inc76545093

08/26/2021 10,650.00DISCOVERYX Discovery Education, Myster Science, Inc76545094

08/26/2021 61,750.00HARTFORD1X THE HARTFORD76545095

08/26/2021 2,199.00APPLEINCX APPLE, INC76545465

08/26/2021 120.00BOARDOFPOLX BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS76545466

08/26/2021 622.96DELTAVISIOX DELTA VISION76545467

08/26/2021 152.00PROJECTLEAX PROJECT LEAD THE WAY, INC.76545468

08/26/2021 745.15GUARDIANX GUARDIAN76545469

08/26/2021 16,675.12LIDDLEX LIDDLES SPORT SHOP76545470

08/26/2021 18,741.07K12ITCX K12ITC, INC.76545471

08/26/2021 534.72MIDWESTELEX MIDWEST ELEVATOR COMPANY, INC76545784

08/30/2021 14,525.40LIDDLEX LIDDLES SPORT SHOP76555097

08/30/2021 170.93DEFFENX WASTE MANAGEMENT76555639

08/30/2021 433.16DEFFENX WASTE MANAGEMENT76555640

08/30/2021 542.67DEFFENX WASTE MANAGEMENT76555641

09/01/2021 100.00UNEMPLOYX UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE SERVICES,
INC.

76561787

09/01/2021 344.19AFLACX AFLAC76561788

09/01/2021 97.85SPIREX SPIRE76561789

09/01/2021 3,151.26DELTADENTAX DELTA DENTAL OF MO LOCKBOX76562100

09/01/2021 750.00K12ITCX K12ITC, INC.76562101

09/01/2021 3,377.08MUTUALOFOMX MUTUAL OF OMAHA76562102

09/01/2021 756.00PURCHASEPOX PURCHASE POWER76562103

09/01/2021 3,272.54WINPROSOLUX WIN PRO SOLUTIONS76562295

675,106.521 0.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Checking Account ID:

675,106.52Check 0.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Check Type Total:

684,300.80Vendor 0.00Void Total: Total without Voids:Payee Type Total:

684,300.800.00 Total without Voids:Void Total:Grand Total:

Hogan Preparatory Academy Page: 2

09/22/2021 2:00 PM

Check Register by Type

Posted; Journal Code CD; Processing Month 08/2021 User ID: NULLT

110 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

KCPS MOU

Section: V. Finance Committee
Item: C. KCPS MOU
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material:
MOU KCPS Charter Funding FY 22 Agreement Draft 8.10.21.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 111 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

1 of 7 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement ("Agreement") is made by Kansas City Public Schools, a seven-director school 
district and political subdivision organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, whose main 
office address is 2901 Troost Avenue; Kansas City, Missouri 64109 ("KCPS") and 
________________________________________ ("Charter School"), a Missouri non-profit corporation, 
whose administrative offices are located at _________________, Kansas City, Missouri 641__.   

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, KCPS acknowledges that the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 

("DESE") has estimated for school year 2021-22 that the amount of state aid owed to KCPS is not adequate 
to cover the state funding payments due to Kansas City local charter schools. KCPS further acknowledges 
that, as a result, DESE takes the position that it will be unable to pay the full amount of state aid to charter 
schools on a monthly basis;  

 
WHEREAS, in order to correct the shortfall of state aid to the Kansas City local charter schools, 

KCPS desires to correct these shortfalls by directly making seven (7) incremental payments during the 
2022 fiscal year to Charter School from the local aid received by KCPS;  
 

WHEREAS, Charter School desires to receive the shortfall of funds and shall report its school’s 
attendance and other Core Data information as accurately as possible to ensure the most accurate 
payment;  

 
WHEREAS, KCPS will only use such information for the purposes of calculating the local aid 

payment and shall be prohibited from using such information for marketing and advertising purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, KCPS and Charter School desire to enter into this Agreement for the purposes of 

establishing a framework for the calculation and payment of the shortfall.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and intending to be 
legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 
KCPS OBLIGATIONS 

 
1.1 Payment Overview.  Due to DESE’s current calculation which created the shortfall of aid to the charter 

schools, KCPS will bridge the gap and directly pay Charter School local aid funds to bring the total 
amount paid to charter schools up to the amount contemplated by the state aid formula. The 
calculation of the gap and payment shall be based on the formula in section 160.415.4, RSMo and as 
per the calculation currently followed by DESE. KCPS will consult with DESE to review its calculation.  
The payment calculation shall be based on Charter School’s current year data.    
 

1.2 KCPS will make seven (7) installments utilizing the payment method described in this section. The first 
payment will be made in January 2022, the second through seventh payments will be made monthly, 
by the last day of each month, thereafter.  The final installment will be by July 31, 2022. Payments 
under this agreement may be set off by any outstanding payment for separate goods and services 

112 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

2 of 7 
 

Charter School may owe to KCPS, if KCPS has billed and not been paid for those services for 60 days 
or more.  Payments to Charter School will be made directly via Automated Clearing House (ACH). 
 

1.3 Installment Number 1.  No later than January 31, 2022, KCPS will remit payment to Charter School 
for the months of July through December 2021 for the estimated shortfall of aid calculated based on 
the payment method under section 1.1.  That payment will be calculated as follows: 

1.3.1 Determining the Total Weighted Average Daily Attendance and Categorical Weightings.   
1.3.1.1 Determination of Total Weighted Average Daily Attendance ("WADA") for KCPS plus 

individual charter schools will be calculated in a formula using the 1) September 2021 
official membership counts as reported to DESE; 2) 2020-2021 attendance percentage as 
reported to DESE; 3) Categorical weightings applied using known information as reported 
and available from DESE; 4) 2021 summer school Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") as 
reported to DESE; 5) 2020-2021 tutoring or remedial hours as certified with DESE; and 6) 
Current year Pre-K ADA estimate as provided to DESE. 

1.3.1.2 Categorical weightings include:  1) Limited English Proficiency ("LEP") counts as filed 
in October 2021 in Core Data; 2) Individualized Education Program ("IEP") counts as filed 
in December 2021 in Core Data; and 3) Free and Reduced Lunch ("FRL") counts as filed in 
February 2021 in Core Data. 

1.3.2 Determining the Estimated Foundation Formula Total and Shortfall per WADA: Total 
estimated WADA, using this calculation, will be applied to the formula calculation to 
determine the estimated local revenue per WADA shortfall for 2021-2022. The annual 
estimated shortfall will be reimbursed at 50% (for the first six months).  

 
1.4 Installment Number 2 through 6.  Monthly, no later than the last day of February through June 2022, 

KCPS will remit payment to charter schools for the prior month, January through May 2022 
respectively, for the estimated shortfall of aid calculated based on the payment method under section 
1.1.  That payment will be calculated as follows: 

1.4.1 Determining the Total WADA and Categorical Weightings.  
1.4.1.1 Determination of Total WADA for KCPS plus individual charter schools will be 

calculated in a formula by using the 1) September 2021 and January 2022 official 
membership counts as reported to DESE and averaged; 2) 2020-2021 attendance 
percentage as reported to DESE; 3) Categorical weightings applied using known 
information as reported and available from DESE; 4) 2021 summer school ADA as 
reported to DESE: and 5) 2020-2021 tutoring or remedial hours as certified with DESE; 
and (6) current year Pre-K ADA estimate as provided by DESE. 

1.4.1.2 Categorical weightings include:  1) LEP counts as filed in October 2021 in Core Data; 
2) IEP counts as filed in December 2021 in Core Data; and 3) FRL counts as filed in February 
2022 in Core Data. 

1.4.2 Determining the Estimated Foundation Formula Total and Shortfall per WADA: Total 
estimated WADA, using this calculation, will be applied to the formula calculation to 
determine the estimated local revenue per WADA shortfall for 2021-2022. The annual 
estimated shortfall will be reimbursed at 8.33% each month (January through May) with 
any adjustments for the previously paid 50% based on changes in total and individual school 
WADA after a second set of membership counts and final FRL counts are added into the 
calculation. 

 
 
 

113 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

3 of 7 
 

1.5 Installment Number 7.  No later than July 31, 2022 KCPS will remit payment to charter schools for the 
month of June 2022 for the shortfall of aid calculated based on the payment method under section 
1.1.  That payment will be calculated as follows: 
1.5.1 Determining the Total WADA and Categorical Weightings.   

1.5.1.1 Determination of Total WADA for KCPS plus individual charter schools will be 
calculated in a formula by using the 1) September 2021 and January 2022 official 
membership counts as reported to DESE and averaged as finally adjusted; 2) 2021-2022 
attendance percentage as reported to DESE; 3) Categorical weightings applied using 
known information as reported and available from DESE; 4) 2021 summer school ADA as 
reported to DESE; 5) Current year remedial or tutoring hours as certified with DESE; and 
6) Current year Pre-K ADA as certified with DESE. 

1.5.1.2 Categorical weightings include:  1) LEP counts as filed in October 2021 in Core Data; 
2) IEP counts as filed in December 2021 in Core Data; and 3) FRL counts as filed in February 
2022 in Core Data. 

1.5.2 Determining the Estimated Foundation Formula Total and Shortfall per WADA: Once the 
Total WADA for Installment Number 6 has been determined as set forth in section 1.4.1.1 
above, the specific Installment Number 7 payment due to Charter School will be calculated 
based on the adjusted estimated local revenue per WADA for 2021-2022 multiplied by the 
WADA for Charter School as calculated by the six factors outlined in 1.5.1.1 and in agreement 
with the final DESE calculations.  

 
ARTICLE 2 

CHARTER SCHOOL OBLIGATIONS 
 

2.1 Accurate Data Reporting.  Charter School shall take all measures to ensure all estimated Core Data 
reporting, including but not limited to student membership count, attendance, and categorical 
reporting, is as accurate as possible to prevent any overpayment of funds.   

 
2.2 Overpayment. Should Charter School receive an overpayment of funds after the July payment, as 

referenced in 1.5, Charter School shall repay KCPS for any overpayment made within thirty (30) days 
of notification of the overpayment by KCPS, but repayment shall be no later than December 30, 2022. 
KCPS reserves the right to review Charter School's final WADA in November 2022 and make final 
billings to or payments to Charter School. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
3.1 Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of October 1, 2021 and shall continue in full force and 

effect through December 31, 2022.  
 
3.2 Termination. Either party may cancel this Agreement with fifteen (15) days’ notice to the other party 

in writing.  Should Charter School close prior to the expiration of this Agreement, this Agreement shall 
be immediately terminated as of the closure date or by June 30, 2022, whichever date is earliest.   

 
3.3 Responsibility upon Termination. No payments scheduled to be paid to Charter School after the 

termination of this Agreement will be paid.  Any overpayment identified after the data reported to 
DESE has been finally adjusted will be due and payable within thirty (30) days after receipt of an 
invoice of overpayment. 

114 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

4 of 7 
 

 
 
3.4 Survival. The provisions of Articles 2, 4, 5, and 7 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement and remain in full force and effect thereafter. 
 

ARTICLE 4 
RIGHT TO INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

 
Charter School acknowledges that the terms of this Agreement are reasonably necessary to protect the 
legitimate interests of KCPS, are reasonable in scope and duration, and are not unduly restrictive. Charter 
School acknowledges that a breach of any of the terms of this Agreement will render irreparable harm to 
KCPS, and that a remedy at law for breach of the Agreement is inadequate, and that KCPS shall therefore 
be entitled to seek any and all equitable relief, including, but not limited to, injunctive relief, and to any 
other remedy that may be available under any applicable law or agreement between the parties. Charter 
School acknowledges that an award of damages to KCPS does not preclude a court from ordering 
injunctive relief. Both damages and injunctive relief shall be proper modes of relief and are not to be 
considered as alternative remedies.  
 
KCPS acknowledges that the terms of this Agreement are reasonably necessary to protect the legitimate 
interests of the Charter School, are reasonable in scope and duration, and are not unduly restrictive. KCPS 
acknowledges that a breach of any of the terms of this Agreement will render irreparable harm to the 
Charter School, and that a remedy at law for breach of the Agreement is inadequate, and that the Charter 
School shall therefore be entitled to seek any and all equitable relief, including, but not limited to, 
injunctive relief, and to any other remedy that may be available under any applicable law or agreement 
between the parties. KCPS acknowledges that an award of damages to the Charter School does not 
preclude a court from ordering injunctive relief. Both damages and injunctive relief shall be proper modes 
of relief and are not to be considered as alternative remedies. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
INDEMNIFICATION 

 
KCPS and Charter School hereby agree and consent to engage in good faith discussions and negotiations 
of any concerns regarding this Agreement.  Charter School shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify 
KCPS, its officers, directors, employees, and agents from and against any and every claim, demand, 
judgments, fines, and expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred by KCPS in connection with any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or 
proceeding, which made by reason or injury reason or injury to a person or property caused by any act, 
neglect, default, or omission under the performance of this agreement by Charter School. KCPS shall 
defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the Charter School, its officers, directors, employees, and agents 
from and against any and every claim, demand, judgments, fines, and expenses, including all attorneys’ 
fees and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by Charter School in connection 
with any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, which made by reason or injury 
reason or injury to a person or property caused by any act, neglect, default, or omission under the 
performance of this agreement by KCPS. No language in this agreement shall be construed as a waiver of 
sovereign immunity by either party beyond the legislative expression in Missouri statutes, including but 
not limited to 537.600, RSMo.  
 
 

115 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

5 of 7 
 

ARTICLE 6 
NOTICES 

 
Communications.  Communications relating to this Agreement must be communicated by electronic mail, 
certified mail, return receipt requested, facsimile, or overnight courier to the following addresses or as 
may be later designated by written notice to the other party: 
 
Kansas City Public Schools: 

Attention:  Name  Mark Bedell, Superintendent 
        Address  2901 Troost Avenue 
           Kansas City, Missouri 64109 
         Telephone:   816.418.7610 
        Facsimile:   816.418.7411 
 

Attention:      Chief Legal Counsel 
        Address:  2901 Troost Avenue 
           Kansas City, Missouri 64109 
        Telephone:  816.418.7610 

               Facsimile:  816.418.7411 
 

 
Charter School:   

Attention:   Name 
       Address  
       Kansas City MO  
       Telephone:  
       Facsimile:  
 
 

 
ARTICLE 7 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

7.1 Construction of Terms. If any provision of this Agreement is held unenforceable by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, that provision shall be severed and shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining provisions. 

 
7.2. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by and constructed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Missouri without regard to any conflict of laws provision.  The parties consent to venue and 
personal and subject matter jurisdiction in Kansas City, Jackson County, Missouri.   

 
7.3 Executed Agreement.  This Agreement will not become effective until the Agreement has been fully 

executed by authorized representatives of each party.  Charter School understands that KCPS shall 
not be obligated to compensate Charter School prior to the execution of this Agreement. 

 
7.4 Amendments.  The Agreement may be altered, amended, changed, or modified only by agreement in 

writing executed by an authorized representative from both parties. 

116 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

6 of 7 
 

 
7.5 Assignment.  No party may assign this agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 
 
7.6 No Waiver. Failure by either party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or to require 

compliance with any of its terms shall in no way affect the validity of this Agreement and shall not be 
deemed a waiver of the right thereafter to enforce any such provision. 

 
7.7 No Third-Party Beneficiary Rights.  No third party may enforce or rely upon any obligation of, or the 

exercise of or failure to exercise any right of, the Charter School or KCPS in the Agreement.  Nothing 
in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is intended to create any rights or remedies of any 
third-party beneficiary. 

 
7.8 Annual Appropriation of Funds.  This agreement shall be subject to the annual appropriation of funds 

by KCPS in accordance with its normal funding practices and/or the receipt of funding by DESE.  In the 
event that funds are not available in full or in part for any of the payments under Article 1, KCPS will 
notify Charter School of the payment amount at least 7 days prior to the date of payment.  KCPS will 
use reasonable efforts to ensure appropriated funds are available to fund payments to charter school; 
however, will not be required to use reserves to make payments. 

 
7.9 Force Majeure.  No party shall be liable or responsible to the other party, nor be deemed to have 

defaulted under or breached this Agreement, for any failure or delay in fulfilling or performing any 
term of this Agreement, except for amounts owed prior to the Force Majeure Event, when and to the 
extent such failure or delay is caused by or results from acts beyond the affected party's reasonable 
control, including, without limitation: work action or strike; lockout or other labor dispute; national 
or regional emergency; flood; fire; pandemic; war; riot; theft; act of terrorism, earthquake or natural 
disaster. Either party desiring to rely upon any of the foregoing as an excuse for default or breach shall 
give notice within ten (10) days of the Force Majeure Event to the other party or as soon thereafter 
as is practical, stating the period of time the occurrence is expected to continue and shall use diligent 
efforts to end the failure or delay and ensure the effects of such Force Majeure Event are minimized. 

 
7.10 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and any exhibits shall constitute the entire understanding and 

agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter covered, and shall supersede all 
prior agreements, understandings, discussions, warranties and representations, oral or written, 
express or implied, not incorporated in this Agreement. 

 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and does each warrant that 
their respective signatory whose signature appears below is fully authorized to execute this Agreement. 
 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE NEXT PAGE] 
 
 
 
 
 

  

117 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

7 of 7 
 

KANSAS CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 
 
By:         Date:    
Name: Nate Hogan 
Title: Chairman, Board of Directors  
 
CHARTER SCHOOL NAME 
 
 
By:         Date:    
Name:  
Title:  

118 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

HPA High School Student Run Store Checking Account

Section: V. Finance Committee
Item: D. HPA High School Student Run Store Checking Account
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: HS Student Run Store Checking Account_9.27.21.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 119 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



120 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



121 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

Academic Committee Report

Section: VI. Academics
Item: A. Academic Committee Report
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material: 15. Academic Committee Report_ September 2021.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 122 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Academic Committee Report:
September

The HPA Academic Committee will track the progress of the monthly Evaluate interim assessment data
tied to HPA’s academic goals.  These metrics will be tracked and reported at each monthly Board meeting
starting no later than the December 2020 Board meeting.  These metrics will track students at each grade
level as well as sub-groups of students in SPED and ELL.  Outcomes from other schools in the HPA area
will be included on an annual basis.

A. Hogan Preparatory Academy’s Assessment Plan
○ Three Primary Assessments and their Purposes

○ #1 Evaluate: Predictive- If students took the MAP or EOC
assessments today, what do we think their results would be? The
results should improve over time.

123 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



■ Evaluate tests are administered monthly. Students are
currently taking the first Evaluate test for this year (9/20 -
10/1).  We will have Evaluate data at our October Board
meeting.

■ What data will the board review each month for Evaluate?
● MPI scores
● Percentage of students in the Below Basic category

124 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



○ #2 STAR: Normed-  How are students performing compared to their
grade level peers across the nation?

■ STAR Assessments are administered 3 times a year in the
Fall, Winter, and Spring.  Students are currently taking the
STAR assessments.  We will have this Fall data at the October
board meeting as well.

■ What data will the board review for the STAR Assessments?
● Grade Level Equivalency (GLE)
● Student Growth Percentile (new)

SGP Example  since testing is still in progress:  MS

125 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



#3 Edulastic: Formative/Descriptive- Describes the learning happening in
teachers’ classrooms. Teachers should monitor student learning and adjust
their instruction accordingly and in real time.

■ Edulastic tests are given every two weeks/ two content areas
at a time.

■ What data will the board review for Edulastic?
● None. This is really data at the teacher and school level,

but here are a couple examples of reports teachers
pulled to inform their lesson planning and instruction.

○ 5th Grade Example: Week 1 and Week 2
○ 7th Grade Example

Full Assessment Plan Calendar
Full Assessment Plan Document (FYI)

B. Principals’ Monthly Data Meetings:  First Meeting was on September 8th
○ Our first monthly data meeting with the principals was on Sept 8th.  It was

more an exercise of practice than analyzing data since students are just

126 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1h_DnLfEU8RhFotszYM40UWB381iXrN7a/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KOy2pUHrYdbEFa8AOKgux6TDgr-yDqmP/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hnsX-mOiSeHX3JXMCLjaVmwUXpYjUEFi/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1TMyEUFAtTUpR-7TfhCQAzjPEzr3wS5PvkjhZZo1jEN0/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1mk5jW7wHWCc4eKXWA6MA1xkmuOwMnC7tSUi8HD9Thio/edit?usp=sharing


still in the process of taking our interim assessments.  However, here are
some of the data principals shared below.

■ Elementary
■ Middle
■ High
■ Virtual

C.   New & Improve:  Ed- OP Data reports to help principals directly with Data
Analysis

○ Evaluate:  MPI Progress Monitoring / Reduction of Below Basic
■ These are directly related to our charter renewal goals to increase

our MPI scores and decrease the percentage of students in the
Below Basic category for ELA, Math, and Science State
Assessments.

■ Principals will be able to get their data from the new Ed-Ops report
instead of calculating the numbers themselves.  We are hopeful
that the focus will now shift to analyzing the data and making
meaningful 30 day plans to respond to trends and needs.

■ MS/HS Principals’ Requests:  Sort data by Advocate
○ Evaluate:  Standards Analysis

■ New:  Standards that have been taught vs. not taught
● Example:  5th Grade Math (elementary principal request)

■ Instructional coaches working with teachers on standards that
have been taught in the classroom and upcoming standards in
units (planning/ reteaching)

■ Goal: Monitor and Adjust instruction to meet students’
learning needs in real time

● Teachers have already started tracking and progress
monitoring data

● 5th Grade Example: Week 1 and Week 2
● 7th Grade Example

127 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1Vl2w-rwse0DcXk9t1tk5VJTjPzU6g9Xn1vrh8ns5QFc/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/154gKP7GGNvgVriqMjoc2s117LfpT2Nl6CinDLvzN8EE/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1x-PBwejW1ex_Y3GCJbBuqENEdSteMD5YctiZTGud5Pg/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1qhTBIVDyR-cegWvWoU7S7kFhcVwC8TFfTRGA_dVXLew/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1P5PLQIooUUuMIt_XLa4BchUQkgEK0WRoHqKRflILFNs/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1Kglpj2TzMFGc-8dGuoA192_cPcJGScO7wF4WtaD6IBs/edit#gid=780645558
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1h_DnLfEU8RhFotszYM40UWB381iXrN7a/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1KOy2pUHrYdbEFa8AOKgux6TDgr-yDqmP/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hnsX-mOiSeHX3JXMCLjaVmwUXpYjUEFi/view?usp=sharing


Cover Sheet

Governance & Board Development Committee

Section: VII. Governance and Board Development
Item: A. Governance & Board Development Committee
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material: UnderstandingCharterPublicSchoolAccountabilityinMO..pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 128 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

This White Paper on charter public school accountability in Missouri is the first in a series of papers

published by the Missouri Charter Public School Association (MCPSA) to promote a better understanding

of charter public schools and the important role they play in providing quality school options to Missouri

public school students. It is based on both state law and standard, and is intended to provide an

accessible, fact-based overview of the mechanics of charter school accountability in the state of

Missouri.

MCPSA would like to thank Rebecca Haessig, MCPSA consultant, for her research and authorship of this

White Paper. The Association would also like to thank the following individuals for contributing their

time, expertise and ideas in conducting a thorough committee review of this paper:

MCPSA White Paper Review Committee

● Engin Blackstone, Superintendent of Gateway Science Academy, MCPSA Board Member

● Charnissa Holliday-Scott, Esq. Director of Education Systems for Kansas City Public Schools,

MCPSA Board Member

● Shanika Harris, Charter School Liaison, University of Missouri Office of Charter Operations,

MCPSA Board Chair

● Mike McShane, Ph.D., Director of National Research at EdChoice, MCPSA Board Member

While we are grateful for these and others’ contributions to this work, MCPSA alone is responsible for

any errors of interpretation this document may contain.

For questions and comments related to this White Paper, please contact Doug Thaman, Executive

Director at dthaman@mocharterschools.org.  You can access this paper directly on the MCPSA website.

You can learn more about the Missouri Charter Public School Association at www.mocharterschools.org.

1

129 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

mailto:dthaman@mocharterschools.org
http://www.mocharterschools.org


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

TABLE OF CONTENTS

MCPSA WHITE PAPER #1:

UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

● INTRODUCTION

● ACCOUNTABILITY, AUTONOMY, ACCESS: CHARTER SCHOOL GUIDING PRINCIPLES

● HOW ARE CHARTER SCHOOLS HELD ACCOUNTABLE IN MISSOURI? THE MISSOURI CHARTER

SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY LANDSCAPE

o The Missouri State Legislature

o The State Board of Education

o Charter School Sponsors

o Charter School Governing Boards

● CONCLUSION

● APPENDIX

o Missouri Charter Law

▪ RSMo. §160.400: Charter Schools defined, St. Louis and Kansas City school districts -

sponsors - use of public school buildings - organization of charter schools - affiliations

with college or university - criminal background check required.

▪ RSMo. §160.403: Sponsoring a charter school, annual application and approval, contents

of application, approval requirements.

▪ RSMo. §160.405: Proposed charter, how submitted, requirements, submission to state

board, powers and duties - approval, revocation, termination - definitions - lease of

public school facilities, when - unlawful reprisal defined, prohibited - performance

report.

▪ RSMo. §160.408: High quality school, defined, replication in unaccredited districts.

▪ RSMo. §160.410: Admission, preferences for admission permitted, when - information

to be made publicly available - move out of school district, effect of.

2

130 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

▪ RSMo. §160.415: Distribution of state aid for charter schools - powers and duties of

governing body of charter schools.

▪ RSMo. §160.417:  Financial stress, review of report information by charter school

sponsor, when - criteria for financial stress.

▪ RSMo. §160.420: Employment provisions - school district personnel may accept charter

school position and remain district employees, effect - non certificated instructional

personnel, employment, supervision.

▪ RSMO §160.425: Missouri charter public school commission created, members, duties -

funding.

o 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship

▪ Standard 1: Sponsor Commitment and Capacity

▪ Standard 2: Application Process and Decision Making

▪ Standard 3: Charter Contract

▪ Standard 4: Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

▪ Standard 5: Fiscal Oversight

▪ Standard 6: Renewal, Replication, Expansion, Revocation, Closure and Decision Making

3

131 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

OVERVIEW

UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN

MISSOURI
Missouri’s charter school accountability landscape is multi-layered. The State Legislature, the State Board

of Education, charter sponsors, and charter school governing boards each play distinct roles in holding

schools accountable. These roles are summarized below. A strong accountability environment helps

ensure that Missouri’s charter public schools deliver value to Missouri students and taxpayers.

The State Legislature
● Drafts legislation pertaining to public education, including charter public schools

● Establishes roles and responsibilities of different actors with respect to charter school

accountability

The State Board of Education
● Formulates regulations for Missouri’s charter school sector

● Evaluates new sponsor applicants and existing sponsors to ensure capacity and compliance

● Approves new schools and charter renewals to ensure compliance with law and regulations

● Publishes annual report cards for charter schools to facilitate evaluation of school performance

Charter School Sponsors
● Maintain a comprehensive new school application process for evaluating new charter

applications

● Negotiate contracts with charter schools that clearly articulate the rights and responsibilities of

each party

● Conduct contract oversight to evaluate performance, monitor compliance, and ensure

autonomy

● Design and implement a transparent and rigorous school evaluation process to assess school

performance

● Make merit-based decisions on charter school renewals based on comprehensive performance

data

Charter School Governing Boards
● Contract with the school sponsor

● Are accountable for school performance

● Govern the school in fidelity to the school charter and in compliance with local, state and federal

law

For more information about charter public school accountability in Missouri, please refer to MCPSA’S

White Paper on Understanding Charter Public School Accountability in Missouri.

4

132 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
1. Accountability. Accountability is one-half of the charter public school “grand bargain” of

autonomy for accountability. In exchange for autonomy (the ability to self-govern), each charter

school is held individually responsible for its academic performance, the expectations for which

are laid out in the school’s contract, or charter. Failure to meet the terms of the charter contract

can lead to school closure.

2. Access. A core tenet of charter public schools, and public school choice more broadly, is the

idea that all students, irrespective of race or ethnicity, family income or geography, deserve the

opportunity to attend great public schools.

3. Authorizer. The entity that gives official approval to, regulates and conducts evaluations of

charter sponsors. In Missouri the State Authorizer is the State Board of Education.

4. Autonomy. Autonomy is the ability to self-govern - charter schools are autonomous, or

self-governing, schools. In charter schools, decisions about key resources - staffing, curriculum,

finances, and how time during the school day is spent - are made at the school level, closer to

students. In exchange for this flexibility, each charter school is held individually responsible

(accountable) for its performance, and can be closed for underperformance.

5. Charter Application. Each Missouri charter sponsor must develop and implement a

comprehensive application process for soliciting and evaluating new charter school applicants.

Setting forth stringent requirements for charter approval and new school openings helps ensure

that only the most qualified charter applicants are able to start new schools, reducing the

likelihood of school remediation and closure down the road. Each charter sponsor must develop

a charter application that allows for rigorous evaluation of the applicant’s plans and capacity,

clearly articulates the sponsor’s chartering priorities, and includes clear criteria for the

evaluation of the charter application.

6. Charter Contract. The charter contract, or charter, is the legal contract negotiated by the

sponsor and the charter school’s governing board following approval of the school’s charter

application. It is the bedrock of the charter school model. The charter contract articulates the

rights and responsibilities of each party regarding charter school autonomy, expected outcomes,

measures for evaluating success or failure, and performance consequences.

7. Charter Public School. Charter schools are independent, self-governing public schools. In

Missouri, charter schools are organized as Missouri nonprofit corporations, with self-determining

boards subject to both nonprofit law and the laws governing government bodies in the conduct

of public business (Missouri Sunshine Law).

8. Charter Renewal. A charter renewal is the extension of validity of the charter contract for a

specified period of time (usually 5 to 10 years, depending on school performance). Charter

sponsors grant renewals to charter schools that have achieved the performance expectations a

5

133 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

viable,and have been diligent to the terms of the contract and applicable law. The State Board

has the authority of final approval over a sponsor’s decision to renew - or non-renew - an

existing school’s charter contract.

9. Charter School Governance Board. As autonomous public schools, each charter school

has its own governing board. Charter governing boards are legally responsible for charter school

performance:  they negotiate and execute the contract with the school sponsor and govern the

school in fidelity to the charter contract and in compliance with federal, state, and local laws and

regulations. Charter school boards are subject to both charter law and laws governing nonprofit

organizations in the state of Missouri. Because charter schools are organized as non-profit

entities, charter school boards are self-determining - board members are appointed, not elected.

10. Charter Sponsor. Charter Sponsors oversee charter school performance to ensure schools

are meeting the performance expectations laid out in their charter. Charter sponsors evaluate

and approve new charter school applications, negotiate performance contracts with school

governing boards and conduct school oversight. Sponsors make merit-based decisions on charter

renewal, remediation, revocation and closure. In conducting their work they are accountable to

the State Board of Education.

11. Closure. School closure occurs when a charter school is not meeting its performance

obligations. Closure is the result of the charter sponsor’s decision, following a rigorous and

comprehensive evaluation of school performance, to either non-renew or revoke the school’s

charter.  Closure can also result from a school governing board’s decision to voluntarily

relinquish, or give up, the charter.

12. State Board of Education. Under the Missouri Constitution, the State Board of Education

(SBOE) has general authority for public education within the state. The Board is made up of eight

citizens who are appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Senate. Board members serve

eight-year staggered terms.  1998 charter legislation establishes the SBOE as the State Authorizer

of charter schools - the entity that gives official approval to, regulates and conducts evaluations

of charter sponsors and charter schools.

6

134 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL

ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI
This White Paper on Charter School Accountability is the first in a series of papers produced by the

Missouri Charter Public Schools Association (MCPSA) to educate lawmakers, city leaders, decision makers

and community members on Missouri charter public schools and the vital role they play in creating

quality public school options for all Missouri students.

Please direct inquiries to:  dthaman@mocharterschools.org

INTRODUCTION

Just over twenty years ago, in the Fall of 1999, the first charter public schools opened in Missouri.

The idea behind this new self-governing, independent public school model was greater flexibility in

exchange for greater accountability.1 In these new schools, decisions about key resources - curriculum,

staffing, budget, and how time during the school day is spent - would be made at the school level, closer

to students. Fewer layers of bureaucracy between decision makers and students would enable these

schools to be more agile and responsive to student, teacher and community needs. It would also enable

them to be more innovative, trying different and novel approaches in educating students.

In exchange for this autonomy, or ability to self-govern, charter schools would be held accountable for

their performance by their own non-profit governance board, their charter school sponsor and,

ultimately, the Missouri State Board of Education. If they did not meet the performance expectations

laid out in their charter contract, they would close.

Demand for this new approach to K-12 public schooling was immediately evident.  In Kansas City, 4,315

students enrolled in 15 charter schools in Fall 1999 - 12 percent of all public K-12 enrollment within

Kansas City Public Schools (KCPS) boundaries.  In St. Louis the following year, 1,330 K-12 students

enrolled in three charter public schools - 3% of all public K-12 enrollment.2

Fast forward 20 years and charter public schools now educate 50% of all K-12 public school students

within KCPS boundaries,3 and nearly 40% of students in St. Louis.4 A growing number of families are

choosing charter schools to educate their children.

4 In St. Louis, 11,730 K-12 students enrolled in STL Charter Public Schools in 2020-21, out of 29,968 total K-12
students.

3 In Kansas City, 13,180 K-12 students enrolled in KC Charter Public Schools in 2020-21, out of 26,523 total K-12
students.

2 Due to a legal challenge by St. Louis Public Schools (SLPS), charter schools did not open in St. Louis until Fall 2000.
41,988 students enrolled in SLPS and St. Louis charter public schools in the 2000-01 school year.

1 National Association of Charter School Authorizers (NACSA): Authorizing Basics: What is a Charter School? (last
visited 6/21/21).

7

135 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://www.qualitycharters.org/authorizingmatters/


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

This White Paper explores the role of accountability in Missouri’s charter public school sector. It is

intended to serve as a comprehensive yet accessible primer, based on state law and regulation, for those

seeking to better understand the roles and responsibilities of different actors in holding charter public

schools accountable.

ACCOUNTABILITY, AUTONOMY, ACCESS:  CHARTER SCHOOL GUIDING

PRINCIPLES

In the early 1990s, a small group of educators and policymakers came together to develop an innovative

school model designed to help improve public schools and offer parents public school options to better

meet their child’s specific needs. This model became known as the charter school model.

This new school model was rooted in the belief that public schools should be held accountable for

student learning. In exchange for this accountability, school leaders would be given the autonomy, or

freedom, to try new approaches in educating students. They would then share what works with the

broader public school system, and all students would benefit.

The charter public school model was also rooted in the belief that all students, irrespective of race or

ethnicity, family income or zip code deserved access to quality public school options.

Utilizing this innovative school model as a blueprint, Minnesota’s state legislature passed the first charter

law in 1991. In 1998, Missouri became the 34th state to pass charter school legislation, with the first

schools opening in Kansas City the following year.

HOW ARE CHARTER SCHOOLS HELD ACCOUNTABLE IN MISSOURI?

The idea of school-level accountability is one of chartering’s most significant contributions to public

schooling. Under the charter public school model, no school has the “right” to operate in perpetuity;

rather, a school must “earn” the right to stay open by demonstrating, through evaluations conducted at

regular intervals, that it is meeting the performance expectations outlined in its charter, or contract.

Missouri’s charter school accountability landscape is multi-layered, with the State Legislature, the State

Board of Education, charter sponsors, and charter school governance boards each playing distinct roles:

I. The State Legislature is responsible for creating laws that govern the state, including laws that

pertain to charter public schools. Initial charter legislation passed in 1998 established the roles

of the State Board, sponsors and charter school governing boards in promoting charter school

accountability.

8

136 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

II. The State Board of Education (SBOE) is the architect of Missouri’s charter accountability

environment, developing the regulations that guide oversight and evaluation of charter sponsors

and school operators. The State Board is also chief accountability agent of the sector, publishing

annual performance reports for individual charter schools and holding charter sponsors

accountable through regularly-conducted performance evaluations.

III. Charter Sponsors oversee charter school performance to ensure schools are meeting the

performance expectations laid out in their charter - the legal contract between the sponsor and

the charter school governing board. Charter sponsors are responsible for evaluating and

approving new charter school applications, negotiating performance contracts with school

governing boards and conducting school oversight. Sponsors make merit-based decisions on

charter renewal, remediation, revocation and closure.

IV. Charter School Governing Boards contract with the charter sponsor and are legally responsible

for charter school performance. This includes formulating school policy and conducting financial

management and operational oversight. As self-governing schools, each charter school has its

own governing board.

Drawing on both Missouri state law and regulations, this paper summarizes the roles and responsibilities

of each of these actors in promoting a strong accountability environment to support Missouri’s charter

public school sector.

I. THE MISSOURI STATE LEGISLATURE

Elected by Missouri voters, the Missouri state legislature is responsible for creating laws that govern the

state. This responsibility includes creating laws that ensure Missouri families have access to quality

public school options.

The state legislature passes laws specifically pertaining to public education, including charter schools.

Initial charter legislation passed by the General Assembly in 1998:

1) Defines what charter schools are, where they can operate, and the types of entities that can

sponsor a charter school

2) Specifies that charter schools should be organized as Missouri nonprofit corporations, with

self-determining boards subject to both nonprofit law5 and the laws governing government

bodies in the conduct of public business (Missouri Sunshine Law)6

3) Articulates the roles and responsibilities of the State Board of Education, charter sponsors, and

governing boards in promoting charter school accountability7

7 For a more complete history on charter public schools in Missouri, see:  Douglas P. Thaman, Ed.D., Missouri
Charter School History, MISSOURI CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOLS ASSOCIATION, 2014.

6 RSMo. §160.400.8: “Meetings of the governing board should be subject to the provisions of 610.010 to 610.030.”

5 RSMo. §160.400.7: “The charter school should be organized as a Missouri nonprofit corporation incorporated
pursuant to Chapter 355.”

9

137 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://www.mocharterschools.org/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1757901&type=d&pREC_ID=1939348
https://www.mocharterschools.org/apps/pages/index.jsp?uREC_ID=1757901&type=d&pREC_ID=1939348


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

The Joint Committee on Education, a statutory committee within the General Assembly8 that reviews

and monitors the progress of education in the state’s public schools,9 is responsible for reviewing the

annual reports of charter sponsors to ensure they are in compliance with state law.10

State lawmakers are accountable to voters through regular elections.

II. THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Under the state’s Constitution, the State Board of Education (SBOE) has general authority for public

education within Missouri.11 The Board is made up of eight citizens who are appointed by the Governor

and confirmed by the Senate. Board members serve eight-year staggered terms.12

1998 charter legislation establishes the SBOE as the State Authorizer of charter schools - the entity that

gives official approval to, regulates and conducts evaluations of charter sponsors and charter schools.

As State Authorizer the State Board is both architect of Missouri’s charter accountability environment,

and chief accountability agent.  The SBOE is responsible for:

1) Formulating regulations13 to guide Missouri’s charter sector

2) Evaluating new sponsor applicants and existing charter sponsors to ensure performance criteria

in both statute and regulations are met. This evaluation authority entails sanctioning sponsors,

or removing sponsorship authority, as needed

3) Granting final approval to new schools and charter renewals14

4) Calculating and publishing annual report cards for individual charter schools, to facilitate the

charter school sponsor’s evaluation of school performance15

The State Board of Education is accountable to the Governor of Missouri and the state legislature. The

State Board is supported by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE), which both

staffs and advises the State Board in conducting its work.

15 RSMo. §160.405.15

14 RSMo. §160.405.3

13 Regulations are rules and directives made and maintained by an authority, in this case the State Board of
Education.

12 Id.

11 See MO DEPARTMENT OF ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION: About the State Board

10 RSMo. §160.400.12: “Sponsors receiving funds under subsection 11 of this section shall be required to submit
annual reports to the joint committee on education demonstrating they are in compliance with subsection 17 of
this section.”

9 See generally, MISSOURI JOINT COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

8 Joint Committees are committees made up of both members of the House and members of the Senate. Statutory
Committees are committees established by law.

10

138 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://dese.mo.gov/state-board-education/about-state-board
https://www.senate.mo.gov/jced/


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

1. Formulating Regulations. As State Authorizer of charter schools, the SBOE is responsible for

developing the regulations that guide Missouri’s charter school sector.16 These regulations include the

Standards for Charter Sponsorship, which provide the foundation for both the application and evaluation

processes for charter school sponsors.17

The “Standards for Charter Sponsorship”18 lay out the State Board’s expectations of sponsors’ role in

promoting charter school accountability and compliance in six main areas:

MISSOURI STANDARDS FOR CHARTER SPONSORSHIP

1) Sponsor Commitment and Capacity
2) Application Process and Decision Making
3) Charter Contract

4) Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation
5) Fiscal Oversight
6) Renewal, Replication, Expansion and

Revocation

Each of the six sponsorship standards is accompanied by a summary overview and a detailed explanation

of what is required of sponsors to meet the Standard criteria.

Sponsorship Standard 4 - Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation, outlines what is required of sponsors in this

realm:

Standard 4:  Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation.19 The sponsor conducts charter school oversight

that evaluates charter school performance; monitors charter school compliance with both

federal and state statutes and regulations; ensures charter school autonomy; protects student

rights; informs charter school intervention, probation, revocation, and renewal decisions; and

provides annual public reports on charter school performance. The sponsor shall—

(A) Implement a comprehensive performance accountability and compliance monitoring system

that -

1. Is defined in the charter contract

2. Provides the sponsor with the information necessary to make thorough and evidence-

based intervention, probation, renewal, non-renewal, and revocation decisions; and

19 5 CSR 20-100.260, DESE Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 4 – Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

18 See appendix for complete Standards of Charter Sponsorship.

17 RSMo. §160.400.17(1): “The state board shall notify each sponsor of the standards for sponsorship of

charter schools, delineating both what is mandated by statute and what best practices dictate.”

16 Other regulations developed by SBOE/DESE that guide charter practice include:  5 CSR 20-100.265 Charter School
Closure; 5 CSR 20-100.270 Charter Sponsorship Inflation Adjustment; 5 CSR 20-100.280 Charter School Expedited
Renewal Application Process. These rules and regulations can be accessed via the Missouri Secretary of State
website.

11

139 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://www.sos.mo.gov/cmsimages/adrules/csr/current/5csr/5c20-100.pdf
https://www.sos.mo.gov/cmsimages/adrules/csr/current/5csr/5c20-100.pdf


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

3. Effectively streamlines federal, state, and local performance expectations and

compliance requirements while protecting charter school autonomy and minimizing

charter school administrative and reporting burdens

(B) Define and communicate this performance accountability and compliance monitoring system

to charter schools, including the process, methods, and timing of gathering and reporting

charter school performance and compliance data;

(C) Visit each charter school as appropriate and necessary for collecting data that cannot

otherwise be obtained and in accordance with the contract, while ensuring that the frequency,

purposes, and methods of such visits respect charter school autonomy and avoids operational

interference;

(D) Communicate regularly with charter schools, as needed, including both school leaders and

governing boards, and provide timely notice of contract violations, performance deficiencies,

and mandated interventions, including probationary status

(E) Evaluate and publish on the sponsor’s website an annual performance report for each charter

school, which shall include an analysis of each charter school’s performance and progress toward

meeting the expectations and targets stated in the charter contract, including subgroup

performance and essential compliance requirements, and clearly communicate evaluation

results to the charter school’s governing board and leadership;

(F) Refrain from directing charter school decisions or choices that are appropriately within a

school’s purview under the charter law or contract.

Standard 4 goes on to address the monitoring of compliance with all state and federal requirements and

guidelines regarding service to students (G); oversight of enrollment and admissions processes (I, J); the

charter board’s compliance with various laws (K); and ensuring charter board members awareness and

access to professional development and training opportunities (L).

Collectively, these Standards of Charter Sponsorship provide a blueprint, or playbook, for sponsors

regarding their roles and responsibilities as charter sponsors.

2.  Evaluating New Sponsor Applicants and Existing Charter Sponsors. The State Board of

Education determines who is eligible to sponsor charter schools, and who may continue to sponsor

charter schools, through its evaluation processes for both new sponsor applicants and existing sponsors.

Evaluating New Sponsor Applicants. State statute dictates the type of organizations and institutions that

are eligible to become charter sponsors.20 It also dictates the process and content of a new sponsor

20 RSMo. §160.400.3

12

140 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

application. Interested eligible sponsors have the opportunity, once a year, to submit an application that

includes:

1) Written notification of intent to serve as a charter school sponsor

2) Evidence of budget and sponsor capacity

3) An outline of the Request for Proposal that the applicant sponsor would, if approved, issue

to solicit charter school applicants

4) The performance contract the applicant sponsor would, if approved, use to evaluate the

schools it sponsors

5) The applicant sponsor’s renewal, revocation, and nonrenewal processes21

Standards for Charter Sponsorship provide more detail and specify additional criteria that new sponsor

applicants must meet to become sponsors.22 For applicants that are approved by the State Board, the

Department of Elementary and Secondary Education executes a six-year, renewable sponsorship

contract.23

Evaluating Existing Sponsors. The most important lever the SBOE has to ensure sponsor performance,

decision making and compliance over time is the authority to evaluate sponsor performance.  The State

Board determines, based on this evaluation, whether the sponsor’s authority to sponsor schools should

be renewed, remediated or removed.

By law, SBOE evaluations of charter sponsors must be conducted every three years:

“The state board shall evaluate sponsors to determine compliance with these standards

every three years. The evaluation shall include a sponsor's policies and procedures in the

areas of charter application approval; required charter agreement terms and content;

sponsor performance evaluation and compliance monitoring; and charter renewal,

intervention, and revocation decisions. Nothing shall preclude the department from

undertaking at any time for cause.”24

The current sponsor evaluation framework was developed by the Department of Elementary and

Secondary Education in collaboration with school sponsors and national experts. Evaluations are

conducted by DESE, with findings presented to the State Board.

Based on these findings, the State Board makes a decision of:

1) Renewal: The sponsor is found to be in full compliance with statute and standard.

24 RSMo. §160.400.17(1)

23 RSMo. §160.403.4

22 The SBOE has authorized one new sponsor, the Kansas City Public Schools district, since 2012.

21 RSMo. §160.403.2

13

141 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

2) Remediation: The sponsor is found to be in “material noncompliance”25 with statute

and/or standard and given “reasonable time for remediation” to address sponsorship

deficiencies.26

3) Corrective Action: If remediation does not address the compliance issues, corrective

action may be recommended, such as withholding sponsor funding or suspending

sponsorship authority.27

4) Removal of sponsorship authority: The authority to sponsor charter schools is removed.

If, after a sponsor has been found to be in material noncompliance, its remediation efforts are

insufficient, the State Board has the power to take corrective action by withholding funding and/or

suspending sponsorship authority to new or existing schools.28

3.  Approving new schools and charter renewals. As State Authorizer, the State Board has final
approval over both the decision a sponsor has made to approve the opening of a new charter school or
to renew an existing school’s charter.

When a new charter school is approved by a sponsor, the school’s charter application must be submitted
by the sponsor to the State Board, which has 60 days to approve or deny the application based on
whether a) the application meets the requirements laid out in state charter law and b) the sponsor has
met its requirements as a charter sponsor under the law.29 Once negotiated, new charter contracts are
approved for an initial term of five years.30

The State Board also has the authority of final approval over a sponsor’s decision to renew - or
non-renew - an existing school’s charter contract, based on whether the sponsor is in compliance with
law and standard and the school meets renewal objectives under statute.31 The State Board and DESE
must adhere to statute in making these decisions.32 Renewals are granted for a five-year period or, in the
case of schools who meet the definition of “high quality” under state law, for up to ten years.33

33 RSMo. §160.408.3

32 Ashley Jost, Gordon Parks Elementary Court Battle Could Indicate Future Legislative Involvement, (The Missouri
Times), July 30, 2013.

31 RSMo. §160.405.9(3)(d): “If a charter school sponsor demonstrates the objectives identified in this subdivision,
the state board of education shall renew the school's charter.”

30 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 3 – Charter Contract (A); RSMo. §160.405.1(9)

29 RSMo. §160.405.3: “The SBOE may deny a charter on grounds that the application fails to meet the requirements
of sections 160.400 to 160.425 and section 167.349 or that a charter sponsor previously failed to meet the
statutory responsibilities of a charter sponsor.”

28 Id.

27 RSMo. §160.400.17(2)

26 “Reasonable time” is not defined by statute - and is thus determined by the SBOE.

25 Material noncompliance exists when a party exhibits a continual pattern of noncompliance, or when a party
demonstrates an inability or an unwillingness to resolve any noncompliance matter in a timely manner.

14

142 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://themissouritimes.com/gordon-parks-elementary-court-battle-could-indicate-future-legislative-%20involvement/


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

4.  Calculating and publishing annual report cards for individual charter schools. The State
Board, supported by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, is also responsible for
calculating and publishing an annual performance report (APR) for each charter school in the same
manner that these reports are calculated and published for school districts and district school
buildings.34

The APR is a criterion used to determine where charter schools are permitted to operate,35 whether or
not a school meets the designation of “high quality” under state law,36 and whether or not a school is
eligible for an expedited charter renewal process.37 It is also included in the monitoring plan under which
charter sponsors evaluate the academic performance of students enrolled in the charter school,38 and is
used to determine performance consequences in charter school contracts.39

III.  CHARTER SPONSORS

In Missouri, charter sponsors are responsible for ensuring that charter schools uphold their contractual

obligations laid out in the school’s charter contract. The following types of organizations are eligible to

sponsor charter schools, pending approval of their sponsorship application:

● The school board of a district, in any district which is sponsoring a charter school

● Public four-year colleges or universities with approved teacher education programs that meet

regional or national accreditation standards

● A community college, the service area of which encompasses some portion of the district

● Private four-year colleges or universities with over 1000 students that are based in Missouri and

have an approved teacher preparation program

● Any two-year private vocational or technical school that is a 501(c)3 nonprofit organization and

has its primary campus in Missouri40

● The Missouri Charter Public School Commission, created by law in 201241

Under statute, approved charter sponsors are responsible for:

41 RSMo. §160.425: The Missouri Charter Public School Commission was created by statute “to sponsor high quality
charter schools throughout the state of Missouri.” The Commission is composed of nine members appointed by the
governor, by and with the advice and consent of the senate.  While subject to the same laws and standards as
other Missouri charter sponsors, the Commission was not subject to the new sponsor application process. RSMo.
§160.403.2(3). “In the event that the SBOE removes the authority to sponsor a currently operating charter school
under any provision of the law, the Missouri Charter Public School Commission becomes sponsor of the school"
RSMo. §160.425.17(4).

40 RSMo. §160.400.3

39 RSMo. §160.400.11(3)

38 RSMo. §150.405.3

37 RSMo. §160.405.9(d)

36 RSMo. §160.408.1(1)

35 RSMo. §160.400.2(4)

34 RSMo. §160.405.15

15

143 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

1) Maintaining a comprehensive new school application process for evaluating new charter

applications

2) Negotiating contracts with charter schools that clearly articulate the rights and responsibilities

of each party

3) Conducting contract oversight to evaluate performance, monitor compliance, and ensure

autonomy

4) Designing and implementing a transparent and rigorous school evaluation process to make

merit-based renewal decisions42

5) Making merit-based decisions on charter school renewals using comprehensive performance

data

In conducting all of this work, sponsors must also protect charter school autonomy, or their ability to

self-govern.

Charter sponsors are accountable to the State Board of Education and are evaluated by the State Board

according to a comprehensive performance framework every three years.43

1. Maintaining a comprehensive new school application process. Each Missouri charter sponsor

must develop and implement a comprehensive application process for soliciting and evaluating new

charter applicants.44 Setting forth stringent requirements for charter approval and new school openings

helps ensure that only the most qualified charter applicants are able to start new schools, reducing the

likelihood of school remediation and closure down the road.

According to Standard: “The sponsor shall...develop and make readily available a charter application

that:

● Includes comprehensive questions to elicit the information needed for a rigorous evaluation of

the applicant’s plans and capacity

● Clearly articulates any chartering priorities the sponsor may have established, including the

priority to serve high risk students

● Includes clear criteria for the evaluation of charter applications45

45 Id. at Standard 2(B)2 - Application Process and Decision Making

44 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 2 - Application Process and Decision Making:
“The sponsor implements a comprehensive application process that includes clear application materials and
guidance; follows fair, transparent procedures, timelines and rigorous evaluation criteria; and approves only those
charter applications that demonstrate a strong capacity to establish and operate quality charter schools.”

43 RSMo. §160.400.17(1)

42 RSMo. §160.400.11

16

144 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

Sponsors evaluate applications from prospective schools based on this comprehensive process

and grant charters only to qualified applicants who demonstrate a strong capacity to establish

and operate quality schools.

For charter applications that are denied,46 sponsors must promptly notify the applicant in writing

explaining the factors that determined the decision.47

2. Negotiating contracts with charter schools. The charter contract articulates the rights and

responsibilities of each party regarding charter school autonomy, expected outcomes, measures for

evaluating success or failure, and performance consequences.48 It is negotiated and executed by the

charter sponsor and charter school governing board after sponsor approval of the charter application.

The charter contract is the bedrock of the charter school model.  It defines the standards for

intervention, probation, renewal, non-renewal, and revocation, as well as the consequences for not

meeting those standards. It includes a set of reasonable pre-opening requirements or conditions for

opening to ensure that new schools meet all health, safety, and other legal requirements prior to

opening. And it lays out the process that charter schools and sponsors must follow to amend charter

contracts and the types of material modifications that require sponsor approval.49

The charter contract also includes a performance contract.50 This contract includes clearly defined

performance expectations for all students and student subgroups, financial performance expectations

(measuring both near and long-term financial health); and organizational performance expectations,

including compliance with all governance-related laws, the fulfillment of all state and federal

requirements regarding fair and appropriate service to students with disabilities, and the maintenance of

a safe and operationally sound facility.51

3. Conducting contract oversight. Strong charter school accountability depends on rigorous contract

oversight.

Oversight begins with monitoring of a new charter school’s pre-opening activities and continues

throughout the duration of the charter contract, culminating in the charter renewal process.52

52 RSMo. §160.405.1(11)

51 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 3(B)3 - Charter Contract

50 RSMo. §160.405: “The charter should include a legally binding performance contract that describes the
obligations and responsibilities of the school and the sponsor.”

49 Id. at Standard 3(A)3 - Charter Contract

48 Id., Standard 3 - Charter Contract

47 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standard 2(K) - Application Process and Decision Making

46 RSMo. §160.405.2(4): “If a proposed charter is denied by a sponsor, the proposed charter may be submitted to
the state board of education, along with the sponsor’s written reasons for its denial. If the state board determines
that the application meets the requirements of this section, that the applicant is sufficiently qualified to operate
the charter school, and that granting a charter to the applicant would be likely to provide educational benefit to the
children of the district, the state board may grant a charter and act as sponsor of the charter school.”

17

145 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

Sponsors review schools’ academic, fiscal and operational performance on an annual basis. They monitor

school compliance with both federal and state statutes and regulations.  When schools are out of

compliance, sponsors conduct interventions or suggest remedial action to ensure compliance.

They protect student and school rights by ensuring roles and responsibilities are upheld according to

contract terms.

And sponsors monitor charter board compliance with governance-related laws, including:  retention of

necessary board records, submission of financial interest statements, maintenance of conflict-of-interest

policies and procedures, maintenance of policy to address parent or guardian grievances, and conducting

board and committee work in adherence with Missouri’s Open Records and Meetings (Sunshine) Law.53 54

In conducting this work, sponsors communicate regularly with charter school leaders and governing

boards and provide timely notice of contract violations, performance deficiencies, and mandated

interventions, including probationary status.55

Ongoing contract oversight informs school intervention, probation, revocation and renewal decisions.

Sponsors may revoke a charter at any time during the charter term if there is clear evidence of

underperformance or violation of law or the public trust that imperils students or public funds.56

4. Designing and implementing a transparent and rigorous school evaluation process. Ongoing

contract oversight culminates in a more comprehensive evaluation process, conducted by the charter

sponsor prior to the expiration of the school’s charter. This evaluation process ultimately leads to the

sponsor making a merit-based decision on whether the school should continue operating, close or face

some type of remediation.

The charter renewal process, which occurs every five to ten years depending on the length of the

school’s charter, is based on a thorough analysis of a comprehensive body of objective evidence. It takes

into account whether:57

● The charter school has maintained results on its annual performance report that meet or

exceed the district in which the charter school is located based on the performance

standards that are applicable to the grade-level configuration of both the charter school

and the district in which the charter school is located in three of the last four school

years

57 RSMo. §160.405.9(2)(b)

56 Id., Standard 6(H) - Renewal, Replication, Expansion, Revocation and Closure Decision Making

55 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 4(D) - Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

54 Eric Schmitt: Missouri Sunshine Law:  Open Meetings and Records Law, OFFICE OF MISSOURI ATTORNEY
GENERAL (2019)

53 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 4(K) - Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

18

146 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://ago.mo.gov/docs/default-source/publications/missourisunshinelaw.pdf?sfvrsn=4#:~:text=The%20Sunshine%20Law%20declares%20Missouri's,unless%20otherwise%20provided%20by%20law.
https://ago.mo.gov/docs/default-source/publications/missourisunshinelaw.pdf?sfvrsn=4#:~:text=The%20Sunshine%20Law%20declares%20Missouri's,unless%20otherwise%20provided%20by%20law.


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

● The charter school is organizationally and fiscally viable, determining at a minimum that the

school does not have:

○ A negative balance in its operating funds

○ A combined balance of less than three percent of the amount expended for such funds

during the previous fiscal year; or

○ Expenditures that exceed receipts for the most recently completed fiscal year

● The charter school is in compliance with its legally-binding performance contract and charter law

Sponsors provide each charter school, in advance of the renewal decision, with a cumulative report that

summarizes the school’s performance over the charter term and compares it to the expectations set

forth in the charter contract. The performance report states the sponsor’s summary findings and its

renewal prospects.58

5. Making merit-based decisions on charter school renewals.59 Charter sponsors use the

information and analysis gathered through the comprehensive school evaluation process to make

merit-based decisions on granting charter school renewals.

● Renewal. Sponsors grant charter renewals to charter schools that have achieved the

performance expectations and corresponding targets stated in the charter contract, are

organizationally and fiscally viable, and have been diligent to the terms of the contract and

applicable law.

● Probation. The sponsor may place the charter school on probationary status to allow the

implementation of a remedial plan, which may require a change of methodology, a change in

leadership, or both. If such plan is unsuccessful, the charter may be revoked.

● Non-renewal. In the event that a school has not achieved those expectations, the sponsor can

make a decision to non-renew the school’s charter. Non-renewal generally leads to school

closure.

● Revocation. A sponsor has the authority to revoke a charter during the charter term if there is

either:  a) clear evidence of underperformance as demonstrated in the charter school’s annual

performance report in three of the last four school years; or, b) a violation of the law or public

trust that imperils students or public funds. Revocation constitutes immediate intervention with

parameters to close.

In executing all of these responsibilities – from maintaining a new school application process to making

data-driven decisions about charter renewals – the charter sponsor is charged with protecting school

autonomy, the school’s ability to self-govern.

59 In some cases, the charter school board, in consultation with the sponsor, may choose to voluntarily relinquish, or
give up, the school’s charter rather than pursue charter renewal. This action results in school closure.

58 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 6(B) - Renewal, Replication, Expansion,
Revocation and Closure Decision Making

19

147 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

Statute dictates that charter contracts are negotiated to clearly articulate the rights

and responsibilities of each party regarding school autonomy60 and that contract oversight should ensure

autonomy under applicable law.61 Sponsorship Standards are more prescriptive, directing sponsors to

“Refrain from directing charter school decisions or choices that are appropriately within a school’s

purview under the charter law or contract,”62 to “avoid operational interference,”63 and to streamline

performance expectations and compliance requirements while “protecting autonomy and minimizing

school administrative and reporting burdens.”64

Who pays for charter sponsorship? The financial relationship between sponsors and charter schools is

structured to preserve charter school autonomy while protecting sponsors’ ability to provide impartial

oversight.

Sponsors are not allowed to receive any fees from charter school applicants, nor may they condition

consideration of a charter on the promise of future payment of any kind.65

To defray the costs associated with sponsorship, the Department of Elementary and Secondary

Education retains 1.5 percent of each charter school’s state and local funding, not to exceed $125,000

annually.66 If the sponsor meets its obligations under law, the Department sends these funds to the

school’s sponsor.67

It must also demonstrate that 90 percent or more of its sponsorship funds are expended in support of its

charter school sponsorship program, or as a direct investment in sponsored schools.68

What constitutes sponsor “direct investment” in charter schools? As noted above, the financial

relationship between sponsors and charter schools is structured to preserve school autonomy while

protecting sponsors’ ability to provide impartial, rigorous oversight. According to law, 90 percent or more

of these sponsorship funds must be expended in support of the school’s sponsorship program, or as a

direct investment in sponsored schools.

Charter law, however, does not define what constitutes “direct investment,” leaving the door open to

individual sponsor interpretation as to what this means in practice. For some sponsors it means school

support, in which the sponsor plays a hands-on role in providing training and programmatic support to

schools they oversee. For others, direct investment is limited to administrative support only.

68 RSMo. §160.400.11(1)

67 RSMo. §160.400.11

66 Adjusted for inflation

65 RSMo. §160.400.6

64 Id. at Standard 4(A)3 - Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

63 Id. at Standard 4(C) - Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

62 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship, Standard 4 - Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

61 RSMo. §160.400.11(4)

60 RSMo. §160.400.11(3)

20

148 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

The importance of separating school oversight and school support functions. To

protect the integrity of the school oversight function and avoid the potential conflict of interest which

results from sponsors evaluating schools for which they also provide technical assistance, the National

Association of Charter School Authorizers recommends that school support not be part of the charter

oversight and accountability function that sponsors provide. Rather, accountability should be limited

solely to approving new schools, evaluating them, and determining, upon renewal, whether they should

continue to serve students or close.69

When school support is provided, it should be provided completely independently of the sponsor’s

school oversight function, with a firewall between these functions. For example, for one charter sponsor

in St. Louis, charter sponsorship is conducted through the institution’s Government Affairs office and is

entirely separate, both financially and administratively, from school support that other departments at

the institution may provide.

IV. CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL GOVERNING BOARDS

As self-governing public schools, each charter school has its own governing board. Charter governing

boards provide the first layer of oversight and accountability for charter public schools. They are

accountable to the charter sponsor for charter school performance.

Charter governing boards are responsible for:

1) Contracting with the school sponsor

2) Governing the school in fidelity to the charter contract and in compliance with federal, state,

and local laws and regulations

In fulfilling these responsibilities, charter school boards are subject to both charter law and laws

governing nonprofit organizations in the state of Missouri. They are also subject to federal law.

Charter Law: Under charter law, charter school boards are accountable both to the charter sponsor and

the State Board of Education. Board members are considered decision-making public servants, subject to

the laws and regulations that guide the work of public officers and employees.70 Charter law also

protects schools from conflicts of interest and establishes guidelines for ethical behavior and for

addressing conflicts of interest.71

71 RSMo. §160.400.15: “Charter board members may not hold any office or employment with the school while
serving as a governing board member, nor can they have any interest in organizations or entities employed by, or
contracting with the school. Board members cannot be employees of companies that provide substantial services
to the school.”

70 RSMo. §160.400.15

69 Katie Piehl, What’s in a name? Authorizing vs. Sponsorship, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CHARTER SCHOOL
AUTHORIZERS BLOG (May 21, 2013) (last visited 6/21/21).

21

149 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://www.qualitycharters.org/2013/05/sponsorauthorizer/


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

Nonprofit Law. Under Missouri nonprofit law, charter schools are legitimate, legal

entities and are required to comply with all requirements of Chapter 355, Missouri’s Nonprofit

Corporation Law.72 Their nonprofit status means that charter boards are self-determining:  board

members are appointed, not elected.73 It also means that charter boards are subject to Missouri’s

Sunshine Law and that charter board meetings, records and deliberations must be open and accessible

to the public.74

Federal Law. As nonprofit organizations, charter schools also have status as tax-exempt organizations per

IRS Code 501(c)(3). The IRS reviews Form 990s filed by tax-exempt organizations75 and can bring

enforcement actions if a charter school is out of compliance.

1. Contracting with the School Sponsor. The charter contract is a legal contract between the sponsor

and the charter school governing board. It is the bedrock of the charter public school model. The charter

articulates the rights and responsibilities of each party regarding charter school autonomy, expected

outcomes, measures for evaluating success or failure, and performance consequences.76

The governing board negotiates the charter contract with the sponsor following approval of the school’s

charter application. The board represents the school’s interests in the contract negotiation process,

ensuring the expectations laid out in the contract are realistic, achievable and protect the school’s

autonomy.77

The charter contract is a living document and is monitored by both the governing board and charter

sponsor throughout the duration of the charter term. As the school evolves and needs change, the

governing board can request to amend the charter, with sponsor approval.78

2. Governing the School. The charter governing board is accountable for school performance. After

negotiating the charter contract, the board’s job is to ensure the school meets the performance

expectations laid out in its charter.

The governing board formulates policy, provides fiscal oversight, and makes operational decisions to

support the school in meeting its contractually-obligated performance expectations.79 This includes

recruiting, hiring, and holding school leadership accountable for day-to-day school leadership.

79 RSMo. §160.405.1(2)

78 RSMo. §160.405.6

77 RSMo. §160.405.1(2): As self-governing schools, charter boards have the flexibility to determine “the nature and
extent of parental, professional educator, and community involvement in the governance and operations of the
charter school.”

76 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship: Standard 3 - Charter Contract

75 Form 990 is an IRS form that provides the public with financial information about a nonprofit organization

74 RSMo. §610.011: “It is the public policy of this state that meetings, records, votes, actions and deliberations of

public governmental bodies be open to the public unless otherwise provided by law.”

73 RSMo. §160.400.8: “As a nonprofit corporation incorporated pursuant to chapter 355, the charter school shall
select the method for election of officers pursuant to section 355.326 based on the class of corporation selected.”

72 RSMo. §355.001 et seq.

22

150 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

The board communicates regularly with the charter sponsor throughout the contract

duration. Contract violations, performance deficiencies or mandated interventions are communicated

directly to the board by the charter sponsor.80

Charter law also specifies that the sponsor, governing board and charter school staff jointly review the

school’s performance, management and operations during the first year of school operations and then

every other year. A joint performance review must also be conducted at any point where the operation

or management of the school changes or is transferred to another entity.81

Finally, charter governance boards are required, under law, to make information about the school and its

performance available to parents and community members within the school district in which it

operates. By law, a charter school must make available for public inspection, and provide upon request:

1) the school’s charter; 2) its most recent annual performance report card; 3) the results of background

check on the charter board’s members; and, 4) if a charter school is operated by a management

company, a copy of the written contract between the governing board and the educational management

organization or charter management organization.82

Charter governance boards carry out all of these responsibilities in compliance with federal, state, and

local laws, and in fidelity to the charter contract itself.

CONCLUSION

The idea of school-level accountability is one of chartering’s most significant contributions to public

schooling. No charter public school has the “right” to operate in perpetuity; rather, a school must “earn”

the right to stay open by demonstrating, through evaluations conducted at regular intervals, that it is

meeting the performance expectations outlined in its charter, or contract.

This MCPSA White Paper on Charter School Accountability is intended to provide a fact-based, high-level

overview of the key roles and responsibilities of different actors in holding Missouri charter public

schools accountable. It is also intended to provide greater access to state law and regulations for those

interested in learning more about Missouri charter public schools and the statutes and rules which

govern them.

As the paper illustrates, Missouri’s charter school accountability landscape is multi-layered, with the

State Legislature, the State Board of Education, charter sponsors, and charter school governing boards

each playing distinct roles in holding schools accountable. These multiple layers of oversight help ensure

that Missouri’s charter public schools continue to deliver value to Missouri students and taxpayers.

82 RSMo. §160.410.4

81 RSMo. §160.405.6

80 5 CSR 20-100.260, Standards for Charter Sponsorship: Standard 4(D) – Ongoing Oversight and Evaluation

23

151 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

The Missouri Charter Public Schools Association believes that cultivating a better understanding of the

role of accountability in the charter school model is essential both to fostering a strong accountability

environment and protecting charter schools’ ability to self-govern. As charter public schools in Missouri

enter their third decade of operation, and as charter enrollment in our state continues to grow, both

strengthening accountability and protecting autonomy will be critical to ensuring that charter schools

continue to deliver on the promise of this innovative public school model.

Please direct related inquiries to Doug Thaman, MCPSA Executive Director, at

dthaman@mocharterschools.org.

24

152 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

mailto:dthaman@mocharterschools.org


UNDERSTANDING CHARTER PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY IN MISSOURI

APPENDIX

● Public School Laws of Missouri -
https://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneChapter.aspx?chapter=160

● Code of State Regulations, Department of Elementary and Secondary Education -
https://www.sos.mo.gov/adrules/csr/current/5csr/5csr

25

153 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM

https://revisor.mo.gov/main/OneChapter.aspx?chapter=160
https://www.sos.mo.gov/adrules/csr/current/5csr/5csr


Cover Sheet

Charter School Board Member Draft

Section: VII. Governance and Board Development
Item: B. Charter School Board Member Draft
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: BKC CSBD_2022.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 154 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 

 

The Charter School Board Draft is an opportunity to connect leaders in the community to promising 

Charter schools seeking talented and committed members to serve on their school boards. Modeled after 

the NFL Draft, which will be hosted in Kansas City in 2023, the Charter School Board Draft will provide 

an evening to celebrate our local Charter schools, their students, and current leaders serving on Charter 

boards. Schools register to participate in the draft by emailing Dr. Cokethea Hill no later than December 

1, 2021. All participating schools will go into a randomized lottery on Saturday July 30, 2022 to 

determine the order of draft picks.  

  

School commitment: Charter school leaders will have an opportunity to highlight their school by 

hosting a school tour for candidates. School Board members will have multiple opportunities to meet 

candidates via participation in the interview process, candidate “ speed dating” events, and during 

Charter school board governance training. Board Chairs will have the opportunity to meet individually 

with their top 2-3 candidates for lunch. Each Board must designate a representative to select their 

candidate during the draft.  School boards must commit to seating the selected candidate on the board 

within 8 months and must involve the candidate in ad-hoc committees if there is a waiting period to 

join the board. 

  

School Receive:  Schools receive access to a pipeline of quality school board candidates specifically 

trained on charter school governance. School logos will be featured on all paid and earned media 

highlighting the Charter School Board Draft. BLAQUE’s technology team will record a short promo 

video ( school gives final approval ) that will be shared on all social media platforms and with local news 

stations. Prior to the draft, School leaders will have an opportunity to highlight their school’s success 

as a guest speaker on our Get SchoolED podcast. Additionally, each school will receive a designated 

table (10 tickets) to the Charter School Board Draft and the school’s logo will be featured on all event 

materials. Given this is the first Charter School Board Draft, all participating schools will 

be recognized by BLAQUE as an official founding school! 
  

Important dates to remember: 

o   Deadline for schools to register for the school board draft: December 1st, 2021 

o   Email Dr. Cokethea Hill at chill@BLAQUEKC.com to register 

o   Applications for prospective board candidates opens February 2022  

o   Candidate interviews begin in March with finalist announced by April 30, 2022  

o   All candidate events  (Governance Academy, media day, speed dating, lunch and learns, 

and school tours will be scheduled May - July15th )  

o   The Charter School Board Draft will be hosted July 30, 2022 at Arrowhead 

Stadium (cocktail attire)  

 
 

155 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

HPA Policy Update

Section: VIII. New Business
Item: A. HPA Policy Update
Purpose: Vote
Submitted by:
Related Material: HPA Board Policy Updates - 9.27.2021.pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 156 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Our sponsor has completed an audit of our board policies and found both missing policies and
those that are out of compliance.  We have provided the new and revised policies below which
conform to the language recommended by the Missouri Public Charter School Association
(MPCSA).  We are asking for the Board’s approval.

In addition, we are revising an existing policy on School & Community Relations and proposing a
new policy on Attendance & Participation for our Virtual Learning Students.  We are also asking
for the Board’s approval on these changes.

Finally, we also need to update our policies on personal leave, school attendance, and discipline.
We are still working on this and plan to present them to the Board at the October meeting for
review and approval.

Once adopted, these policies will be integrated with our existing policies and the Board
committees will begin a review of each section of the policy manual.  It has been about two years
since we have done a full policy review.  Our goal is to complete that review by 6/30/22, the end
of this fiscal year.

157 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Sunshine Law Policy

WHEREAS, Section 610.023.1, RSMo, provides that a public governmental body must
appoint a custodian to maintain that body’s records and the identity and location of the custodian
is to be made available upon request; and

WHEREAS, Section 610.026, RSMo, sets forth that a public governmental body shall
provide access to and, upon request, furnish copies of public records; and

WHEREAS, Section 610.028.2, RSMo, provides that a public governmental body shall
provide a reasonable written policy in compliance with sections 610.010 to 610.030, RSMo,
commonly referred to as the Sunshine Law, regarding the release of information on any meeting,
record, or vote.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:
1. That Jan Thomas be and hereby is appointed custodian of records of Hogan Preparatory

Academy and that such custodian is located at 6409 Agnes, Kansas City, MO 64132.
2. That said custodian shall respond to all requests for access to or copies of a public record

within the time period provided by the statute except in those circumstances authorized
by statute.

3. That the fees to be charged for access to or furnishing copies of records shall be as
hereinafter provided:

a. Paper copies - 10 cents per page for copies 9 x 14 or smaller
b. Duplicating time - $15 per hour
c. Research time - billed at actual cost

4. That it is the policy of the Hogan Preparatory Academy Board that meetings, records,
votes, actions and deliberations of this body shall be open to the public unless otherwise
provided by law.

5. That Hogan Preparatory Academy hereby closes all public records to the extent
authorized by law.

6. That Hogan Preparatory Academy shall comply with sections 610.010 to 610.035, RSMo,
the Sunshine Law, as now existing or hereafter amended.

158 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Annual Operating Budget Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy which shall be effective on
the date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Budget Process

1.1 The Superintendent or his designee will ensure that Hogan Preparatory Academy
follows a budgeting process that is consistent with the requirements of all applicable state
and federal laws and regulations.

1.2  Each year the Chief Finance and Accountability Officer is required to submit to the
Board for consideration a detailed annual budget showing estimates of income and
expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year.

1.3  Each year before the annual operating budget is drafted the Chief Finance and
Accountability Officer shall ensure that a needs assessment of Hogan Preparatory
Academy is drafted and finalized by the finance committee consisting of the CFO, the
School Leader, and other individuals designated by the board.  The needs assessment
shall inform the drafting of the annual budget.

1.4 The Board shall formally adopt the budget in an open meeting held in accordance
with the Board’s bylaws by June 30, pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations and
before the expenditure of any funds.  The approved estimated expenditures for each fund
shall not exceed the estimated revenues to be received plus the unencumbered
beginning cash balance for the fund.

1.5 The Secretary of the Board will record the adoption of the budget and any
amendments in the Board meeting minutes in which the adoption occurs.

1.6 After the beginning of the fiscal year, the Superintendent and Chief Finance and
Accountability Officer shall review with the Board the adopted budget in relationship to the
beginning cash balances for each fund.

SECTION 2.  Fiscal Compliance

The Chief Finance and Accountability Officer shall ensure that Hogan Preparatory Academy
complies with all state and federal laws and rules concerning the budget and related processes
of the school.

159 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Payroll Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy which shall be effective on
the date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Accurate & Timely Payroll

The Chief Finance and Accountability Officer shall ensure that school employees are paid
accurately and timely in accordance with applicable laws and rules.

SECTION 2.  Payment of School Employees

School employees shall be paid:

a. In United States currency;
b. By a written instrument (e.g. check) issued by the employer that is negotiable on demand

at full face value for United States currency; or
c. By the electronic transfer of funds to the employee’s bank account pursuant to a direct

deposit agreement signed by the employee.

SECTION 3.  Paydays

Paydays for all HPA employees shall be on the 15th and 30th of each month.

SECTION 4.  Withholding of Wages

The Chief Finance and Accountability Officer shall ensure that the wages of school employees
are not withheld except in the following situations as permitted by applicable law and rules.

a. The school is ordered to do so by a court of competent jurisdiction;
b. The school is authorized to do so by state or federal law; or
c. The school has written authorization from the employee to deduct part of their wages for

a lawful purpose

SECTION 5.  Teachers Retirement System

As prescribed by Statute, all teachers at Hogan Preparatory Academy shall be members of the
Kansas City Public Schools Retirement System and subject to its regulations.  The Board shall
expend for teacher retirement and compensation for instructional staff an amount that reflects the
requirements as outlined in Missouri State Statute and Department of Elementary and Secondary
Education regulation.

160 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Capital Assets Accounting Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy which shall be effective on
the date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

Section 1.1.  Definition of a Capital Asset

A capital asset that is tangible in nature; has a life that exceeds one year; of significant value
($5,000 per unit); and reasonably identified and controlled through a physical inventory system.
Examples include:  land, buildings, machinery, and furniture.

Section 1.2  Documentation

The Chief Finance and Accountability Officer shall ensure that Hogan Preparatory Academy
maintains accurate records of capital assets in accordance with applicable rules.

Section 1.3  Inventory

The Chief Finance and Accountability Officer will ensure that a physical inventory of capital
assets takes place once every two years.

Section 1.4  Annual Audit

The annual financial audit required by the Board shall include an exhibit in the audit report
identifying all capital assets and the ownership interest of local, state and federal parties.

161 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Authorized Signatures Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy which shall be effective on
the date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

Section 1.  The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy shall designate at least one current board
member to be included as an authorized signature on all financial accounts of the school.

Section 2.  The Board shall notify all financial institutions that serve the school of the board
member who is to be included as an authorized signature on financial accounts.

Section 3.  The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy shall annual certify to the Missouri Charter
Public School Commission that the financial institutions that serve the school have on file the
authorization form for the board member who is to be the signature on all financial accounts.

162 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Family and Medical Leave Act Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

This policy is limited to any rights or benefits contained in the Family and Medical Leave Act
(FMLA).

SECTION 1.  Eligible Employees

1.1  Employees of Hogan Preparatory Academy who have been employed for at least
twelve (12) months and who have worked at least 1250 hours during the 12 month period
immediately prior to requesting leave and are employed at a worksite where 50 or more
employees are located within 75 miles of the worksite are eligible to take twelve (12)
weeks of unpaid leave under FMLA.

1.2  An employee may request leave for one or more of the following reasons:

1. Birth of a child and to care for the newborn child;
2. Adoption or foster placement of a child with the employee;
3. To care for the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or parent, if that person

has a serious health condition;
4. Serious health condition of employee that prevents the employee from

performing the job functions;
5. Because of a qualifying exigency (thereinafter defined) arising out of the

fact that an employee’s spouse, son, daughter or parent is a covered
military member on active duty or has been notified of an impending call or
order to active duty status in the National Guard or Reserves in support of
a contingency operation;

6. To care for a covered service member (hereinafter defined) with a serious
injury or illness when the employee is the spouse, son, daughter, parent or
next of kin.

SECTION 2.  Definitions

“Covered Servicemember” means a member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the
National Guard of Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is
otherwise in outpatient status, or is on the temporary retired list, for a serious injury or illness.  A
member of the Armed Forces would have a serious injury or illness if he or she has incurred an
injury or illness in the line of duty while on active duty in the Armed Forces provided that the

163 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

injury or illness may render the servicemember medically unfit to perform duties of the member’s
office, grade rank or rating.

“Instructional employee or other key position” means an employee whose school leader function
is to instruct or directly support instruction of students in a class, a small group or an individual
setting or provide an essential function such as administration which would provide a disruption
in the normal operations of the school.

“Parent” means a biological parent or one who acted in place of a parent when the employee
was a child.  The term “parent” does not include parent “in-law”.

“Qualifying exigency” may include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative
childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling
sessions, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings.

“Serious health condition” means an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition
that involves inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility or continuing
treatment by a health care provider and has been duly documented by a health care provider.

“Son or daughter” means a biological, adopted or foster child, a step-child, a legal ward or a child
for whom the employee acts as a parent.  The son or daughter must be under age 18 or, if the
son or daughter is age 18 or older, he/she must be incapable of self-care on a daily basis due to
a documented mental or physical disability.

“Spouse” means a husband or wife.

SECTION 3.  Amount and Type of Leave Taken

3.1  Except as provided below, an employee may take a total of twelve (12) weeks during
any twelve-month period.  The twelve-month period shall be measured backward from the
date the employee begins using any FMLA leave.  In the event of the birth, adoption, or
foster placement of a son or daughter, all leave must be completed within twelve (12)
months after the birth, adoption or foster placement.

3.2  If both spouses work for Hogan Prep and both are eligible for FMLA leave, they are
authorized to take only a combined total of twelve (12) weeks during any one
twelve-month period to care for a newborn or adopted child, a child placed with the
employee for foster care, or a parent with a serious health condition.

3.3  Employees seeking to take Family and Medical Leave to care for a newborn or
adopted child, a child placed with the employee for foster care, a parent, spouse, or child

164 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
with a serious health condition, or because of their own serious health condition, must
first exhaust any personal leave, paid vacation, applicable accumulated sick leave, and
any other applicable paid leave for their Family and Medical Leave.

3.4  Intermittent or Reduced Leave - An employee may only take leave on an intermittent
or reduced leave schedule when medically necessary.  Hogan Prep will require a
certification, in the form described in Section 3.7 below, to document the medical
necessity of such intermittent leave.

3.5 Notification of Leave - If the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable, an employee
requesting leave must provide at least 30 days advance notice to their manager.  If such
advance notice is not possible, the employee must give said notice as soon as
practicable, ordinarily within one to two working days of learning of the need for leave.
When planning medical treatment, the employee should make a reasonable effort to
schedule the treatment so that any corresponding leave will not unduly disrupt the
operations of the school or classroom instruction.

3.6 Benefits and Return to Work - Employees taking FMLA leave will continue to accrue
all benefits for which they are eligible that are provided by the school while on FMLA
leave.  HPA will pay the employer’s portion, if any, of such benefits.  The employee will
pay the same portion, if any, of such benefits as the employee paid before beginning
leave. The employee will be billed for the employee portion of the benefits and shall
timely pay required premiums in order to maintain active benefits coverage.

Hogan Prep may recover any health care benefit premiums paid on behalf of an
employee if the employee does not return to work after the leave period has expired.

With the exception of paid vacation, personal, medical or sick leave required to be
exhausted prior to taking unpaid leave under Section 3.3 above, the employer’s absence
during leave will not alter benefits which the employee accrued before taking leave.

Upon return from leave, the employee is entitled to be reinstated to a position equivalent
to the one the employee held when he/she left on FMLA leave, with equivalent pay,
benefits and other terms and conditions of employment.  Upon proper notice, however,
Hogan Prep may deny reinstatement under this policy to an employee whose salary is
within the highest 10% of the employees employed by the school (“key employee”) if such
denial is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the school’s
operation, as determined by the Board.  Employees will be notified if they are considered
a key employee, if there is an intention to deny reinstatement, and of their rights in such
instances.

165 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

3.7  Required Certification and Reporting - The Board requires that a request for leave
due to a serious health condition be supported by a certification issued by the appropriate
health care provider of the eligible employee or of the son, daughter, spouse, or parent of
the employee on a form to be provided by the Board.

This certification must include:

1. The date on which the serious health condition commenced;
2. The probable duration of the condition;
3. If the purpose of the leave is to care for a son, daughter, spouse or parent (“family

member”), a statement that the employee is needed to care for the family member
and the estimated time needed for such care;

4. If the leave is due to the employee’s own serious health condition, a statement
that the employee is unable to perform his or her job functions.  The employer
may require that the eligible employee obtain subsequent recertification on a
reasonable basis as requested by the Board.

Hogan Prep, at its own expense, may obtain the opinion of a second health care provider
of its own choice, if it should choose to do so.  If a conflict exists between the opinion in
the certification and the second opinion, Hogan Prep may, at its own expense, obtain a
third opinion from a health care provider upon which HPA and the employee jointly agree.
Such a third opinion as to the necessity for the leave is binding on both HPA and the
employee.

Upon an employee’s return after leave for his/her own serious health condition, Hogan
Prep may require the employee to obtain certification from a health care provider that the
employee is able to resume work.

Hogan Preparatory Academy may require an employee on FMLA leave to report
periodically to their manager on the employee’s status and intent to return to work.

3.8  Special Provisions - When an instructional employee or other key position essential
to the function of the school seeks intermittent leave or leave on a reduced schedule in
connection with a family or personal illness that would constitute at least 20% of the total
number of working days in the period during which the leave would extend, HPA may
require the employee to elect to take leave in a block (not intermittently) for the entire
period or to transfer to an available alternative position within the school that is equivalent
in pay, for which the employee is qualified, and which better accommodates the
intermittent situation.

166 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

If the employee begins leave more than five weeks before the end of a semester, HPA
may require the employee to continue taking leave until the end of the semester if:

1. The leave will last at least three weeks; and
2. The employee would return to work during the three-week period before the end of the

term.

167 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Equal Employment Opportunity Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Equal Opportunity Employment

The School is committed to providing equal opportunity in all areas of education, recruiting,
hiring, retention promotion, and contracted service.  The School further commits itself to the
policy that there shall be not unlawful discrimination against any person because of race, color,
religion, disability, age, gender, national origin, or sexual orientation.

The School’s equal opportunity policy extends to prohibitions against unlawful harassment of
students or employees because of the individual’s race, color, religion, disability, age, gender,
national origin, or sexual orientation.

SECTION 2.  Non-Discrimination Against/Accommodation of Qualified Individuals with
Disabilities

Hogan Preparatory Academy shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and
applicable state and local laws providing for non-discrimination in employement against qualified
individuals with disabilities.  Hogan Preparatory Academy shall also provide reasonable
accommodations for qualified individuals in accordance with these laws.  HPA shall ensure that
qualified individuals with disabilities are treated in a non-discriminatory manner in the
pre-employment process and during active employment with HPA.

Qualified applicants or HPA employees with disabilities should make formal requests in writing
for accommodations.

168 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Harassment Policy

The Hogan Preparatory Academy Board adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Unlawful Harassment

1.1  In accordance with applicable law, Hogan Preparatory Academy prohibits sexual
harassment and harassment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion,
creed, physical or mental disability, marital status, age, or any other basis protected by
federal, state, or local law.  Hogan Prep is committed to taking all reasonable steps to
prevent harassment from occurring.

1.2 Unlawful harassment because of sex, race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion,
creed, physical or mental disability, marital status, age or any other protected
characteristic includes but is not limited to:

● Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory comments, slurs, or unwanted sexual
advances, invitations, or comments.

● Visual conduct such as derogatory posters, photography, cartoons, drawings, or
gestures.

● Physical conduct such as unwanted touching, blocking normal movement, or
interfering with work directed at you because of your sex or any other protected
basis.

● Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests in order to keep your job or
avoid some other loss, and offers of job benefits in return for sexual favors.

● Retaliation for opposing, reporting or threatening to report harassment, or for
participating in an investigation, proceeding or hearing conducted by an
investigating agency.

1.3  Prohibited harassment is not necessarily limited to the loss of a job or some other
economic benefit.  Prohibited harassment that impairs an employee’s ability to work or
emotional well-being at work is considered a violation of this policy and will not be
tolerated.

SECTION 2.  Reporting

2.1  The Hogan Preparatory Academy reporting procedure provides for an immediate,
thorough and objective investigation of any harassment claim, appropriate disciplinary
action against one found to have engaged in prohibited harassment, and appropriate

169 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

remedies to any employee subject to harassment.  An employee may have a claim of
harassment even if he or she has not lost a job or some economic benefit.

2.1.1 If any employee believes he/she has been harassed on the job, or is aware
of the harassment of others, the employee should provide a written or verbal report as
soon as possible to their most immediate supervisor, unless the immediate supervisor is a
part of the grievance, in which case the next most immediate individual in authority.  The
report should include details of the incident(s), the names of individuals involved, the
names of any witnesses, direct quotes when relevant, and any documentary evidence
(notes, pictures, cartoons, etc.)

2.1.2  All incidents of harassment that are reported will be thoroughly investigated
and documented.  HPA will endeavor to protect the privacy and confidentiality of all
parties involved to the extent possible consistent with a thorough investigation.

2.1.3  If the Board determines that harassment has occurred, it will take remedial
action commensurate with the circumstances.  Appropriate action will also be taken to
deter any future harassment.  If a complaint of harassment is substantiated, appropriate
disciplinary action, up to and including termination, will be taken.

SECTION 3.  Protection Against Retaliation

3.1  Under federal law, retaliation against any employee by another employee or by the
school for reporting, filing, testifying, assisting or participating in any manner in any
investigation, proceeding or hearing conducted by the school or a federal or state
enforcement agency is prohibited.

3.1.1  Employees should report any retaliation to their most immediate supervisor,
unless the immediate supervisor is a part of the grievance, in which case the next most
immediate individual in authority.

3.1.2  Any complaint will be immediately objectively and thoroughly investigated in
accordance with the investigation procedure outlined above.

3.1.3  In a report of retaliation is substantiated, appropriate disciplinary action, up
to and including discharge, will be taken.

170 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

SECTION 4.  Liability for Harassment

4.1  Any employee, including any supervisor or manager, who is found to have engaged
in unlawful harassment is subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination
from employment.  An employee who engages in harassment may be held personally
liable for monetary damages, should a lawsuit be filed.

SECTION 5.  Additional Enforcement Information

5.1  Employees should be aware that the federal Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission (EEOC) services as a neutral fact finder to investigate and resolve harassment
complaints in employment.  Employees who believe that they have been harassed may file a
complaint directly with the EEOC by contacting the nearest office of the EEOC at 400 State
Avenue, Suite 905, Kansas City, KS 66101, 913-340-8810.

171 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Drug Free Workplace Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

The unlawful possession, use or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol on school premises or as
a part of school activities is strictly prohibited.

Employees under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or controlled substances while on duty are a
serious risk to themselves, students, and other employees.  Employees who display
manifestations of drug or alcohol use while on duty may be subject to drug testing. Any employee
who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination and
referral for prosecution.  Employees may also be required to participate in and complete
rehabilitation programs.

As a condition of employment, all employees must abide by the terms of this policy.  Employees
who are convicted of a drug offense which occurred on school premises or while on duty must
notify their manager or HR of their conviction.  Notification must be made by the employee to
their manager or HR within five (5) days of the conviction.  Within ten (10) days, the manager or
HR will provide notice of such violation to the Impact Aid Program, United States Department of
Education, or other appropriate government agency.

The School will institute a drug-free awareness program to inform employees of:

1. The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace.
2. This policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
3. Available counseling and rehabilitation.
4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace.

On the basis of medical certification, employees with the illness of chemical dependency shall
qualify for the employee benefits and group insurance coverages that are provided for under
group health and medical insurance policies.  The confidential nature of the medical records of
employees with chemical dependency shall be preserved in the same manner as all other
medical records.

The School’s responsibility for chemical dependency is limited to its effects on the employee’s job
performance.  If the employee violates this policy, refuses to accept diagnosis and treatment, or
fails to respond to treatment, and performance is adversely affected, he/she will be subject to
employment action in proportion to the performance problem.

172 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Implementation of this policy will not require or result in any specific regulations, privileges, or
exemptions from the standard administrative practices applicable to job performance
requirements.

Upon request of the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education or an agency of the
United States, the School shall certify that it has adopted and implemented the drug prevention
program described in this policy, in the form required by such agency.  The School shall conduct
a biennial review of this policy to determine its effectiveness, implement necessary changes, and
to ensure that the disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.

173 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Personnel Evaluations Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Staff Observations and Evaluations

1.1  The Superintendent shall be formally evaluated by the Governing Board on at least
an annual basis using an established evaluation instrument adopted by the Governing
Board.

1.2  Each certified staff member shall be formally observed and evaluated by their
manager on at least an annual basis using an established evaluation instrument adopted
by the Governing Board.

1.3  Each classified staff member shall be formally evaluated by their manager on at least
an annual basis using an established evaluation instrument adopted by the Governing
Board.

1.4  The manager shall provide a copy of the observation rating, notes, and any other
documentation obtained or used during observation or evaluation.

1.4.1 The Employee shall have the right to acknowledge acceptance of the
evaluation or to dissent and provide written commentary with the dissent; however, the
document, regardless of acknowledgement or dissent, shall remain a part of the staff
member’s personnel record throughout the duration of employment.

1.4.2 Employees may elect to follow the school’s grievance policy related to
dissent of any evaluations.  The decision of the Governing Board or its designated
committee is considered final.

174 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Staff Complaints and Grievances Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Intent of the Policy

1.1  The purpose of this policy is to provide a process for employees or applicants to
reach solutions to problems, disputes, or controversies at the lowest administrative level,
as fairly and as expeditiously as possible.

1.2  This policy also addresses employees or applicants who allege discrimination or
harassment on the basis of age, gender, race, color, religion, national origin, disability, or
any other basis expressly prohibited by law.

SECTION 2.  Definitions

2.1  Complaint - A complaint means any claim or grievance by an employee who is
affected in his or her employment relationship by an alleged violation of applicable
statutes, policies, rules, regulations, or written agreements with which the Board is
required to comply.  In accordance with this policy, a complaint may also be filed by a job
applicant.

2.2  Employee - Employee shall mean any person hired by HPA to perform services
either full or part time.

2.3  Days - Days shall mean working days exclusive of Saturday, Sunday, or official
holidays unless otherwise noted.

2.4  School Leader - Employee possessing that degree of administrative authority.

2.5  Parties in Interest - Any persons involved in the processing and investigation of the
complaint.

2.6  Complaint File - A file maintained by the School Leader containing documents
relevant to the complaint.  This shall be separate from the personnel file and shall be
open to parties in interest only.

2.7  Board - The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy.

175 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

2.8  Notification - means delivery in person to the party entitled to notification, or deposit
in the United States Mail, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last known
address of the party notified.

SECTION 3.  Procedure for Notice, Hearing Rights, Evidence Representation, Decisions, and
Record

3.1  This complaint and grievance procedure is applicable to any claim by any employee
or applicant of Hogan Prep who is affected in his or her employment relationship by an
alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of statutes, policies, rules,
regulations, or written agreements with which the school is required to comply.

3.2  The Board will ensure that a complaint is processed as expeditiously as is
practicable.  The initial complaint should be made in writing and should clearly state that
the complainant wishes to utilize the Complaints and Grievances Policy, the nature of the
complaint and specific statute, policy, rule, regulations, or written agreements that have
allegedly been violated.  The written request should be received by the School’s office via
certified mail at the following address:  6409 Agnes, Kansas City, MO 64132.

3.3  The complainant and all parties in interest shall be adequately notified of the time
and place of the initial meeting and any appeal of the initial decision in writing by hand
delivered or certified mail.

3.4  The complainant and the individual(s) accused of the violation shall be entitled to an
opportunity to be heard, to present relevant evidence, and to examine witnesses.

3.5  The Governing Board may appoint a member of the State Bar to serve as law officer
who shall rule on all issues of law and other objections, but such attorney shall not assist
in the presentation of the case for either party.

3.6  At each level, an accurate record of the proceeding must be kept by mechanical
means and all evidence shall be preserved and made available to the parties involved; all
cost and fees shall be borne by the party incurring them unless otherwise agreed upon by
the parties; except that the cost of preparing and preserving the record of the proceedings
shall be borne by the Governing Board; provided however, the cost of transcribing the
transcript of evidence and proceedings before the Board shall be borne by the party
requesting same, and all costs of the records on appeal to the superior courts and
appellate courts shall be paid by the party required to do so by the laws relating thereto.

176 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
3.7  The overall time frame from the initiation of the complaint until rendition of the
decision by the Governing Board and notification thereof to the complainant shall not
exceed thirty (30) days.  In no instance shall there be more than ten (10) calendar days
between the most recent alleged act about which a complaint may be filed and the first
written notice of complaint is received nor shall there be more than ten (10) calendar days
between the decision at any level and the date the appeal to the next level is received.

3.8  Decisions at each level shall be in writing and dated.  Each decision shall contain
findings of fact and reasons for the particular resolution reached.  The decision reached
at each complaint level shall be sent to the complainant by certified mail or hand
delivered by a person designated by the Superintendent within twenty (20) business days
of the hearing.

3.9  Decisions at each level shall be delivered to the complainant and the affected parties
by a person designated by the Superintendent either by (1) being hand delivered or (2)
being deposited in the U.S. Mail (certified mail, return receipt requested).  Notice to the
complainant shall be deemed to have been made on the date of hand delivery or on the
date of deposit in the U.S. Mail by certified mail, return receipt requested to the address
stated in the complaint or, if not contained in the complaint, to the last known address of
the complainant on file with Hogan Preparatory Academy.

3.10  If the complainant is dissatisfied with the review of the supervisor’s decision, he or
she must forward an appeal to HR within ten (10) working days.  The appeal shall be in
writing and include the reason(s) for the appeal.  HR will notify the Superintendent or
his/her designee that a timely appeal has been received.  A copy of all complaints
involving appeal reviews will be forwarded to the Superintendent.

3.11 The complainant and the individual(s) alleged to be in violation are entitled to the
presence of an individual of his/her choice to assist in the presentation of the complaint at
the Governing Board level.  At the Board level nothing shall prevent the Board from
having an attorney present to serve as the law officer who shall rule on issues of law and
who shall not participate in the presentation of the case for the School Leader or the
complainant.

3.12  The Board, when hearing an appeal from the initial hearing, shall hear the complaint
de novo.  The complaint cannot present additional evidence at the Governing Board level
of the complaint process, unless it is determined by the School Leader presiding over the
complaint that such evidence is relevant to the issues presented at the initial hearing and
such evidence was either not made available by the administration or not discoverable by
the complainant or unless it is presented and received in writing to the person presiding
over the complaint at least five (5) days prior to the set date for the Governing Board
hearing.  A committee of the board will conduct the appeal proceeding within fifteen (15)

177 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
working days and, within twenty (20) working days after the conclusion of the proceeding,
will render a final decision.

3.13  The time limits specified in this complaint procedure will be observed and applied
strictly and will not be extended without the prior written consent of the employee and the
applicable level of supervision responsible for the review.  If an employee fails to comply
with any time limit, the complaint shall be deemed automatically withdrawn and the
proceeding terminated.

SECTION 4.  Prohibited Reprisal Provision

4.1  No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or by any member of the
administration against any complainant as a result of participation in the complaint
process.

SECTION 5.  Collection of Information

5.1  Nothing in this policy shall be construed to limit any other fact finder or decision maker from
using any equitable means available to establish the truth or the circumstances pertinent to the
complaint, provided that the complainant shall have an opportunity to respond to any information
considered by the decision maker in reaching a conclusion.

178 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Communicable Diseases Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
adoption by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Purpose of Policy

1.1  The Governing Board intends to ensure that no individual has potentially harmful
exposure to infection or diseases.

SECTION 2.  Definitions

2.1  Communicable disease:  a disease that can be directly or indirectly transmitted from
one person to another.

2.2  HIV infection:  an infection in which the human immuno-deficiency virus is present.

SECTION 3.  Protections

3.1  No student shall be denied access to nor shall an otherwise qualified individual be
denied employment in the educational programs of the Governing Board solely because
he or she is infected with a communicable disease or HIV infection.

3.2  A student or employee who is infected with a communicable disease or HIV infection
will remain in his or her educational or employment setting unless he or she presents a
significant risk of contagion as determined by the Governing Board after consultation with
the student’s or employee’s physician, public health official knowledgeable about the
disease and/or the Board’s physician if in the judgment of the School Leader it is
necessary to consult a private physician.

SECTION 4.  Prevention of Transmission

4.1  Each year, Hogan Prep shall provide educational opportunities and review of this
policy for all employees to become informed concerning transmissions of communicable
disease and HIV infection.

4.2  Education and policy review shall include procedures to reduce the risk of
transmitting communicable disease and HIV infection, including precautions to be taken
in handling bodily fluids and blood whenever necessary.  Handling blood and body fluids
shall be in a manner consistent with the Center for Disease Control’s Universal
Precautions for Handling Blood and Body Fluids.

179 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
SECTION 5.  Identification of Potential Risks

5.1  Whether or not an infected individual presents a significant risk of contagion shall be
determined based upon reasonable medical judgment given the state of medical
knowledge about:

● The nature of the risk; i.e. how long the disease is transmitted;
● The duration of the risk; i.e. how long the carrier is infectious;
● The severity of the risk; i.e. the degree of potential harm to third parties; and
● The probability that the disease will be transmitted and will cause varying degrees

of harm.

5.2  If an accommodation that does not impose undue financial hardship or administrative
burdens can be made, then neither student nor employee shall be denied the right to
participate in Governing Board programs or to be employed by the Board.

5.3  In order that the Board may have time to obtain a reasonable medical judgment
concerning the student or employee who is infected by a communicable disease, the
Superintendent is authorized to remove the infected student or employee from HPA
programs or employment for a period not to exceed ten days during which time the Board
shall make a decision as to whether the student or employee can be accommodated and
does not pose a significant risk to others.

5.4  The student or employee shall be excluded only if the Board determines after
consultation as provided above that the communicable disease is of such nature or at a
stage that the individual should not be in an educational setting.

SECTION 6.  Privacy Rights

6.1  Neither the Board nor its employees shall disclose medical information about a
student or employee with HIV infection or other communicable disease without the
consent of the employee or the student or his or her parent or guardian, whichever is
applicable, or only as required by law or court order.

180 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Employee Information Sharing Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy, effective on the date of
the adoption by the Board.

SECTION 1.  The Superintendent or his/her designee shall be permitted to respond to requests
for information from public schools about former employees.

SECTION 2.  Information Sharing

2.1  The School shall provide information about a former employee to another public
school upon request.

2.2  The School shall share the following information:  information regarding any violation
of the published regulations of the Governing Board of the School by the former
employee if such violation related to sexual misconduct with a student and was
determined to be an actual violation by the Governing Board after a contested case due
process hearing conducted pursuant to board policy; the results of a children’s division
investigation if the investigation involved allegations of sexual misconduct with a student
and the children’s division reached a finding of substantiated.

SECTION 3.  All current and potential employees shall be given notice of this policy upon its
adoptions.

181 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Public Inspection Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on the date that
the policy is adopted by the Board.

The School shall make available for public inspection, and provide upon request, to the parent,
guardian, or other custodian of any school-age pupil resident in the LEA in which the school is
located the following information:

A. The school’s charter;
B. The school’s most recent annual report card published according to section 160.522

RSMo;
C. The results of background checks on the charter school’s board members; and
D. If operated by a management company, a copy of the written contract between the

Governing Board of the School and the educational management organization or the
charter management organization for services.  The charter school may charge
reasonable fees, not to exceed the rate specified in section 610.026, RSMo for furnishing
copies of documents under this subsection.

The school website shall contain a searchable expenditure and revenue document or database
detailing actual income, expenditures, and disbursements for a current calendar or fiscal year.

182 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Health Information Records Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on the date that
the policy is adopted by the Board.

Except as otherwise required by the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA) or Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), records containing student health information will be
stored separately from other student records in a locked file cabinet or in a secure computer file.
Only the School Leader or his/her designee shall have access to the locked file cabinet or secure
computer file.

183 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
School Safety Plan and Emergency Closing Procedures Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on the date that
the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  School Safety Plan

The School will cooperate fully with local emergency management preparedness authorities to
develop and implement an emergency management preparedness program addressing
man-made and natural disasters.

SECTION 2.  Emergency Suspension of School Operations or Activities

2.1  Hogan Preparatory Academy will typically follow school closures set by the Kansas
City Public School System.

2.2  The Governing Board further authorizes the Superintendent or his/her designee to
suspend school operations or activities in the event of abnormal conditions, hazardous
weather, or other emergencies that threaten the safety, welfare, or health of students or
employees and to take whatever measures he/she deems necessary to protect students
and staff.

2.3  The Superintendent or his/her designee shall establish orderly procedures to assure
that appropriate communications with students, staff, and other stakeholders are
maintained before, during and after the abnormal conditions potentially or actually
causing suspension of school operations or activities.  At a minimum, instruction on
obtaining information pertaining to suspension of school operations and activities for
students, staff, and other stakeholders shall be published in the student and staff
handbooks.

2.4  School activities, including but not limited to extracurricular events, activities, clubs,
competitions, and athletic events, held before or after the official school day, shall not be
held if normal school operations have been suspended on the same day.  The
Superintendent or his/her designee shall communicate with students and parents in a
timely manner regarding the cancellation of these activities.

2.5  At the Superintendent’s discretion, school activities as described in Section 2.4, may
be canceled even after a completed school day if conditions exist to warrant such
suspension.  The Superintendent or his/her designee shall communicate with students
and parents in a timely manner regarding the cancellation of these activities.

184 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Distribution of Medicine Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on that date that
the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  School Distribution and Administration of Medicine

1.1  The school nurse (or another employee designated by the Superintendent or his/her
designee) may provide assistance with medication (this includes prescription or
over-the-counter medication) only if all of the following requirements are met:

1.1.1 Prescription drugs must be in the original container, bear the name of the
student, the name of the physician and the name of the pharmacy filling the
prescription.  Over-the-counter drugs must be maintained in the original container.

1.1.2  The appropriate approval form for medication distribution must have been
completed and signed by the parent or guardian for each medication.

1.1.3   The school nurse or other designated employee shall keep a written report
of medication taken by the student.

SECTION 2.  Student Possession and Self-Administration of Medication

2.1  The school shall grant any student authorization for the possession and
self-administration of medication to treat the student’s chronic health condition, including
but not limited to asthma or anaphylaxis if:

2.1.1  A licensed physician prescribed or ordered such medication for use by the
pupil and instructed such pupil in the correct and responsible use of such
medication;

2.1.2  The pupil has demonstrated to the pupil’s licensed physician or the licensed
physician’s designee, and the school nurse, if available, the skill level necessary
to use the medication and any device necessary to administer such medication
prescribed or ordered;

2.1.3  The pupil’s physician has approved and signed a written treatment plan for
managing the pupil’s chronic health condition, including asthma or anaphylaxis
episodes and for medication for use by the pupil.  Such plan shall include a
statement that the pupil is capable of self-administering the medication under the
treatment plan;

185 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
2.1.4  The pupil’s parent or guardian has completed and submitted to the school
any written documentation required by the school, including the treatment plan
and the liability statement.

2.1.5  The pupil’s parent or guardian has signed a statement acknowledging that
the school district and its employees or agents shall incur no liability as a result of
any injury arising from the self-administration of medication by the pupil or the
administration of such medication by school staff.  Such statement shall not be
construed to release the School and its employees or agents from liability for
negligence.

2.2  Pupils authorized to possess and self-administer medication may possess and
self-administer such medication while in school, at a school-sponsored activity, and in
transit to or from school or school-sponsored activity.

2.3  Such authorization shall only be effective for the school year in which it is granted.
Such authorization shall be renewed by the student’s parent or guardian each
subsequent school year.

2.4  Any current duplicate prescription medicine, if provided by a student’s parent or
guardian or by the school shall be kept at the school in a location at which the student or
school staff has immediate access in the event of an asthma or anaphylaxis or other
emergency.

2.5  The written treatment plan, liability statement, and any other written documentation
shall be kept on file at the school in a location easily accessible in the event of an
emergency.

186 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Student and Classroom Observations Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on the
date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Classroom Observations.

1.1  While the School acknowledges that some educational benefit may be derived from third
parties wishing to conduct classroom observations for research purposes for educational
products or services, it is the responsibility of the School to protect the privacy of all students.

1.2  Requests for observations by an outside educational or clinical professional must be
submitted in writing to the Superintendent or his/her designee for consideration at least two
weeks in advance of the requested observation.  The request must include the name and
credentials of the professional who will be observing the classroom, the purpose of the
classroom observation, the data that will be collected and a certification that the third party will
comply with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) and any other applicable
state or federal laws pertaining to student privacy.  In addition, the third party may be required to
execute a confidentiality agreement.

1.3  Superintendent or his/her designee must provide parents of students in the classroom
written notice of a third party’s desire to observe the classroom, and parent concerns regarding
outside observers shall be taken into consideration in the decision whether or not to allow the
third party to observe the classroom.

1.4  If the outside professional is approved for the observation, all data collected shall be
provided to the Superintendent or his/her designee.

1.5  Upon request, the Superintendent or his/her designee may, at his/her discretion, grant
permission for visits by outside service providers who currently provide private educational or
therapy services to a current student.  To minimize disruption to the instructional program,
outside service providers must comply with the guidelines for all visitors plus the following
additional guidelines: (1) the third party must currently provide educational or therapy services to
the student; (2) provide the Superintendent or his/her designee an appropriate Release of
Confidential Information under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), signed
by the parent/guardian; (3) have the parent/guardian coordinate the observation date and time;
(4) limit the observation to one hour unless an extended time period has been granted in
advance of the scheduled observation; and (5) conduct the session in such a manner that allows
the regular school program to continue during the visit by refraining from engaging the attention
of the teacher or student(s) through conversation or other means.

187 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

188 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Eye Protection Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on
that date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

Every student, teacher, and visitor is required to wear an industrial quality eye protective device
when participating in or observing any of the following:

1. Vocational, technical, industrial arts, chemical, or chemical-physical shops or laboratories
involving exposure to the following:  Hot molten metals, or other molten materials; milling,
sawing, turning, shaping, cutting, grinding or stamping of any solid materials; heat
treatment, tempering, or kiln firing of any metal or other materials; gas or electric arc
welding, or other forms of welding processes; repair or servicing of any vehicle; caustic or
explosive materials;

2. Chemical, physical, or combined chemical-physical laboratories involving caustic or
explosive materials, hot liquids or solids, injurious radiations or other hazards not
enumerated.

“Industrial eye protective devices” means devices meeting the standards of the American
National Standard Practice for Occupational and Educational Eye and Face Protection,
Z87.1-1968, and subsequent revisions thereof, approved by the American National Standards
Institute, inc.

189 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Textbooks Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on
that date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.

The term “textbook” means workbooks, manuals, or other books, whether bound or in loose-leaf
form, intended for use as a principal source of study material for a given class or group of
students, a copy of which is expected to be available for the individual use of each pupil in such
class or group.

SECTION 2.

The school shall purchase and loan free all textbooks for all children who are enrolled in grades
kindergarten through twelve, and may purchase textbooks and instructional materials for
prekindergarten students.

SECTION 3.

Only textbooks filed with the state board of education shall be purchased and loaned under this
section.  No textbooks shall be purchased or loaned under this section to be used in any form of
religious instruction or worship.

190 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Reporting of Child Abuse and Neglect Model Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following regulation effective
on the date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  Mandatory Reporters

The following individuals are mandatory reporters:

1. Teacher
2. Principal
3. School official
4. Any other person with responsibility for the care of children

SECTION 2.  Reporting

2.1  All mandatory reporters have a duty (RSMo 210.115) to report suspected child abuse
and neglect, including truancy and educational neglect to the Missouri Department of
Social Services, Children’s Division.  Such report shall be made via the Child Abuse and
Neglect Hotline or the Online Mandated Reporting portal.

2.2  Mandatory reporters who know or have reason to believe that a child has been or
may be subject to abuse or neglect by any person shall also report such belief to their
supervisor.

2.3  Any other school employee who is not a mandatory reporter shall report any suspect
child abuse or neglect to their supervisor.  If their supervisor is not a mandatory reporter,
the employee shall report the suspected abuse or neglect to both their supervisor and a
mandatory reporter.

2.4 An oral report shall be made immediately, but in no case later than 24 hours from the
time there is reasonable cause to believe a child has been abused, by telephone or
otherwise and followed by a report in writing, if requested, to a child welfare agency
providing protection services, as designated by the Children’s Division, or, in the absence
of such agency, to an appropriate police authority or LEA attorney.

191 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Volunteers and Chaperones Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on the
date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.

The School encourages participation of parents and citizens of the community to volunteer in the
school in order to serve as additional resources to the teachers and students.  Prior to serving as
a volunteer, each individual who may have unsupervised contact with a child must complete an
application for the position, have a satisfactory criminal records check, and have a satisfactory
check of the child abuse/neglect records maintained by the Missouri Department of Social
Services.

SECTION 2.  Chaperone Duties and Responsibilities

2.1  All students must ride in school provided transportation both to and from the field trip
and during transport during a field trip to multiple locations.  At no time will students ride
in transportation not provided by the school unless prior approval by administration is
granted in writing.

2.2  School staff shall maintain a list of all chaperones and the students to which they are
assigned.  Chaperones are responsible specifically to supervision of these students;
however, they also retain responsibility for general supervision and safety of all students.

2.3  Adults observing behavior by students or other adults that is contrary to school policy
or procedure should immediately report the incident to a school staff member or
administration.

2.4  School staff is responsible for taking roll of students prior to departure from any
location, every time the group reconvenes, and periodically throughout the course of trip
to ensure all students are present.  School staff may not delegate this responsibility to a
chaperone or any other person.

2.5  The use of cell phones and texting should be for emergency use only when acting in
a supervisory capacity.

2.6  Chaperones should be strategically located on buses and at venues to ensure that
students are adequately supervised at all times.

192 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
2.7  Chaperones may not bring siblings of their child who is attending the trip.

2.8  Chaperones may not leave the group or venue at any time during the course of a
field trip from departure from the school to arrival at the school after the trip.  Chaperones
and School staff are expected to participate in all activities planned as part of the field trip
itinerary.

2.9  Chaperones may not drink alcoholic beverages, utilize illegal substances, smoke or
chew tobacco, or use profanity at any time during the course of a field trip from departure
from the school to arrive at the school after the trip.  Chaperones should refrain from
socializing with other chaperones or School staff while supervising students.

2.10 Chaperones should ensure that all students remain seated on the bus and monitor
student behavior on the bus.  Students are expected to be quiet while in heavy traffic,
when exiting/entering the interstate, or when crossing a railroad track.

2.11  Students should be escorted into and out of public bathrooms.  At not time should
any student, even a child of a chaperone, be left unattended in a bathroom.

2.12  A School staff member or chaperone should never leave students unattended.

2.13  Students should remain with their specific chaperone unless authorized by a school
staff member.

2.14  Students who become ill during the course of a field trip should be brought to a
school staff member.  Parents of the student should be promptly contacted by the school
staff member.  The school staff member and chaperone will work collaboratively to ensure
the child is properly attended.

2.15  All procedures and rules specific to a field trip shall be strictly adhered to by all
parents, students, and school staff.

193 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Seclusion, Restraint and Corporal Punishment Policy

The Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on the date that
the policy is adopted by the Board.

SECTION 1.  General Policy Provisions

1.1. The use of chemical restraint, mechanical restraint, or prone restraint, as defined by
Missouri Department of Education Rule 160-5-1-.35, is prohibited in the School.

1.2 The use of seclusion, as defined by Missouri Department of Education Rule
160-5-1-.35, is prohibited within the School.

1.2.1 Seclusion does not include “time-out,” defined as a behavioral intervention in
which the student is temporarily removed from the learning activity but in which
the student is not confined.

1.2.2. Seclusion does not include in-school suspension, detention, or a
student-requested break in a different location in the classroom or in a separate
unlocked room.

SECTION 2. Physical Restraint

Physical restraint may be utilized only when the student is an immediate danger to himself or
others and the student is not responsive to less intensive behavioral interventions including
verbal directives or other de-escalation techniques.

2.1. Physical restraint does not include: providing limited physical contact and/or
redirection to promote student safety, providing physical guidance or prompting when
teaching a skill, redirecting attention, providing guidance to a location, or providing
comfort.

2.2. Physical restraint shall not be used (1) as a form of discipline or punishment (2) when
the student cannot be safely restrained; or (3) when the use of the intervention would be
contraindicated due to the student’s psychiatric, medical, or physical conditions as
described in the student’s educational records.

2.3 All physical restraint must be immediately terminated when the student is no longer
an immediate danger to himself or others or if the student is observed to be in severe
distress.

194 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
2.4. Before any staff member may implement physical restraint, he or she should have
completed an approved training program.

2.4.1 Approved training programs must address a full continuum of positive
behavioral intervention strategies as well as prevention and de-escalation
techniques and restraint.

2.4.2 Schools and programs shall maintain written or electronic documentation on
training provided and the list of participants in each of the provided training
sessions. Copies of such documentation will be made available to the Missouri
Department of Education or any member of the public upon request.

2.5. If a staff member who has not completed an approved training program has to
physically restrain a student to prevent injury to a student or others in an emergency
situation when staff members trained in physical restraint are not available, he or she
should ask other students, if present, to request assistance immediately.

2.6. Whenever possible, the use of physical restraint on a student shall be monitored by
another staff member or administrator. The use of physical restraint shall be documented
by staff or faculty participating in or supervising the restraint for each student in each
instance in which the student is restrained.

2.7. Whenever physical restraint is used on a student the school or program where the
restraint is administered shall notify the student’s parent or legal guardian within one
school day after the use of restraint.

SECTION 3. Time-Out

This policy does not prohibit a staff member from utilizing time-out, as defined above, or any
other classroom management technique or approach, including a student’s removal from the
classroom that is not specifically addressed in this rule.

SECTION 4. Student Fights or Altercations

This policy does not prohibit a staff member from taking appropriate action to diffuse a student
fight or altercation.

SECTION 5. Physical Restraints

The decision whether or not the use of physical restraint is necessary to protect students or
others from imminent harm or bodily injury, and taking the actions deemed necessary to protect

195 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
students or others from imminent harm or bodily injury, are actions that involve the performance
of discretionary, not ministerial, duties.

SECTION 6. Law Enforcement or Emergency Medical Personnel Assistance

6.1. In some instances in which a student is an immediate danger to himself or herself or
others, the school or program must determine when it becomes necessary to seek
assistance from law enforcement and/or emergency medical personnel. Nothing in this
policy shall be construed to interfere with the duties of law enforcement or emergency
medical personnel.

6.2. School officials must notify a student’s parent or guardian immediately when
emergency medical or law enforcement personnel remove a student from a school or
program setting.

SECTION 7. Corporal Punishment

7.1. For the purposes of this policy, corporal punishment is a form of physical punishment
administered by an adult to the body of a child for the purpose of discipline or reformation,
or to deter attitudes or behaviors deemed unacceptable. No person employed by or
volunteering on behalf of the School shall administer corporal punishment or cause
corporal punishment to be administered upon a student attending LEA schools.

7.2. A staff member may, however, use reasonable physical force against a student for
the protection of the student or other persons or to protect property. Restraint of students
in accordance with the School's policy on student seclusion, isolation, and restraint is not
a violation of this policy.

196 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Program for Homeless Students Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on
that date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

Hogan Preparatory Academy recognizes that homelessness alone should not be a sufficient
reason to separate students from the mainstream school environment.  Therefore, Hogan Prep,
in accordance with state and federal law (Title VII-B of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act) and the Missouri State Plan for Homeless
Children and Youth, will give special attention to ensure that homeless children in the LEA have
access to free, appropriate public education.

Definitions:
A “homeless child” or “homeless youth” is one who:

A. Lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence; and
B. Includes -

a. Children and youths who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of
housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer
parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate
accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; are abandoned
in hospitals;

b. Children and youths who have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or
private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping
accommodation for human beings;

c. Children and youths who are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned
buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings;

d. Migratory children or youths who qualify as homeless because they are living in
circumstances described in subdivisions (a) and © above.

The first category may include some individuals who have moved in with others.
Consideration of each individual case, along with the permanency of the situation,
will be needed in order to identify those who are homeless.

The terms “enroll” and “enrollment” include attending classes and participating fully in school
activities.

The “school of origin” is the school that the child or youth attended when permanently housed or
the school in which the child or youth was last enrolled.

197 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Enrollment and Placement:

Homeless children and youth frequently move, and maintaining a stable school environment is
critical to their success in school.  To ensure this stability, LEAs must make school placement
determinations on the basis of the “best interest” of the homeless child or youth.  Using this
standard, Hogan Preparatory Academy must:

(a) Continue the child’s or youth’s education in the school of origin for the duration of
homelessness when a family becomes homeless between academic years or
during an academic year; or for the remainder of the academic year if the child or
youth becomes permanently housed during an academic year; or

(b) Enroll the child or youth in any public school that non-homeless students who live
in the attendance area in which the child or youth is actually living are eligible to
attend.

In determining what is a child or youth’s best interest, Hogan Preparatory Academy must, to the
extent feasible, keep a homeless child or youth in the school of origin, unless doing so is contrary
to the wishes of the child or youth’s parent or guardian.  If Hogan Preparatory Academy wishes
to send a homeless child or youth to a school other than the school of origin or a school
requested by the parent or guardian, Hogan must provide a written explanation of its decision to
the parent or guardian, together with a statement regarding the right to appeal the placement
decision.

Enrollment requirements which may constitute a barrier to the education of a homeless child or
youth may be waived if allowed by law, Hogan Preparatory Academy may, however, require
contact information.

If Hogan Prep is unable to determine the grade level of the student because of missing or
incomplete records, Hogan shall administer tests or utilize other reasonable means to determine
the appropriate grade level for the child/youth.

Transportation:

Transportation must be provided, at the request of the parent or guardian (or in the case of
unaccompanied youth, the homeless coordinator) to and from the school of origin.

● If the homeless child or youth continues to live in the area served by the LEA in which the
school of origin is located, that LEA must provide or arrange for the child’s or youth’s
transportation to or from the school of origin.

● If the homeless child or youth continues his or her education in the school of origin but
begins living in an area served by another LEA, then LEA of origin and the LEA in which
the homeless child or youth is living must agree upon a method to apportion the

198 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
responsibility and costs for providing the child with transportation to and from the school
of origin.  If the LEAs cannot agree upon a method, the responsibility and costs for
transportation are to be shared equally.

● The transportation requirement applies even if the LEA does not provide transportation to
non-homeless students.

Services:

Each homeless child or youth shall be provided services comparable to services offered to other
students in the LEA including, but not limited to, transportation services, educational services for
which the child meets the eligibility criteria, such as educational programs for children with
disabilities, English learners, programs in career and technical education, programs for gifted and
talented students, before-and-after school programs, school nutrition programs, and
transportation.

Homeless students will not be segregated in a separate school or in a separate program within a
school based on the students’ status as homeless.

In the event that it is in the best interest of the homeless child or youth to attend the school of
origin, it shall be the responsibility of this LEA to provide for the transportation of the student.
This may be achieved through the transportation services of this LEA, the school of origin, or
another outside agency.

Records:

Once LEA officials have determined that an enrolling student is homeless, the LEA’s homeless
coordinator must assist the student in obtaining his/her education, immunization, medical, and
other records.  According to McKinney-Vento, the student must be enrolled in the interim.

Immunization:
If the homeless coordinator is unable to obtain prior immunization records within thirty
(30) days of enrolling and the student is still eligible for services under the homeless
education program; the student must begin the immunization series and demonstrate that
satisfactory progress has been accomplished within (90) days.  If the homeless student
maintains that he/she is exempted from receiving immunizations, then after thirty (30)
days the student must provide documentation in accordance with the exemption
requirements provided for in §section 167.181.3, RSMo.

Any records ordinarily kept by school, including immunization records, academic records, birth
certificates, guardianship records, and evaluation for special services or programs of each
homeless child or youth shall be maintained so that appropriate services may be given the

199 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
student, so that necessary referrals can be made, and so that records may be transferred in a
timely fashion when homeless children or youth enters a new LEA.  Copies of records shall be
made available upon request to students or parents in accordance with the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act.

Coordinator:

The Board will designate an individual to act at the LEA’s homeless coordinator to ensure
compliance with federal and state law.  The homeless coordinator will “ensure that homeless
children and youth enroll and succeed in the schools of that agency; and homeless families,
children and youth receive educational services for which they are eligible, and referrals to health
care services, dental services, mental health services, and other appropriate services.”  The
homeless coordinator will also ensure that disputes regarding the placement or education of
homeless children or youth are resolved in a timely fashion.

The LEA shall inform school personnel, service providers and advocates working with homeless
families of the duties of the LEA homeless coordinator.

Resolving Grievances:

Level I - A complaint regarding the placement or education of a homeless child or youth shall first
be presented orally and informally to the LEA’s homeless coordinator.  If the complaint is not
promptly resolved, the complainant may present a formal written complaint (grievance) to the
homeless coordinator.  The written charge must include the following information:  date of filing,
description of alleged grievances, then name of the person or persons involved and a recap of
the action taken during the informal charge state.  Within five (5) working days after receiving the
Complaint, the coordinator shall state a decision in writing to the complainant, with supporting
evidence and reasons.  In addition, the coordinator will inform the Superintendent or his/her
designee of the formal complaint and the disposition.

Level II - Within five (5) working days after receiving the decision at Level I, the complainant may
appeal the decision to the Superintendent or his/her designee by filing a written appeal package.
The package shall consist of the complainants’ grievance and the decisions rendered at Level I.
The Superintendent or his/her designee will arrange for a personal conference with the
complainant at their earliest mutual convenience.  Within five (5) working days after receiving the
complaint, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall state a decision in writing to the
complainant, with supporting evidence and reasons.

Level III - If resolution is not reached in Level II, a similar written appeals package shall be
directed through the Superintendent or his/her designee to the Board requesting a hearing before
the Board at the next regularly scheduled or specially called meeting.  The hearing before the

200 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Board may be conducted in a closed session upon the request of either the Board or the
complainant.  Within thirty (30) working days after receiving the appeals package, the Board shall
state its decision and reply in writing to the parties involved.  For LEA purposes, the decision of
the Board is final.

Level IV - If the complainant is dissatisfied with the action taken by the Governing Board of the
LEA, a written notice stating the reasons for the dissatisfaction may be filed with the state
director of special federal instructional programs.  The state director will initiate an investigation,
determine the facts relating to the complaint, and issue notice of his/her findings within thirty (30)
days to the LEA and the complainant.  If the findings support the action taken by the LEA, such
action will be confirmed.  If the findings support the allegations of the complainant, the LEA will
be directed to take corrective action.  An appeal of this decision can be made within ten (10)
days to the Deputy Commissioner of Education.  Within thirty (30) days after receiving an appeal,
the Deputy Commissioner of Education will render a final administrative decision and notify the
complainant and all other interested parties in writing.

201 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Local Education Agency Title I.A Parental Involvement Policy and School Title I.A Parental
Involvement Policy

The Governing Board of Hogan Preparatory Academy adopts the following policy effective on
that date that the policy is adopted by the Board.

In support of strengthening student academic achievement, each school that receives Title I, Part
A funds must develop jointly with, agree on with, and distribute to parents and family members of
participating children a written parental and family engagement policy as required by the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), as amended by the Every Student Succeeds
Act of 2015 (parental involvement policy).

I. LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY POLICY.
In General:  A local education agency may receive Title I, Part A funds only if such
agency conducts outreach to all parents and family members and implements programs,
activities, and procedures for the involvement of parents and family members consiste
with the provisions below.  Such programs, activities, and procedures shall be planned
and implemented with meaningful consultations with parents of participating children.

Written Policy:  Each local educational agency that receives funds under Title I, Part A
shall develop jointly with, agree upon with, and distribute to, parents and family members
of participating children a written parent and family engagement policy that is
incorporated into the local education agency’s plan developed under section 1112,
establishes expectations and objective for meaningful parent and family involvement, and
describes how the local educational agency will:

● Involve parents and family members in the joint development of the plan under
section 1112, and the support and improvement plans under section 1111.

● Provide the coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to
assist and build the capacity of participating schools in planning and implementing
effective parent and family involvement activities to improve student academic
achievement and school performance; which may include meaningful consultation
with employers, business leaders, and philanthropic organizations, or individuals
with expertise in effectively engaging parents and family members in education

● Coordinate and integrate parent and family involvement strategies under this part
with parent and family engagement strategies under relevant federal, state, and
local programs such as the Head Start program, Reading First program, Early
Reading First program, Even Start program, Parents as Teachers program, and
Home Instruction program for Preschool Youngsters, and State-run programs?

● Conduct, with meaningful involvement of parents and family members, an annual
evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the parent and family engagement

202 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
policy in improving the quality of schools served under this part, including barriers
to greater participation by parents in activities authorized under this section (with
particular attention to parents who are economically disadvantaged, are disabled,
have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic
minority background); the needs of parents and family members to assist with the
learning of their children, including engaging with school personnel and teachers;
and strategies to support successful school and family interactions.  The LEA
should use the findings of such evaluation to design evidence-based strategies for
more effective parental involvement, and to revise, if necessary, the parental and
family engagement policies described in this section; and

● Involve parents in the activities of the schools served under Title I, Part A, which
may include establishing a parental advisory board comprised of a sufficient
number and representative group of parents or family members served by the
local educational agency to adequately represent the needs of the population
served by such agency for the purposes of developing, revising, and reviewing the
parent and family engagement policy.

Reservation of Funds:

Each local educational agency shall reserve at least 1 percent of such agency’s allocation under
Title I, Part A, subpart 2 to carry out parental and family involvement, including family literacy and
parenting skills, (unless 1 percent of such agency’s allocation under Title I, Part A, subpart 2 for
the fiscal year for which the determination is made is $5,000 or less.)

Parents of children receiving services under Title I, Part A shall be involved in the decisions
regarding how funds reserved as set forth above are allocated for parental involvement activities.

II. SCHOOL PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT POLICY.

Each school served under Title I, Part A shall jointly develop with, and distribute to, parents and
family members of participating children a written parent and family engagement policy, agreed
upon by such parents, that shall describe the means for carrying out the requirements of Policy
Involvement, Shared Responsibilities for High School Academic Achievement, and Building
Capacity for Involvement and Accessibility.

Parents shall be notified of the policy in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent
practicable, provided in a language the parents can understand.  Such policy shall be made
available to the local community and updated periodically to meet the challenging needs of
parents and the school.

203 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
Special rule - If the school has a parent and family engagement policy that applies to all parents
and family members, such school may amend that policy, if necessary, to meet the requirements
of this subsection.

Amendment - If the local educational agency has a school-district level parental and family
engagement policy that applies to all parents and family members in all schools served by the
local educational agency, such agency may amend that policy, if necessary, to meet the
requirements of this subsection.

Parental comments - If the plan under section 1112 is not satisfactory to the parents of
participating children, the local educational agency shall submit any parent comments with such
plan when such local educational agency submits the plan to the State.

Policy Involvement.
Each school served under Title I, Part A shall:

(1) Convene an annual meeting, at a convenient time, at the beginning of the school year, to
which all parents of participating children shall be invited and encouraged to attend, to
inform parents of their school’s participation under Title I, Part A and to explain Title I, Part
A, its requirements, and their right to be involved.  The school shall have sign-in sheets
for this meeting and retain such sign-in sheets, the agenda for the meeting and minutes
of the meeting for audit purposes by DESE;

(2) Offer a flexible number of meetings, such as meetings in the morning or evening and may
provide with funds provided under this part, transportation, child care, or home visits, as
such services relate to parental involvement;

(3) Involve parents, in an organized, ongoing, and timely way, in the planning, review, and
improvement of programs under this part, including the planning, review, and
improvement of the school parent and family engagement policy and the joint
development of the schoolwide program plan under section 1114(b), except that if a
school has in place a process for involving parents in the joint planning and design of its
programs, the school may use that process, if such process includes an adequate
representation of parents and participating children;

(4) Provide parents of participating children -
(a) Timely information about programs under this part;
(b) A description and explanation of the curriculum in use at the school, the forms of

academic assessment used to measure student progress, and the achievement
levels of the challenging State academic standards; and

(c) If requested by parents, opportunities for regular meetings to formulate
suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions relating to the
education of their children, and respond to any such suggestions as soon as
practicably possible; and

204 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
(5) If the schoolwide program plan under section 1114(b) is not satisfactory to the parents of

participating children, submit any parent comments on the plan when the school makes
the plan available to the local educational agency.

Shared Responsibilities for High Student Academic Achievement.
As a component of the school-level parent and family engagement policy, each school served
under this part shall jointly develop with parents for all children served under this part a
school-parent compact that outlines how parents, the entire school staff, and students will share
the responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which the
school and parents will build and develop a partnership to help children achieve the State’s high
standards.  Such compact shall:

(1) Describe the school’s responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a
supportive and effective learning environment that enables the children served under this
part to meet the challenging State academic standards, and the ways in which each
parent will be responsible for supporting their children’s learning; volunteering in their
children’s classroom; and participating, as appropriate, in decisions relating to the
education of their children and positive use of extracurricular time; and

(2) Address the importance of of communication between teachers and parents on an
on-going basis through, at a minimum:

(a) Parent-teacher conferences in elementary schools, at least annually during which
the compact shall be discussed as the compact relates to the individual child’s
achievement;

(b) Frequent reports to parents on their children’s progress; and
(c) Reasonable access to staff, opportunities to volunteer and participate in their

child’s class, and observation of classroom activities; and
(d) Ensuring regular two-way meaningful communication between family members

and school staff, and, to the extent practicable, in a language that family members
can understand.

Building Capacity for Involvement.
To ensure effective involvement of parents and to support a partnership among the school
involved, parents and the community to improve student academic achievement, each school
and local educational agency assisted under Title I, Part A:

(1) Shall provide assistance to parents of children served by the school or local educational
agency, as appropriate, in understanding such topics as the challenging State academic
standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how
to monitor a child’s progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their
children;

(2) Shall provide materials and training to help parents work with their children to improve
their children’s achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including

205 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
education about the harms of copyright piracy), as appropriate, to foster parental
involvement;

(3) Shall educate teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other
School Leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of
contributions of parents, and in how to reach out to, communicate with, and work parents
as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent programs, and build ties between
parents and the school;

(4) Shall, to the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate parent involvement
programs and activities with other Federal, State, and local programs, including Head
Start, Reading First, Early Reading First, Even Start, the Home Instruction Programs for
Preschool Youngsters, the Parents as Teachers Program, and the public preschool and
other programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent resource centers, that
encourage and support parents in more full participating in the education of their children;

(5) Shall ensure that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other
activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent
practicable, in a language the parents can understand;

(6) May involve parents in the development of training for teachers, principals, and other
educators to improve the effectiveness of such training;

(7) May provide necessary literacy training from funds received under this part if the local
educational agency has exhausted all other reasonably available sources of funding for
such training;

(8) May pay reasonable and necessary expenses associated with local parental involvement
activities, including transportation and child care costs, to enable parents to participate in
school-related meetings and training sessions;

(9) May train parents to enhance the involvement of other parents;
(10) May arrange school meetings at a variety of times, or conduct in-home conferences

between teachers or other educators, who work directly with participating children, with
parents who are unable to attend such conferences at school, in order to maximize
parental involvement and participation;

(11) May adopt and implement model approaches to improving parental involvement;
(12) May establish a districtwide parent advisory council to provide advice on all matters

related to parental involvement in programs supported under this section;
(13) May develop appropriate roles for community-based organizations and businesses in

parent involvement activities; and
(14) Shall provide such other reasonable support for parental involvement activities under

this section as parents may request.

III.  ACCESSIBILITY.

In carrying out the parent and family engagement requirements, local educational agencies and
schools, to the extent practicable, shall provide full opportunities for the informed participation of

206 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021
parents and family members including parents and family members who have limited English
proficiency, parents and family members with disabilities, and parents and family members of
migratory children, including providing information and school reports required under Section
1111 in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language such parents understand.

207 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Attendance Policy - Virtual Learning

Absences and Tardiness

When students miss class, they jeopardize their academic success. Attendance is monitored
closely.  There are no “excused absences” at Hogan Preparatory Academy. Every absence, for
whatever the reason, counts against Hogan’s attendance goals for students. Failure to maintain
satisfactory attendance will result in a meeting with administration to discuss ongoing enrollment
at Hogan. Please note a student that has ten (10) consecutive days of absence will be
automatically removed from the roll of Hogan Preparatory Academy on the eleventh day and will
have to apply for re-admittance. For students enrolled in Hogan Prep Virtual Academy, failure to
complete assignments for ten (10) consecutive days will result in automatic removal from the roll
of Hogan Preparatory Academy on the eleventh day and the student will have to apply for
re-admittance to the virtual program.   Please note that re-admittance is not guaranteed.  The
dis-enrolled student will be placed at the bottom of the waitlist, if any, for his/her grade and will be
re-admitted based on class availability.

Absences should be for personal illness, severe illness in the family, a death in the family, or
other serious situations. Part-day absences should be for unavoidable medical appointments or
similar types of situations. Students may make up their work in these cases. Parents or
guardians are asked not to permit their student to be absent for any other reason.

When a student misses school, it is his or her responsibility to obtain assignments and to
complete all work missed during the absence. In general, previously assigned homework is due
when the student returns. Students must complete missed work within the same number of days
they were absent unless there are extenuating circumstances and other arrangements have
been made in advance.

208 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

POLICY 1431 – SCHOOL/COMMUNITY RELATIONS – CODE OF CONDUCT - ADULTS
(Last approved:  12/19/2019)

The Board of Directors is committed to providing a safe, harassment-free environment for
students and employees, which promotes mutual respect, civility and orderly conduct among
Hogan Preparatory Academy employees, parents and the public.  Hogan Prep discourages
uncivil behavior.  This policy is not intended to deprive any person of his or her freedom of
expression, but rather to maintain a safe, orderly educational environment for our students.

Therefore, the Board has established a code of conduct for parents, patrons, and visitors during
communications as well as while on school premises and at school activities.  All parents,
patrons, and visitors will be expected to conduct themselves in a manner reflective of a positive
role model for children.  Uncivil behavior shall be defined as any behavior that is (1) physically or
verbally threatening, either overtly or implicitly, as well as behavior that is aggressive, hostile,
volatile, coercive, intimidating, violent, harassing or bullying, and (2) directed toward employees,
students, parents, patrons, visitors or anyone having business with Hogan Prep.

Examples of uncivil behavior include, but are not limited to, the use of profanity, disrupting or
threatening to disrupt school or office operations, threatening the health or safety of others,
willfully causing property damage, loud or offensive language that might provoke a violent
reaction, personally insulting remarks, attacks regarding a person’s race, gender, nationality,
religion, disabling condition or any other personal characteristic, or behavior that is out of control.
Uncivil behavior may be verbal or nonverbal and can occur during face-to-face or written
communications, telephone conversations, voice mail messages, and any other electronic means
or medium of communication.

Any individual who engages in uncivil behavior will be advised by the employee to whom the
remarks are directed to communicate in a civil manner.  If the individual does not stop the uncivil
behavior, the Hogan Prep employee will notify the individual that the meeting and/or
communication is terminated, and shall notify his/her supervisor of such incident immediately.  If
the uncivil behavior occurs on school property or during a school activity, the individual will be
directed to leave promptly.  The supervisor shall make a determination on the method of any
future communication which may include advising the individual that they are not allowed on
school property or at school activities until further notice and that any future communication be
directed only to the supervisor.

209 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Physical or violent behavior will result in a ban by the Superintendent from school premises and
activities and will be referred to law enforcement and any other relevant agency.  The
Superintendent, in consultation with the Board, will determine the length of the ban.  Failure to
comply with the restricted access provided in this policy will result in the filing of civil and/or
criminal charges.

210 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



HPA Board Policy Updates - September 27, 2021

Model Migrant Procedure

Identification

For purposes of Board policies and regulation, a child is a “migratory child” and is eligible for the
Migrant Education Program (MEP) if all of the following conditions are met:

1. The child is not older than 21 years of age; and
2. The child is entitled to a free public education (through grade 12) under State law or is

below the age of compulsory school attendance; and
3. The child is a migratory agricultural worker or a migratory fisher or has a parent, spouse,

or guardian who is a migratory agricultural worker or a migratory fisher; and
4. The child moved within the preceding 36 months in order to seek or obtain qualifying

work, or to accompany or join the migratory agricultural worker or migratory fisher
identified in paragraph three above, in order to seek or obtain qualifying work; and

5. The child has moved from one LEA to another.

Potential migrant students will be identified through a question on the school enrollment form.  If
it appears that a migrant student is enrolling, the school will notify the State Migrant, English
Language Learner (MELL) Director and request assistance with the identification of the student.

Services

If a migrant student is identified by the MELL office, the school must:

● Assess the educational, health, and social needs of the identified student and develop
objectives to address those needs so that migrant children meet the same challenging
State academic content standards and academic achievement standards that all children
are expected to meet;

● Provide advocacy to allow children and families to gain access to health, nutrition, and
social services;

● Review existing programs and resources to determine which can help meet the needs of
migrant children and assure that the children has access to them;

● Provide professional development activities for teachers to improve the quality of
education for migrant children; and,

● Provide opportunities for participation of migrant parents in the educational activities of
their children.

211 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



Cover Sheet

HPA Conflict of Interest Policy Annual Review

Section: VIII. New Business
Item: B. HPA Conflict of Interest Policy Annual Review
Purpose: Discuss
Submitted by:
Related Material:
Board Policy 3170 - Conflict of Interest Policy (Revision 4.2020).pdf

1 of 1Powered by BoardOnTrack 212 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM



 
 
 
Board Policy 3170:  Conflict of Interest Policy (Revision)  
(To be reviewed and approved by the HPA Board on 4/21/20)   

 
Conflict of Interest 
The District maintains a written code of standards of conduct which governs the performance of District 
employees who may be engaged in the award and administration of contracts.  These standards will include a 
prohibition against employees who are involved in the selection, award or administration of a contract 
supported by Federal funds, if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved. 

A conflict of interest would arise if a District board member or employee, any member of their family, their 
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties named in this paragraph, has 
a financial or other interest in the firm selected for the award. 

Neither District board members, nor employees will accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value 
from contractors, potential contractors or parties to sub-agreements.  This rule will not apply to gifts of less 
than ten dollars ($10.00), or is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value.  Violations of these conflict of 
interest provisions will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination for employees, and up to and 
including public sanction of a violating Board member. 

Endorsements 
Employees of the District will not endorse products or services in such a manner that will identify the 
employee as an employee of the School District. 
 
Procurement Activities 
In any purchasing activities all employees shall refrain from soliciting, discourage the offer of, and decline gifts 
if offered by any vendor wishing to do business with, or who is doing business with the School District. Instead 
of making an offer of gifts, the vendor should be encouraged to discount the price of the goods to the school. 
 
Solicitation/Distribution 
The advertising of sale or distribution of any goods or service on school property, for any school activity, shall 
have prior approval from the building principal or Superintendent. This includes but is not limited to: school 
personnel, students, parents/guardians, relatives, general public and commercial businesses. 
 
Solicitations of School Staff 
Agents, solicitors, and salespersons will be denied the privilege of seeing the school staff during the school day 
except with permission of the administration. 
 

213 of 213Powered by BoardOnTrack

Hogan Preparatory Academy - Hogan Preparatory Academy - Agenda - Monday September 27, 2021 at 5:30 PM


	Agenda
	II.A Coversheet for HPA BOD September Dashboard
	Board Dashboard - September 2021 (1).pdf

	III.A Coversheet for Approval of  August 23, 2021 Minutes
	Minutes for Hogan Preparatory Academy on 08-23-21

	III.C Coversheet for HPA HR Report
	2021 September Board - HR Report.pdf

	III.D Coversheet for HPA BOD Bylaws Revisions
	HPA Second Amended Bylaws_9.27.21.pdf

	III.E Coversheet for Prep KC MOU
	Hogan Prep PREP-KC MOU FY22 rev 8.25.21.pdf

	III.F Coversheet for Designation of McKinney-Vento and Foster Care Coordinator
	BOD_Appointments_FY21-22.pdf

	III.G Coversheet for KLS Contract Update
	KLS Phase II Contracts_9.27.21.pdf

	V.A Coversheet for Finance Committee Report
	HP - Monthly Presentation - August 2021 .pdf

	V.B Coversheet for Approve August Expenses
	HPA 2021 08 Accounts Payable.pdf
	HPA 2021 08 CheckRegisterbyType.pdf

	V.C Coversheet for KCPS MOU
	MOU KCPS Charter Funding FY 22 Agreement Draft 8.10.21.pdf

	V.D Coversheet for HPA High School Student Run Store Checking Account
	HS Student Run Store Checking Account_9.27.21.pdf

	VI.A Coversheet for Academic Committee Report
	15. Academic Committee Report_ September 2021.pdf

	VII.A Coversheet for Governance & Board Development Committee
	UnderstandingCharterPublicSchoolAccountabilityinMO..pdf

	VII.B Coversheet for Charter School Board Member Draft
	BKC CSBD_2022.pdf

	VIII.A Coversheet for HPA Policy Update
	HPA Board Policy Updates - 9.27.2021.pdf

	VIII.B Coversheet for HPA Conflict of Interest Policy Annual Review
	Board Policy 3170 - Conflict of Interest Policy (Revision 4.2020).pdf


